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We incorporate 
happiness into 
the lives of our 
stakeholders and 
having been doing 
so since our humble 
beginnings in 1968. 
This philosophy 
has resulted in 
the happiness of 
individuals and 
families alike, as 
they have come to 
recognise the ultimate 
in service and 
standards that Abans 
has to offer. And we 
will continue to create 
joy and fulfillment 
in the years ahead as 
we traverse diverse 
avenues in delivering 
our promise of 
quality to all our 
stakeholders.
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Vision To attract and retain our customers for life...

Mission
Adding value to our most precious asset, our customers, by bestowing a novel range of 
world-class products and services that reflect comfort, convenience & quality.

The Abans story

Abans is a story of small 
beginnings and continuous 
growth. It is the inspiring success 
story of a home business that 
grew into one of the biggest 
brands in Sri Lanka.

The Abans story began nearly 
half a century ago in 1968, 
when a young housewife, Mrs. 
Aban Pestonjee, began a small 
business from her garage, 
selling used electronic items. 
During this closed economic era, 
when imported goods were not 
accessible to ordinary people, 
this young entrepreneur acquired 
her inventory by purchasing 
electronic items from expatriate 
and embassy staff auctions. 
This made it possible for local 
housewives to enjoy the benefits 
of electronic home conveniences. 
Demand soon outpaced supplies, 
and when the economy opened 
up in 1978, the emerging 
corporate entity Abans, was ready 
to take on the challenges of a 
competitive market.

Today, 48 years later, Abans has 
evolved into a household name 
in Sri Lanka, with a customer 
base spanning the demographic 
spectrum, a retail network 

extending across the country 
and a diversified business 
footprint. True to its brand 
identity of innovative thinking 
Abans continues to introduce 
the latest technologies in 
household appliances and ICTs 
to people all over the country, 
while continuing to diversify into 
new business areas.

Late 1970s

Early 1980s

Mid 1980s
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OVERVIEW

“Spending more time with 
my family, knowing that 
I don’t have to worry 
about chores is happiness 
to me. Thank you Abans.”
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GROUP FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

						I      ncrease/ 
				    2016	 2015	 (Decrease)
				    LKR	 LKR	 LKR
				    ’000	 ’000	 ’000

Key Financial Highlights
Sale				    34,933,245	 30,082,218	 4,851,028
Gross Profit				    10,759,664	 8,516,783	 2,242,881
Profit Before Interest & Tax				    2,644,591	 1,648,524	 996,068
Profit After Tax				    1,099,636	 576,952	 522,684

Current Assets				    25,330,409	 22,188,361	 3,142,048
Total Assets				    32,239,221	 28,094,574	 4,144,647
Current Liability				    19,649,840	 16,235,814	 3,414,026

Key Financial Ratios
Gross Profit Ratio				    30.80%	 28.31%	 2.49%
Operating Profit Ratio				    7.57%	 5.48%	 2.09%
Net Profit Ratio				    3.15%	 1.92%	 1.23%

ROCE (Return on Capital Employed)				    21.01%	 13.90%	 7.11%
Asset Turnover Ratio				    1.08	 1.07	 0.01
Liquidity Ratio				    1.29	 1.37	 (0.08)
Quick Asset Ratio				    0.76	 0.83	 (0.07)

Gearing Ratio (Debt to Equity)				    1.85	 1.92	 (0.07)
Interest Cover (PBIT/Interest)				    2.52	 1.58	 0.94

Net Asset Per Share				    3,222	 2,741	 481
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Turnover
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Abans Group Structure

The Abans Group comprises 
the holding company 
Abans PLC, five subsidiary 
companies, one associate 
company and one joint 
venture company. Group 
subsidiaries are:

`` 	Abans Retail (Pvt) Ltd
`` 	Abans Lanka (Pvt) Ltd
`` 	AB Technologies (Pvt) 

Ltd
`` 	Abans Engineering (Pvt) 

Ltd
`` 	Abans Finance PLC

The associate company of 
the Group:

`` Abans Electricals PLC

The joint venture company
`` 	The Colombo City Centre 

Partners (Pvt) Ltd.

Colombo City Centre 
Partners (Pvt) Ltd  
Mixed development 
project

SilverNeedle Hospitality (Pvt) Ltd  
50 % ownership

Abans Electricals PLC
Manufacturing 
and assembling of 
household appliances
1,506 Mn revenue 

Abans Retail (Pvt) Ltd
Buying and selling consumer 
durables
LKR 4,454 Mn
12.75% of Group revenues 100%

Abans Lanka (Pvt) Ltd  
Buying & selling mobile phones

56%

Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd
Installation & servicing of central
Air Conditioning system
LKR 1,956 Mn
5.38% of Group revenues 95%

AB Technologies (Pvt) Ltd 
Selling IT related products and 
services. 
1% of Group revenues 100%

Abans Finance PLC
LKR 1,300 Mn
Non-bank financial services 
3.72% of Group revenues 89%

79%  
of Group revenues 

Abans PLC
(Parent Company)

Import & selling consumer 
electronics & home 

appliances 

43% 

50% 

Ownership

Ownership

Ownership

Ownership

Ownership

Ownership

Ownership

Subsidiaries

Associate
Joint venture 
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Message from the Chairperson
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“Phase 1 of the 
Colombo City 
Centre, comprising 
parking areas 
and five floors of 
retail space, once 
operational, will 
add significant 
value to Colombo 
city’s economy 
by supporting 
retail tourism to 
generate foreign 
exchange and by 
providing a new 
retail platform 
for local and 
international 
brands to grow.”

Message from the Chairperson

It gives me great pleasure to present the Annual Report and audited financial statements of Abans 
PLC and its subsidiaries for the financial year 2015/16 and to report a profitable year, accompanied by 
progress in our growth plans. This report and the consolidated financial statements are limited to Abans 
PLC and its subsidiaries (Abans Retail (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Lanka (Pvt) Ltd, AB Technologies (Pvt) Ltd, Abans 
Engineering (Pvt) Ltd and Abans Finance PLC), the associate company of the Abans Group, which is 
Abans Electricals PLC, and the joint venture company, Colombo City Centre Partners (Pvt) Ltd.

Progress During the Year
Abans has always represented a story of growth and progress, not only in the context of the Company, 
but also in terms of our customers. While the entire country has transformed within the last five 
decades, the Abans brand has remained a part of the consumer landscape by anticipating consumer 
requirements, be it in kitchen appliances or the latest in information communications technology, to 
bring happiness into households by making life better. As we identify new opportunities and continue to 
grow as a corporate entity it is important that we carry with us this central tenet of doing things better 
and making life better for people in this country. Our growth strategy of diversifying into new businesses 
is based on this philosophy.

Our largest strategic investment to date, the Colombo City Centre, which is our initial venture into the 
segment of ‘lifestyle tourism’, was conceptualised to upgrade the lifestyle of the entire city of Colombo. 
Therefore, I am pleased to report that we have made steady progress in realising this vision. Phase 1 
of the Colombo City Centre, comprising parking areas and five floors of retail space, once operational, 
this will add significant value to Colombo city’s economy by supporting retail tourism to generate foreign 
exchange and by providing a new retail platform for local and international brands to grow. The next 
phase of the Colombo City Centre will add a four star hotel complex and luxury apartments to Colombo 
city’s tourism sector. 

In addition, I am pleased to report a stronger balance sheet and steady growth in profitability by the 
Abans Group.

Performance of Our Companies
Our main focus during the current financial year was financial sustainability, to optimise returns to 
all stakeholders and in particular our investors. As part of this process we have re-balanced our debt 
portfolio, improved our competitiveness and enhanced our profitability.

The LKR 4 Bn raised by Abans PLC through two listed debentures have helped address the debt to 
investment mis-match by retiring more expensive short term debt. As a result, we have been able to 
reduce our leverage ratio from 7x in the previous financial year to 5.2 x as at end March 2016. This 
has allowed us greater flexibility in our financial planning. In addition, a bottom line focused sales 
drive, coupled with improvements in operational processes have increased Company revenues and 
profitability, while containing our non-performing credit in the hire purchase portfolio. Our subsidiaries 
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have also performed well during the year, enhancing their contributions to overall profitability. In fact, 
the Abans Central Air Conditioning Division that was spun-off into a separate company under the name 
Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd has already contributed to the group profits.  For detailed information on the 
financial performance of Abans PLC, please refer the Financial Review of this report on page 21.

Overall the Abans Group generated LKR 35.2 Bn in economic value for the country in the current 
financial year and 9.43% of this value was distributed to government, our employees, providers of capital 
and into social welfare activities.

Growing Sustainably
As the Abans footprint continues to expand, we are extremely conscious that our growth must be 
sustainable, not only financially but also socially and environmentally. Therefore, we attempt to control 
our environmental impacts by investing, where ever possible, in environmentally friendly technologies 
and waste management solutions. We also pay special attention towards sourcing environmentally 
friendly products to retail in our showrooms. One such example is the LG Solar Panels. These panels 
support the country by reducing energy demand on the national grid and by providing cleaner energy for 
institutions and households. We will continue to introduce such environmentally friendly products to the 
domestic market in the new financial year.

Abans has always gone beyond statutory responsibilities in supporting our employees and the general 
public. In May 2016, Abans stepped up to help the country recover from the sudden and devastating 
floods brought on by cyclone ‘Roanu’. Responding to the urgent need to restore normalcy for thousands 
of displaced families and flood affected businesses in Kolonnawa and Kotikawatta, we placed our 
specialised cleaning services at the disposal of the national authorities, including the fleet of garbage 
compacter trucks and loaders belonging to Abans Environmental Services (Pvt) Ltd. These cleaning 
services were provided free of charge, for one week, to restore roads, waterways, building and homes. 
The Abans Service Department stepped up to repair flood damaged electronic equipment free of charge.

Our employees are our primary focus when extending welfare support and during the current financial 
year the Abans Group facilitated assistance for employees in many different ways. We provided funds, 
material and voluntary services to all Abans employees affected by the floods and conducted many other 
welfare schemes. Please refer the chapter on Human Resource Management and Corporate Social 
Responsibility, on page 37 and page 43 for more information.

“As the Abans 
footprint 
continues to 
expand, we 
are extremely 
conscious that 
our growth must 
be sustainable, 
not only 
financially but 
also socially and 
environmentally. 
Therefore, we 
attempt to control 
our environmental 
impacts by 
investing, where 
ever possible, in 
environmentally 
friendly 
technologies and 
waste management 
solutions. ”

Message from the Chairperson
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Message from the Chairperson

Future Outlook
We enter the new financial year against a disturbing backdrop of policy changes, of which the most 
troubling, is the sharp increase in taxes. However, not withstanding the somewhat gloomy short 
term outlook, I would like to state that over the mid to long term, Abans PLC is well positioned to 
generate strong returns. While the rate of demand growth from the household sector could slow down 
significantly in the short term, we anticipate sustained demand from the business sector due to ongoing 
development projects. In addition, the Colombo City Centre will begin contributing to Group revenues 
once it is commercially operational.

The Abans team has been our greatest competitive advantage over the years and as we prepare for a 
challenging year ahead, I am confident we can work together to meet our mutual objectives. I thank our 
investors for their confidence in the Company and I can assure them that the Board and I are committed 
towards strong returns for you. As always, I am extremely grateful to our customers and our business 
partners and look forward to a mutually beneficial year. I thank the Colombo Stock Exchange and other 
regulatory authorities for their advice and guidance and I would like to thank the Board of Directors for 
their valuable inputs during the year.

Sincerely,

Aban Pestonjee
Chairperson
8th August 2016
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Board of Directors

MRS. ABAN PESTONJEE
CHAIRPERSON

A resourceful and self-taught entrepreneur, Mrs. Aban Pestonjee exemplifies the Abans creed of “finding a 
need and fulfilling it”. Her passion, drive and courage, especially as a South Asian woman in a male dominated 
business world has inspired successive generations of Sri Lankan business women. Mrs. Pestonjee’s 
achievements have gained both local and international recognition. These include: the Award of Excellence 
for Women Achievers for Outstanding Achievements, presented by the SAARC Women’s Association, Sri Lanka 
Chapter in the year 2000 and the Bronze Award under the large business category at the Women Entrepreneur 
of the Year Ceremony of the Women’s Chamber of Industry and Commerce in year 2000, and the KOTRA 
Plaque of Appreciation 2005 for forging strategic foreign economic ties between Korea and Sri Lanka. In 2006, 
she received international recognition by being awarded the Leading Woman Entrepreneur of the World Award, 
which was presented by the Princess of Thailand.

Mrs. Pestonjee also holds directorships at Abans Electricals PLC, Abans Environmental Services (Pvt) Ltd, 
Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Lanka (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Tours (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Tourist Hotel (Pvt) Ltd, ABS 
Gardner Dixon Hall International (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Investments (Pvt) Ltd, Add Outdoor (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Graphics 
(Pvt) Ltd, Abans Marketing (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Consolidated (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Warehousing (Pvt) Ltd, Crown City 
Developers (Pvt) Ltd, AB Technologies (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Development (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Auto (Pvt) Ltd and Abans 
Office Automation (Pvt) Ltd.

MR. BEHMAN PESTONJEE (TITO)
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Qualified as a Marine Engineer, class 1 (D.O.T. London), Mr Behman Pestonjee has been involved with 
Abans PLC since its inception and has been instrumental in building the business. His dynamic leadership 
of the Operations Division has been a key driver of success. He oversees most of the critical functions of the 
organisation, including sourcing, marketing and sales, and manages many important business partnerships. 
Under his able supervision the Abans retail network has expanded from a single store, to over 400 stores. He 
is an inspiring leader with a unique management style based on a pragmatism and execution.

Mr. Behman Pestonjee also holds directorships at Abans Electricals PLC, Abans Environmental Services (Pvt) 
Ltd, Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Lanka (Pvt) Ltd, ABS Gardner Dixon Hall International (Pvt) Ltd, Abans 
Investments (Pvt) Ltd, Add Outdoor (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Restaurant Systems (Pvt) Ltd, Absgro (Pvt) Ltd, Abans 
Graphics (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Marketing (Pvt) Ltd, AB Leisure (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Consolidated (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Retail 
(Pvt) Ltd, Colombo City Centre Partners (Pvt) Ltd, Crown City Developers (Pvt) Ltd, Sirius Technologies (Pvt) Ltd, 
Abans Exports (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Development (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Auto (Pvt) Ltd, and Abans Office Automation (Pvt) 
Ltd.
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DR. SAROSHI DUBASH
DIRECTOR

Dr. Dubash holds a PhD in Philosophy, an MBA (USA) and an honours degree in chemistry (London). She was 
the Chairperson of the Women’s Chamber of Commerce and Industry and is also the Women’s Chamber 
representative on the Ceylon Chamber of Commerce Board. Within the Abans Group, Dr. Dubash is mainly 
involved in administering the supply chain functions of import purchasing, wharf clearance, warehousing, 
inventory control, distribution, and information systems. Retail accounts and hire purchase departments also 
come under her purview and she oversees the Training Department to ensure the continuous training and 
development of Abans employees. Her major projects include sourcing a 3PL partner, introducing an ERP 
system for Abans channels and spearheading e-commerce initiatives, such as ‘buyabans.com’, the online 
retail arm of Abans.

In collaboration with ARC the Australian Retail College she is establishing a business that undertakes retail 
training. She is the Managing Director of Abans Logistics (Pvt) Ltd which is a fully fledged logistics company 
that deals with freight, transport, warehousing, distribution, container yards and other logistical operations. 
She is the alternative Director to Mr. Behman Pestonjee in the Colombo City Centre operations. Also she is a 
member of WILAT (Women in Logistics and Transport)

MR. RUSI PESTONJEE
DIRECTOR

Mr. Rusi Pestonjee is an alumnus of the executive management programme at the Indian School of Business, 
focusing on strategy and managing family businesses. He supports relationship building with key international 
partners and has been instrumental in implementing several new strategic growth initiatives.

Mr Rusi Pestonjee also holds various directorships within the Abans Group of Companies and is the chairman 
of Abans Finance PLC.

Board of Directors
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Board of Directors

MR. HIRAN EMBULDENIYA
INDEPENDENT NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Embuldeniya has an MBA from the Harvard Business School and a M.Eng (Hons) in Engineering, 
Economics and Management, from Brasenose College, University of Oxford. He is currently a Managing Partner 
of Ironwood Capital Partners, Sri Lanka’s first private equity fund. He is also a Director of York Street Partners, 
an investment banking firm based in Sri Lanka. He has also previously worked for 10 years with Goldman 
Sachs and McKinsey & Company. He has helped develop and execute the corporate strategies for some of the 
leading banks and industrial companies in Europe, the Middle East and South Asia. Mr Embuldeniya has also 
been involved in multi-billion dollar M&A transactions across Europe and Asia in multiple sectors including 
automotive, general industrials and metals and mining.

MR. SRIYAN DE SILVA WIJEYERATNE
INDEPENDENT NON EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wijeyeratne possesses a master’s degree in management from the University of Sri Jayewardenepura, 
and holds a first class special degree in Business Administration from the same University. Additionally he 
is a Fellow Member (FCMA) of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA) UK, and is also a 
member of the Chartered Global Management Accountants (CGMA). He is currently the Managing Director/ 
Chief Executive Officer of Textured Jersey Lanka PLC., and serves on their board. He previously served as the 
Country Manager of Microsoft for Sri Lanka and Bangladesh. His key skills include driving growth and business 
expansion amidst competitive conditions, and multi dimensional challenges, both locally and in overseas 
markets. He has several academic and business awards to his credit, and is a frequent speaker at leading 
forums locally and globally. He was previously named the CIMA Business Manager of the Year, and is involved 
in many business chambers, and in several local and global charities.
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Management discussion 
and analysis

“The ability to relax and 
unwind after a tiring day 
is my kind of happiness and 
it’s all because of Abans and 
their amazing products.”
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Managing Director’s Review of Operations
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The Abans Group has recorded a strong performance in the financial year 2015/16 due to the combination of a 
supportive macro environment and internal operational improvements that fed into the bottom line.

However, we enter the new financial year with a dramatic increase in value added tax (VAT) and a degree of policy 
ambiguity that together, will translate into financial losses for the entire retail sector of the country. The cascading 
impact of the VAT, through multiple types of consumer transactions, will have a multiplier effect on cost of living 
and the consumer psyche, significantly dampening retail household demand. We can also anticipate a resurgence 
of grey markets across the country, which will result in a double blow to the formal retail sector of the country and 
will also negate, to some extent, the anticipated government tax revenues. However, there appears to be some 
changes of the direction on VAT, which is welcome.

Business Environment
With the exception of the last quarter, when government policy unpredictability began translating into slower demand, 
the 2015/16 financial year was for the most part beneficial for Abans PLC. Strong demand for consumer electronics 
was observed from both the institutional and household sectors. Higher disposable incomes across almost all socio-
economic segments, due to price containment of essential utilities such as fuel, water and electricity, resulted in robust 
demand for consumer goods. Wage increases in the public sector may have been another contributory factor, while 
comparatively low rates of interest and easy payment schemes prompted many households to invest in consumer 
conveniences. Demand from the business sector increased due to construction of hotels, residential facilities and 
commercial units. This demand boosted sales of air conditioners and sanitary ware products. ICT products remained 
the fastest growing sub sector with strong demand experienced across the country for computers and mobile phones.

However, gains in sales volume were offset by the continued depreciation of the rupee against major currencies 
from the end of 2015. Within the Abans Group, exchange rate impacts were alleviated to some extent by our 
domestic assembly operations. Our Associate, Abans Electricals PLC, assembles a selection of white goods such 
as refrigerators, washing machines bottle coolers and freezers and our subsidiary, Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd., is 
involved in installing and servicing central air conditioners. 

Our product portfolio, that contains some of the best brands in the world, was an advantage in the face of rising 
price competition. Supported by our island wide after sales and distribution network, Abans was able to present 
a strong value for money proposition that gave us a competitive advantage. I would like to direct readers to the 
chapter on Risk Management and Internal Control on page 17 for more information on how we addressed the 
challenges faced during the year.

Strategic Priorities and Performance
The priority for the current financial year was to ensure sustained growth in profits, which I am pleased to report, we 
have achieved. The Group net profit increased by a commendable 91% from LKR 576 Mn, to LKR 1,100 Mn, while our 
operating profit increased by 60.4% to LKR 2,644 Mn. This achievement was mainly due to re-organisation of internal 
operations in the retail business, for greater cost savings and better margins. We continued to inject technology 
solutions across the supply chain to support bottom line growth through cost savings and better communications 
to facilitate flow of market intelligence. Please refer the Financial Review on page 21 for details on our financial 
performance during the year.

We conducted a cost benefit analysis and rationalised our multiple distribution channels in line with our growth 
objectives. As an outcome of this exercise, we decided to strengthen our retail channels further, for greater control 
over margins and distribution activities, while also maintaining sales standards associated with the Abans brand. 
During the current financial year, our retail channels contributed over 70% of total revenues and I am happy to 
report that our digital retail platform is now showing strong potential. BuyAbans.com, our retail website, was 
named the leading e-commerce retailer for electronics and home appliances in the country, by Amazon.com, 
indicating that the trust associated with the Abans brand has been successfully transferred to the online medium.

“The priority 
for the current 
financial year 
was to ensure 
sustained growth 
in profits, which 
I am pleased to 
report, we have 
achieved. The 
Group net profit 
increased by 
commendable 
91% from LKR 576 
Mn to LKR 1,100 
Mn, while our 
operating profit 
increased by 60.4% 
to LKR 2,644 Mn.”

Managing Director’s Review of Operations
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Managing Director’s Review of Operations

The Abans product portfolio is a key strategic asset of the Company which has continued to appreciate in value 
over the years. While LG remained our major brand partner, during the current year, we negotiated strategic 
agreements with a number of other international brands. I am pleased to report that Abans has won exclusive 
rights for Lenovo computers, the world’s largest computer manufacturer and a growing brand in Sri Lanka. 
In another significant achievement, Abans was upgraded to a Tier 1 partner by Apple Inc., and was made an 
authorised service provider for all Apple products. Apple also expanded its product range under Abans to include 
Apple iPads and iPhones. These business partnerships have enhanced our future strategic competitiveness in the 
future and will be instrumental in securing our market position as the leader in ‘innovation technology retailing.’

Our bottom line was also supported by our subsidiaries. Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd recorded a 22% growth in 
revenues due to demand for central air conditioning systems, while Abans Finance PLC increased its portfolio.

Future Plans
The retail sector entered the new financial year overshadowed by an increased tax landscape of VAT, PAL and 
NBT, topped off by a plethora of import taxes. This tax structure does not reflect the government’s vision to 
position Sri Lanka as a retail destination in the region. A greater concern is the policy instability demonstrated by 
repeated changes in policy directives. Such lack of clarity disrupts operational cash flows and prevents long term 
investment planning by the private sector, which ultimately disrupts growth of the country. Policy predictability and 
consistency is vital for retail sector welfare and we hope to see the current tax regime rationalised into a more 
practical format in the near future.

The consumer goods retail sector, which tends to be comparatively more price elastic, can be expected to respond to 
the latest cost increase with disproportionately lower growth in demand. As retail activities are the main contributor 
to Group profits, accounting for over 84.6% of total after tax profit, sustaining the current growth momentum is going 
to be a challenge. In the current scenario, our top priority in the new financial year will be to maintain our bottom line 
growth. Therefore, in the new financial year we will focus on leveraging our distribution network and product portfolio 
to maintain growth, while also targeting exclusive business rights with leading brands. I believe our investments in 
digitising our supply chain will also contribute to competitive advantages. The expansion of our product portfolio 
is guided by our objective to be a leader in innovative products and this will remain a driver in the selection of new 
products that we will bring into the domestic market. We are also considering expansion in the digital media space, 
through LED panels for advertising and we anticipate sustained demand for LG solar panels, particularly from the 
business sector.

Although the new financial year presents a gamut of new challenges, Abans is a mature company, managed 
and operated by a group of highly skilled and experienced personnel. Therefore, I am confident of a strong 
performance despite these challenges. I thank the management and staff of Abans PLC and our subsidiaries, 
for their excellent work that has ensured a successful year for the Group. Our brand principals and dealers are 
our partners and I am grateful for their support during the year. I extend my gratitude to the Board of Directors 
for their guidance and advice. Mostly, I am grateful to our customers for their continued patronage and I hope to 
improve our services and products to meet their needs better.

Sincerely

Behman Pestonjee
Managing Director
8th August 2016

“I am pleased to 
report that Abans 
has won the sole 
agency for Lenovo 
computers, the 
world’s largest 
computer 
manufacturer 
and a growing 
brand in Sri 
Lanka. In another 
significant 
achievement, 
Abans was 
upgraded to a Tier 
1 partner by Apple 
Inc., and was made 
an authorised 
service provider 
for all Apple 
products.”
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Risk Management and Internal Control Process

The internal control process of the company deals with assuring achievement of the organisation's objectives 
in operational effectiveness and efficiency, reliable financial reporting, and compliance with laws, regulations 
and policies.

Monitoring

Information & 
Communication

The Process of 
Internal Control

Risk Assessment

Control  
Environment

Control 
Activities

The Company has its own internal audit process implemented to ensure that effective controls are in place. 
These processes extend across all Company operations. Such as,

`` 	Receivables Management
`` 	Inventory Management
`` 	Cash Management
`` 	Internal Checks and balances

The Internal Audit Department of Abans carries out regular reviews on the risk management function and 
internal control system. The Audit Committee monitors, reviews and evaluates effectiveness of internal controls 
over financial reporting.

Risk Management at Abans
We at Abans have identified risk management as an iterative process that, with each cycle, can contribute 
progressively to organisational improvement by providing management with a greater insight into risks and 
their impact by taking the risk appetite of the Company into consideration. Risk management is applied to 
all levels of the organisation, in both the strategic and operational contexts, to specific projects, decisions or 
recognised risk areas through risk management process identified and set beforehand.

The outcome of internal, external and corporate audits laid the foundation for our risk management process. 
The reports submitted by the audit teams with significant audit findings are then analysed and brainstormed, 
to find sustainable risk mitigation strategies. This process continuously improves and strengthens our internal 
controls and risk governance procedures and risk management reporting results in a well-defined risk 
management culture. Regular meeting with internal & external auditors and audit committee are conducted to 
identify potential risks with in-depth analysing and interpretation of the same.
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Risk Management Process of Abans PLC consists of Seven Phases:

`` Establishing a context for risk 
management in Abans

This involves clarifying the vision, mission and objectives of the Company while identifying the wider 
environment, setting scope and the risk criteria for risk management process. 

`` Communicating risk 
management to the company

Good communication and consultation to improve employee’s understanding of risks, and make every one 
including stakeholders clear on their roles and responsibilities.

`` Identifying risks face by the 
company

Identifying by conducting brainstorming at staff meetings, brainstorming with stakeholders and doing 
systematic analysis (e.g. flow charting systems and processes), researching the relevant data such as 
warranty claims, net profit percentage, and variances, conducting interviews.

`` Assessment of risks Key questions were answered, such as likelihood of the risk, consequences, factors affected, the level of 
uncertainty, limitations, etc.
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Consequences

`` Evaluating risks Key questions were answered, such as acceptability, intolerable level, remedy needed or not, priorities for 
remedy.

`` Treating risks Contingency planning, sharing the risk, transferring the risk, avoiding the risk, financing the risk, reducing 
the risk, retain the risk

`` Monitoring and reviewing Risk management process needs monitoring and reviewing to ensure whether they are adequate and 
effective. It needs to be monitored periodically and new risks need to be scanned. 

At Abans PLC, we identified the risks confronted during the financial period under three broad categories. These are; Business, financial and strategic 
risks. The top risks faced by Abans PLC during the current financial year 2015/16 and our responses to mitigate immediate and future impacts are 
described next.

Risk Management and Internal Control Process
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Risk Management and Internal Control Process

Risk factor Assessment 
Priority

Response

Business Risk

National Policy Instability
Lack of clarity and consistency in national policies made 
financial planning and resource allocation difficult and 
delayed decision making, which translated into reduced 
operational efficiency and lower bottom line growth. More 
damagingly such unpredictability inhibits the Company’s 
ability to invest in future value creation.

4

`` Carefully evaluate the long term vision of the 
government and develop business strategies on long 
term value creation into business activities

`` Rationalise product portfolio based on macro trends
`` Invest in productivity and cost cutting technologies
`` Adopt the pause/proceed with caution strategy in 

business expansion

Increase in Taxes
While this did not impact the Company significantly in 
2015/16 this is a high impact risk facing the Company in the 
new financial year.

1

`` Streamline revenue and expenses to gain maximum 
tax benefit i.e capital expenditure, research and 
development costs

`` Maintain efficient tax planning division with technically 
and professionally empowered employees

`` Ventured in to new business with BOI approval

Increase of Employee Salaries
Introduction of minimum salary scale for the workers will put 
pressure on the bottom line and impact future obligations on 
employees.

1

`` Invest in productivity and cost cutting technologies
`` Review employees’ job profiles and current work load to 

assign additional responsibilities, if possible

Depreciation of Rupee Value
Our business model is extremely price sensitive to rupee 
depreciation against foreign currencies, which in turn applies 
pressure to increase retail prices.

2

`` Evaluate foreign exchange market fluctuations in 
advance by Treasury Division and find opportunities to 
reduce foreign currency exposure i.e early conversion of 
supplier credit to rupee loans

`` Not confined to one currency (USD) and use all major 
currencies when dealings with foreign suppliers

Import Duty Increases
The retail business is extremely price sensitive and increased 
duties will increase the retail price which in turn translates 
into lower sales volumes.

2

`` Increase domestic assembly of fast moving brands
`` Ensure different price ranges for products
`` Respond to customer demand trends
`` Differentiation of products
`` Improve supply chain efficiencies to contain costs and 

increase delivery efficiency
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Risk factor Assessment 
Priority

Response

Financial Risk

Interest Rate Increase
Rising interest rates lead to increased cost of funds. It will 
adversely impact the profit available for the shareholders and 
impede re-investment of profits in profitable ventures.

3

`` Locking in the interest rate by borrowing from fixed 
interest rate funding sources, at lower interest rate 
regime

`` Maintain right mix of borrowing to reduce maturity 
mismatch

`` Reduced the leverage from 7x to 5.2x.
`` Strong business relationships with lenders helps 

negotiation on terms of credit 

Credit Default Risk
The clientele of Abans consists of corporate clients, 
government and general public. While corporate and 
government institutions are given credits, The general public 
mostly use hire purchase schemes. Therefore credit risk to  
Abans arises from all sources of revenue.

4

`` An effective credit policy is implemented across all 
sector clients and their credit worthiness is reviewed 
regularly

`` Contractual agreements are drawn up with clients and 
material payments are backed by guarantees

`` Debtor age analysis is regularly reviewed and 
continuously monitored

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is when the Group does not have sufficient 
financial resources to meet obligations as and when they fall 
due, or will have to do so at an excessive cost. 

4

`` Maintain unutilised bank facility as a safety cushion to 
meet immediate commitment, as they fall due

`` Group Treasury Division is entrusted with monitoring 
borrowings, payments and keeping relationship with 
banks

Strategic Risk

Reputational Risk
Abans has consolidated its corporate image and brand 
name over the years and has a positive image in the trading 
industry as well as expanding it across the country in various 
industries. Any form of damage to this good reputation can 
cause loss of earnings.

4

`` In order to protect the Group reputation, measures 
have been taken to ensure compliance with laws and 
regulations

`` Board of Directors and the senior management 
continuously review strategic moves for competitive 
edge

IT System Risks
Information Technology has evolved as a source of 
competitive advantage in the industry. We believe that the 
ERP system of Abans is a core competence to maintain the 
leadership position in the industry. Any failure in the ERP 
system, IT infrastructure or IT security may severely affect the 
business.

3

`` Communicate the IT strategy across the Group regularly, 
and monitoring

`` Intensive disaster recovery process is in place
`` IT system was upgraded by our professionally qualified 

internal IT Division
`` Invested in training and skills development of our IT 

professionals

Human Resource/People Risk
Ensure adequate human resources to meet the strategic 
goals and operational plans of the Group by recruiting the 
right people with the right skills at the appropriate time.

3

`` Carry out staff training and development activities 
regularly

`` Motivating the staff through incentive schemes, 
increments and other welfare activities

Risk Management and Internal Control Process
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Financial Review

We are pleased to report an exceptional financial performance by the Abans Group for the year under review 
with total Group revenue increasing by 16.13% year on year to reach LKR 35 Bn. The Group benefited 
from sustained demand growth during the first three quarters of the year from favourable macro economic 
conditions, including the public sector salary increment and relatively low fuel prices. Reflecting the macro 
backdrop, Group revenue grew by 16.30% year-on-year, within the first three quarters of the year, and declined 
to 12.80% in the last quarter of the year,in the wake of government fiscal policy unpredictability, rupee 
depreciation and weather related disruptions.

Industry Overview
Despite the slight moderation in the national economic growth rate from 4.9% in 2014, to 4.8% in 2015, the 
financial year under review was generally favourable to the consumer durables market and the Abans Group. 
Growth in real GDP was largely driven by an increase in consumption demand, where both public and private 
sector consumption expenditure increased in a low-inflation, low interest rate environment. The Central Bank 
statistics suggest that GDP per capita reached $3,924 in 2015, from $3,853 in 2014 and $3,610 in 2013, 
indicating higher disposable incomes across the country. The growth in GDP per capita and purchasing power 
favoured white goods sales across low income segments of the country.

Supportive macro conditions contributed towards wholesale and retail trade growth by 4.7% in 2015, over 
2014. Inflation, as measured by the year-on-year change in the Colombo Consumer Price Index (CCPI), hit 
negative territory during July-September 2015, but reverted to 2.8% by end 2015, compared to 2.1% as 
at the end 2014. Inflation was driven primarily by growth of bank credit as well as higher wages afforded 
to government workers and employees in other sectors of the economy. This in-turn, resulted in more hire 
purchase contracts being made, especially during April-December 2015. 

Interest rates were maintained at single digit with AWPLR rates of 9.4% in 2015, compared to 7.2% in 
2014. However, towards end 2015, the Central Bank commenced tightening monetary policy. In addition, 
in September 2015, a policy of greater flexibility in exchange rates was adopted. Subsequently, the rupee 
depreciated 6.64% against the US dollar, resulting in an overall depreciation of 9.03% against the US dollar 
during 2015. This directly affected our cost of sales, however only a portion of it was passed on to the 
customer.

In 2016, Abans is prepared and ready to face the challenges of diminished consumer sentiments and buying 
power in the backdrop of increased VAT, rising interest rates and rupee depreciation. Although interest rates 
are expected to increase in 2016, Abans PLC will, to some extent, be cushioned from this outcome due to the 
Abans debenture issue being subject to a lower interest rate regime.

US Dollar Fluctuation
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Communication products 57%

Air Conditioner 38%

Cooking Appliances 30%

audio 21%

White goods 36%

The largest growth in sales was in communication products, where sales increased 57% year-on-year, followed 
by a 38% growth in air conditioners, 36% growth in white goods and a 30% growth in cooking appliances. 
Strong growth was observed in the hire purchase portfolio with consumers and institutions taking advantage of 
the low interest rates that prevailed for the most part of the year.

Channel Growth

Channel % Increase in Sales Revenue

Show rooms and outlets 15%

Direct/ Dealer channel 6%

Online channel 258%

All Abans retail sales channels recorded growth in sales volumes during the year, with the online channel of 
www.buyabans.com registering an encouraging 258% growth in sales revenues. Elite and retail showrooms 
increased sales revenues by 17% and 14.5% respectively, against the previous financial year.

Financial Review

Segmental Performance
`` 	Consumer Durables: The 

consumer durables sector 
experienced a revenue 
growth of 14% during the 
year.

`` 	Engineering & Construction: 
The engineering segment 
saw a 22% revenue 
growth due to the boom in 
construction of hotels and 
residential complexes that 
fueled demand for central air 
conditioning sales.

`` 	Manufacturing: Abans 
Electricals recorded a 
28% growth in revenues in 
meeting demand growth 
for household products and 
home appliances. The public 
sector salary increase during 
the 100 day programme 
resulted in growth in hire 
purchase sales. Record 
breaking refrigerator sales 
were observed in April 2015.

`` 	Financial Services: The 
financial services sector 
benefited from a 37% 
growth in revenue due to the 
sustained low interest rate 
climate boosted by overall 
financial service industry 
growth.
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Financial Review

Profitability
Gross Profit: Group gross profit margin increased to 30.8% (LKR 10,759 Mn) during the current financial year 
compared to 28.3% (8,517 Mn) in the previous year. The improved gross profit was driven by more Supplier 
Credit agreements and also better demand for high end products.

Net Profit: Group net profit nearly doubled with a 91% year-on-year growth from LKR 577 Mn to LKR 1,100 Mn, 
supported by better control of expenses and long term planning.

Share of Profit from Associates
Abans Electricals PLC: The company’s profit before tax increased by 40% to reach LKR 140Mn while profit 
after tax was LKR 99 Mn. This growth in profitability is attributed to higher demand for household products and 
home appliances, and cost controls in distribution activities.

Selling & Distribution Expenses
Group selling and distribution expenses increased by 31%, while the Company experienced a 35% increase. 
The focus during the year was mainly on advertising and promotional activities and the Group spent 
approximately LKR 900 Mn on advertising and promotions during the year.

Finance Income
The finance income of the Group fell by LKR 125.7 Mn, to reach LKR 65.7 Mn, from LKR 191.4 Mn. This was 
due to resolution of inter Company balances.

Finance Cost
The cost of finance was maintained at previous year levels and stood at LKR 1,050 Mn, compared to  
LKR 1,045 Mn in the previous financial year. In spite of higher interest rates the Company managed to contain 
finance costs through a debenture issued at lower interest rates.

Assets
Non Current Asset: Non current assets of the Group increased to LKR 6.9 Bn from LKR 5.9 Bn as at end March 
2016. This is attributable to:

`` 	The revaluation of plant, property and equipment, resulting in an LKR 89 Mn gain on property values.
`` 	The LKR 393Mn investment in the joint venture Company, the Colombo City Centre.
`` 	The LKR 567Mn expansion of the lease/loan portfolio of the subsidiary Company Abans Finance PLC in 

the low interest rate environment.

Total Asset Base: The total asset value of the Group was enhanced by 15%, to LKR 32 Bn from LKR 28 Bn, 
due to the combined factors of hire purchase portfolio growth, investments in the joint venture, revaluation of 
plant, property and equipment, and growth of Abans Finance PLC’s assets.
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Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities: Group non current liabilities decreased by LKR 334 Mn, to LKR 5.4 Bn. This was due to 
long term liabilities being converted to short term liabilities. The first debenture repayments will fall due in the 
3rd quarter of 2016.

Current Liabilities: Current liabilities of the Group increased by LKR 3.4 Bn, to 19.6 Bn, from LKR 16.2 Bn due 
to the growth of the Abans Finance PLC’s loan portfolio, and conversion of debenture payments to short term 
liabilities.

Tax
Income Tax: With the increase in effective tax rate, the total expenditure on income tax increased by LKR 306 
Mn, to LKR 511 Mn, from LKR 205 Mn,. The tax disallowed portion increased slightly during the year with the 
inclusion of advertising expenses into the disallowed bracket. 

Financial Review
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Product portfolio management

Abans PLC and subsidiaries collectively maintain a diversified product portfolio within a wide pricing range, to 
mitigate supplier risk, market risk and product risk. Currently the Group product inventory consists of over 80 
different products, have been selected in line with financial objectives and strategic objectives of positioning 
Abans as the leading national retailer for innovative consumer goods.

Pricing  
Diversity 

Abans Product 
Portfolio 

Management

Financial  
Objectives 

Technology 
Innovation 

`` Branded products for different income 
brackets

`` Comparatively higher margins 
`` High inventory turnover 
`` Exclusive agency rights 
`` Demand trends 

`` Energy savings/ environmentally friendly products
`` Latest ICT products
`` Health and wellbeing products

Abans Brand Portfolio
The Abans brand portfolio is one of the largest assets of the Abans Group. Our brand capital comprises a 
range of international brands with established track records for quality and reliability, including the leading 
innovation brand Apple. 
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Product portfolio management

LG remained the largest 
contributor to revenues in 
2015/16 with the highest sales 
volumes, followed by Haier and 
others. LG products, retailed 
through the Abans network, 
represent the largest market 
share in the electronics and 
home appliances sector in Sri 
Lanka.

LG - “Life’s Good”
LG originally stood for “Lucky 
Goldstar”, but is now promoted 
as meaning “Life’s Good” 
in the company’s marketing 
campaigns. LG has been a 
pioneer in innovation and has 
significantly focused on research 
and development by systematic 
investments. LG Electronics 
will do its best to create new 
products and services with an 
open mind, while developing new 
technologies and business fields 
through various partnerships 
with some of the world’s most 
successful companies.

LG operates through five major 
business segments: TV and 
home entertainment, mobile 
communication and computer 
products, Air conditioning and 
energy solution, home appliances 
and vehicle components. Its 
products range from TVs, home 
theatre systems, refrigerators, 
washing machines, computer 
monitors, and smartphones.

The company has a strong environmental record, where in it has ensured that its processes have been eco-
friendly and has had low carbon strategies as a part of its operational activities.

Strategic synergy between LG and Abans has been a partnership that has been very successful, and this 
cooperation would continue to grow.

Haier
Founded in 1984, this is one of the world’s leading home appliance manufacturers engaging in the research, 
development, production and sale of a wide variety of household appliances and consumer electronic goods. 
The products of Haier Group are now sold in over 100 countries.

HP
Operating in 170 countries with a network of more than 250,000 channel partners, HP uses the power of 
ideas to put technology to work for everyone, everywhere. HP’s slogan is “HP invents, engineers, and delivers 
solutions that amaze.” The firm’s motto is ‘Keep reinventing,’ which refers to both its internal operating 
strategy, and its ability to reinvent itself by launching new products such as the thinnest laptop in the world, 
or by revolutionising manufacturing with its 3D printing technology. According to the firm’s internal figures, HP 
ships 1 PC & 1 Printer every second, is ranked first or second in every market and product category where it 
competes, while powering 430 of the global fortune 500 companies. To sustain long-term relationships with 
customers, HP’s strategy is to sell solutions, not just products. To that end, the company offers “complete 
solutions” for partners and customers through integration of HP devices, supplies, and services. Abans is an 
Exclusive Retail Partner for HP, in Sri Lanka for more than 10 years. And Abans is waiting to launch many more 
technologically advanced laptops such as series of HP Spectre.

LG
Haier

HP

Dell

Lenovo

ApplePhilips

Acer

Mitsubishi
Titan

Hoover Harmon/Kardon



27 Abans PLC | Annual Report 2015/16

OVERVIEW  |  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  |  GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE  |  FINANCIAL REPORTS  | SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Lenovo
Lenovo has been the fastest 
growing major PC company for 
more than 4 years, but they are 
much more than a PC company. 
They create a full range of 
personal technologies, including 
tablets. Lenovo’s business is built 
on product innovation, a highly 
efficient global supply chain and 
strong strategy execution. The 
company develops, manufactures 
and markets reliable, high-quality, 
secure and easy-to-use technology 
products and services for 
customers who want technology 
that does more. Its product lines 
include legendary Think-branded 
PCs and Idea-branded PCs, as 
well as servers, workstations 
and a family of mobile internet 
devices. Now Abans is the 
exclusive distributer for Lenovo 
computers in Sri Lanka.

Dell
In 2015, Dell was the third 
largest PC vendor in the world 
after Lenovo and HP. Dell is 
currently the #1 shipper of PC 
monitors in the world. Dell is the 
sixth largest company in Texas 
by total revenue, according 
to Fortune magazine. It is the 
second largest non-oil company 
in Texas – behind AT&T – and the 
largest company in the Greater 
Austin area. It was a publicly 
traded company (NASDAQ: DELL), 

Product portfolio management

as well as a component of the NASDAQ-100 and S&P 500, until it was taken private in a leveraged buyout on 
October 30, 2013. Abans has had a stronger relationship with Dell throughout the years and promotes Dell 
among school children and university students in order to support for their day to day educational needs.

Apple
Apple is the world's largest information technology company by revenue, the world's largest technology 
company by total assets, and the world's second-largest mobile phone manufacturer. In November 2014, in 
addition to being the largest publicly traded corporation in the world by market capitalisation, Apple became 
the first U.S. company to be valued at over US$700 Bn. The company employs 115,000 permanent full-time 
employees as of July 2015 and maintains 478 retail stores in seventeen countries as of March 2016. It 
operates the online Apple Store and iTunes Store, the latter of which is the world's largest music retailer. There 
are over one billion actively used Apple products worldwide as of March 2016. Abans is honored to be part of 
the Apple’s supply chain, and the only Tier 1 authorised distributor of Apple iPhones and iPads in Sri Lanka. 
We look forward to strengthen our relationship with Apple to cater Sri Lankan demand for Apple products.

Phillips
Established in 1891 in Eindhoven, the Netherlands, Philips now endeavors in a wide variety of industries 
including : “cardiac care, acute care and home healthcare, energy efficient lighting solutions and new lighting 
applications, as well as lifestyle products for personal well-being and pleasure with strong leadership positions 
in flat TV, male shaving and grooming, portable entertainment and oral healthcare.” Because its products 
and areas of specialty are so broad it is understandable why Philips prefers to be described as “a diversified 
technology company, focused on improving people’s lives through meaningful innovation” Abans looks forward 
to bring more innovative solutions to customers from Phillips with the introduction of new products focused on 
consumer health.

Harmon/Kardon/JBL
HARMAN designs and engineers connected products and solutions for automakers, consumers and 
enterprises worldwide, including connected car systems, audio and visual products, enterprise automation 
solutions and connected services with leading brands including AKG®, Harman Kardon®, Infinity®, JBL®

Hoover
Known around the world, Hoover has celebrated over 100 years of making quality appliances for the home. 
Hoover is dedicated to creating and providing today what customers will demand as the standard of tomorrow. 
Abans shelters an exceedingly large range of Hoover products spreading over dryers, cooking appliances, 
dishwashers, high pressure washers and vacuum cleaners. All Hoover products cater to a wide variety of 
consumer needs, ensuring there is something for everyone at Abans.
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Titan
Titan is the world's fifth largest 
wrist watch manufacturer and 
exports watches to nearly 32 
countries around the world. 
Titan watches account for more 
than 60% share of the total 
Indian market. Titan offers 
various brands including Steel, 
Regalia, Raga, Nebula, Sonata, 
Fastrack, Zoop, Orion, Purple, 
Obaku, Automatic, Tycoon, 
Bandhan,Police, Octane and 
the HTSE series. Titan has 
claimed to have manufactured 
the world's slimmest wrist watch 
branded as Titan Edge with a 
total thickness of 3.5 mm and a 
movement of 1.15 mm. Abans 
was appointed the exclusive 
distributor for TITAN in Sri Lanka 
in October 2010, showcasing the 
entire Titan range to successfully 
break in to a market that was 
dominated by many brands of 
watches. 

Adding Value to Brand Capital
We added value to our brand capital through advertising campaigns for brand building, support services 
and brand events, throughout the year. During the current financial year we invested close to LKR 900 Mn 
on advertising and promotions of our brands, which contributed towards a 15 % growth in revenues from 
consumer durables during the year. In addition we strengthened our brand partnerships and support services.

Abans Product Portfolio
IT and Communication Products
IT and communication products, comprising laptops, tablet computers, printers, smart phones, digital screens, 
monitors and UPS, are the fastest growing consumer electronics sub segment in the Abans portfolio. During 
the current financial year communication segment sales revenue increased by 57% year on year despite rising 
competition in the mobile phone and computer retail market. 

Abans represents a range of international computer brands including HP, Toshiba, Dell, Apple, Acer, and 
Lenovo. Abans PLC is Sri Lanka’s leading retailer of Apple laptops with the largest number of Apple retail 
points. During the current financial year the partnership with Apple was strengthened to widen the Apple 
product range and support services provided for Abans customers. Abans expanded its product range 
with Apple, with the inclusion of iPads and iPhones to the existing range of Apple products. The business 
partnership was strengthened by Abans PLC being appointed as the authorised service provider for all Apple 
products. 

Further, Abans consolidated its presence in the fast growing computer market with another strategic 
agreement with Lenovo, as the exclusive distributer for Lenovo computers in Sri Lanka. Lenovo is one of the 
fastest growing computer brands in Sri Lanka.

Product portfolio management
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Enhancing Support Services - Mobile Phone Servicing
`` 	Abans provides the best mobile phone servicing and repair facility in the country. Servicing facilities are 

available from 9 am to 5 pm at 5 locations in the country for customer convenience. To enhance customer 
confidence, a unique system of ‘servicing while you wait,’ was introduced, where Abans technicians service 
the phone in front of the customer.

Air Conditioners and White Goods
Total sales revenue of this segment increased by 36% year-on-year. The sector saw strong demand, mainly for 
air conditioners and refrigerators, due to many hotel and residential constructions that are taking place in the 
country. 

Abans Electricals PLC, the Group’s domestic assembly subsidiary for air conditioners, refrigerators and 
washing machines provided timely volumes of goods to meet retail demand patterns and facilitated cost 
advantages to maintain prices. Meanwhile, product innovations aimed at enhancing quality of life, provided a 
competitive advantage for Abans air conditioners and washing machines.

Abans provides the fastest after sales service for air conditioners in the country, where Abans technicians will 
provide support services within 24 hours of a reported problem.

LG Solar Panels
Solar panels from LG, are one of the latest products introduced by Abans Electricals PLC as an environmentally 
friendly energy solution. During the current financial year LG solar panels gained ground with market 
recognition of the superior quality and reliability of the product. The panels are installed and serviced by Abans 
Electricals and are marketed through the Abans retail network.

Consumer Electronics
Abans retail network markets a wide range of consumer electronic items for households and businesses. 
During the current financial year, audio products saw a 21% growth in revenues under this segment.

Other Goods
This segment includes a range of sanitary ware, cookware and small appliances. These products accounted for 
9% of total revenues of the Abans consumer durables sector with a sales revenue growth of 23%.

Product portfolio management



30 Abans PLC | Annual Report 2015/16

OVERVIEW  |  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  |  GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE  |  FINANCIAL REPORTS  | SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Product portfolio management

Innovative Products at Abans
‘Mosquito Away’ Air Conditioner
LG’s ‘Mosquito Away’ Inverter 
Air Conditioner emits inaudible 
ultrasonic waves at a frequency 
of 30kHz – 100kHz which 
disables mosquitoes. All you 
need to do is push a button on 
your AC remote control and the 
device is switched on.

The efficient inverter technology 
saves up to 60% energy while 
the anti-mosquito function, saves 
money spent on dangerous 
chemical based insecticides 
and repellents. The Mosquito 
Away function can be turned on 
independently of the cooling 
function, helping to prevent 

unnecessary energy usage when cooling is not required. Both the cooling function and mosquito repellent 
function, does not affect humans, including those with respiratory illnesses.

The efficacy of LG’s technology has been certified by Interek, the international product testing and inspection 
company based in London, U.K, and the International Institute of Bio-Technology and Toxicology (IIBAT) in India, 
and also declared safe for use by Germany’s TUV NORD while the European Commission has conferred its CE 
conformity mark.

The innovative, first in Sri Lanka, LG Mosquito Away Air Conditioner is available at all Abans Showrooms and 
Abans Elite Showrooms island wide and carries an amazing 10 year warranty on the Inverter Compressor.

iPhone 6s and 6s Plus
For the first time, an iPhone can sense how much pressure you apply to the display. In addition to familiar Multi 
Touch gestures like Tap, Swipe, and Pinch, 3D Touch introduces Peek and Pop. This brings a new dimension of 
functionality to the iPhone experience. When you use 3D Touch, your iPhone responds with subtle taps. So not 
only will you see what a press can do — you’ll feel it.

Both iPhone models come with iOS 9, which is more intelligent and proactive with powerful search and 
improved Siri features, new features to built-in apps including Notes app, and improvements to performance, 
battery life, software updates and security.
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Lenovo Yoga Laptops
The industry’s first multi-mode 
notebook with a 360 degree 
flip-and-fold design, combines a 
tablet’s ease-of-use with ultrabook 
functionality. Yoga’s patented 
360 degree dual- hinge flip 
design is more stable and durable 
spanning four intuitive usage 
positions (notebook, tablet, stand, 
and tent). Yoga is the industry’s 
thinnest convertible ultrabook 
measuring 0.67” (16.9mm) thin 
at 3.1 lbs (1.47kg). It has a - i7 or 
i5 6th Generation processor, an 
HDD of 256 or 500 SSD or SSHD, 
RAM- Up to 16GB, VGA- Dedicated 
Graphics, Windows 10 OS, QHD+ 
display with In-Plane Switching 
(IPS) technology and improved 
keyboard and dedicated function 
row.

As a full-size notebook, YOGA’s 
svelte design includes small but 
meaningful details such as soft 
touch rubber paint on the exterior 
for strong grip, a leather cover on 
the palm rest, and side buttons 
designed for easier access for 
all usage modes. When it was 
showcased at CES 2012, the 
IdeaPad Yoga 13 won the "Best 
Ultrabook" award

Acer Predator
The Acer Predator 15 and 
17 are fueled by Intel’s sixth 
generation Core i7 processors 
that are paired up to 8GB NVIDIA 
GeForce GTX980M. Acer has 
included a swappable and a 
dust defender that prevent the 
machines from heating up on 

long plays. The most talked-
about feature is the cooling 
system that allows gamers to 
swap the optical drive for a fan 
module. This swapping feature is 
made possible through an ACER-
exclusive Frost Care technology 
designed by Cooler Master.

At the same time, the Predator 
Sound Pound provides ultra 
sound effects that are vital for 
gaming, with its four in-built 
speakers and two subwoofers 
supported by Dolby Audio sound 
enhancement system.

WebOS
LG webOS TV is designed to be 
obviously simple, so that it is 
easier to learn and more fun 
to use. From initial set up to 
connecting external devices, 
from switching between contents 
and programmes, apps and 
shows and to enjoy what you 
want to watch, instantly, in one 
place.
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GoPro
Come experience the 
phenomenon that is GoPro, 
exclusively available in Abans. It 
doesn’t matter if you are a thrill 
seeking adrenaline junkie or 
a naturalist with a fine eye for 
photography, GoPro will never 
cease to amaze you. Discover 
endless possibilities with a range 
of cameras to fit your preferences 
and combine them with host of 
attachments and accessories to 
follow you on your quests and 
activities.

The range of GoPro mounts and 
accessories means greater user 
compatibility, because there is no 
place the GoPro cannot go. 

The GoPro Hero series available at 
Abans ranges from the compact 
Hero Session Cameras to the 
mighty Hero4 Black cameras. 
The Hero family enables image 
capture at high definition and 
offers other hot button features 
that you cannot do without such 
as: more megapixels at a high 
frame-per-second rate, touch 
display and water proof up to 40 
meters (Water proof capabilities 
can be improved with a variety 
of aquatic attachments to allow 
recording under low visibility at 
greater depths).

The revolutionary GoPro 
Hero Cameras, Mounts and 
accessories are now available in 
Sri Lanka at Abans. 

HP Spectre
HP reimagined every element during the design of the HP Spectre to ensure the best user experience coupled 
with maximum performance. The result is a premium notebook PC that does not force users to compromise on 
style, function or performance with features. Its carbon fiber bottom creates a thin profile that is both durable 
and lightweight. High gloss copper accents reflect a hand-polished, jewelry-like finish and an innovative hidden 
piston hinge creates the illusion of a hinge-less design to offer an unmatched premium look-and-feel. An 
innovative hybrid battery split into two thinner pieces delivers the same wattage as a single battery for up to 
9 and half hours of battery life while enabling the world’s thinnest laptop. Full HD IPS edge-to-edge display 
featuring delivers a superb viewing experience for editing photos, perfecting a presentation, or watching a 
movie. The 13.3” diagonal HP Spectre is planned to be available at Abans in Sri Lanka from mid-August 2016
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Channel management strategy 

The Abans channel management objective is to enhance customer accessibility to Abans products, while 
maintaining optimum margins and minimising inventory costs. Our distribution network targets both 
institutional customers through wholesale channels, and households/individuals, through one of the largest 
retail networks in the country.

In the retail sector Abans has a strong presence in the traditional physical retail outlets format and also on 
the Internet. Our retail outlets are designed to cater to specific customer segments, with the Elite Showrooms 
targets high end consumers, while the Abans Duty Free targets the migrant working population.

Abans Channel Strategy

441 Abans showrooms and 23 Abans 
Elite Showrooms 

Penetrate  
B2B & B2C Markets

www.buyabans.com
Leader in online electronics & home 

appliances retail, 2015/16

Direct Channel 
(Wholesalers and Dealers)

B2C 

B2C 

B2B/ B2C

 

 
Channel Management

Expand  
Outlets 

Integrate  
ICTs

Invest in  
People 

Upgrade & 
Modernise

Develop Non-
Traditional 
Channels

Engage with 
Channel  
Partners

`` Expansion: We continued to expand our retail network by setting up Abans showrooms in strategic 
locations. We also expanded the retail space of selected existing showrooms to accommodate demand 
growth. During the current financial year, 35 new retail outlets and 75 dealers were added to the 
distribution network. We closed the year with 441 Abans showrooms and more than 700 dealers across 
the island. 

`` Invest in People: We have invested in experienced managers. We add value to our human resources 
by providing training in product features and correct product use. This leads to better sales and better 
management of hire purchase portfolios to minimise Non-Performing Loans at showroom level. 

`` Integrate ICTs: During the current year, we further improved our front end, showroom management system 
and human resource management system, to facilitate better monitoring of showroom financial status and 
inventory status. The system has also improved in terms of efficiency. 
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`` Upgrade and Modernise: We are in the process of upgrading and redesigning all our showrooms to reflect 
the distinct Abans brand image, as a modern and innovative retailer. 

`` 	Develop Non Traditional Channels: We are pleased to report that www.buyabans.com, the Abans website, 
saw a remarkable 258% growth in revenues, year-on-year, and was named the largest e-commerce site in 
the country in 2015/16 for electronics and home appliances, by www.amazon.com. The website currently 
markets nearly 80% of products offered by Abans and has a growing customer base of domestic and 
foreign residents. All purchases are delivered to buyers within five working days. We hope to improve 
e-commerce facilities further, in the new financial year, to enhance customer convenience. 

``  	Engage with Channel Partners: Abans authorised dealers are our retail business partners involved in 
marketing and selling products from the Abans portfolio. We maintain a close working relationship with 
our dealers and we appreciate their contributions through the Annual Abans Dealer Convention. This 
year, the Convention was held at Hotel Galadari Colombo where high performers were rewarded for their 
achievements.

Channel management strategy 
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Few moments from the Dealer Convention......
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ICT integration

Technology integration was a 
primary area of focus during 
the current financial year, as 
we continued to re-think our 
processes and re-engineer 
them onto digital platforms 
covering the entire length of the 
supply chain to generate higher 
returns for the Company and 
stakeholders. We are pleased to 
report that we have successfully 
migrated a major share of our 
front end operations, including 
customer interface points, onto 
digital platforms, enabling greater 
value for Abans customers. Our 
final objective is a ‘Convenient 
Retailing Model’ that makes 
all transactions easier for 
customers, including purchasing 
and support services.

By the end of the next financial 
year, we hope to further 
strengthen our entire supply 
chain from the point of import 
planning to after sales support, 
with use of technology. The 
initiatives will enable greater 
visibility along the supply chain 
and provide real time information 
and greater analytical power 
for managers. This will lead to 
stronger internal controls and 
governance improvements, 
coupled with opportunities 

for innovations and cost savings for the Company. Further, our ‘Convenient Retailing Model’ will have many 
value added services using latest technological trends and evolutions from the industry, for a better customer 
experience.

 

Customers

Enhance shopping 
convenience 

Increase access to after  
sales support services

Abans 
Convenient 

Retailing Model 
Suppliers Increased supplier  

engagement in our business

Employees
Improved HR management 
system with greater system 

access for employees

`` Online purchases

`` Online monitoring of 
repairs/servicing

`` Better transparency and 
strong relationships

`` Laptops and mobile devices, 
with facilities for online order 
processing and invoicing, quick 
access on product features and 
inventory status, up-to-date 
status on hire purchase and 
dealer payments and other 
relevant information.

	 Stakeholder Group	 System Improvement	 Benefits to Stakeholders

System Availability: We are pleased to report an almost zero down-time of the Abans PLC IT systems for the 
financial year which indicates the high reliability and accessibility of the system. This has increased the efficiency 
of back office functions, increasing our ability to generate value for all stakeholders. For greater control over 
the IT system and to facilitate capacity expansion in anticipation of future growth, the Company has shifted to 
appropriate environments. A disaster recovery system has been established to ensure uninterrupted business 
flow.

System Safety: The Abans ICT systems are regularly audited by internal auditors, and also external auditors for 
optimum performance and security standards.
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Customer engagement

As one of the oldest retailers of 
electronic consumer goods in 
the country, a key strength of 
the Abans Group is our ability to 
understand and even anticipate 
customer requirements in line 
with external changes. We 
systematically evaluate our 
product portfolio and inventories 
in line with consumer demand 
trends and other macro economic 
developments, to ensure that we 
are prepared to meet the needs 
of our customers.

Within the last few years we 
have realigned our product 
portfolio to provide Sri Lankan 
populations across the country 
with access to energy saving and 
environmentally friendly products 
in line with changes in energy 
costs, health and wellbeing 
products to support a healthy 
population and access to the 
latest technologies in the sector 
of ICTs.

During the current financial 
year we continued to respond 
to customer demand in terms 
of pricing, brands and product 
types. In addition, we have 
been strengthening our multiple 
customer engagement channels 
to enhance customer satisfaction 
by enabling feedback and 
support.

Customer Support
`` 24 hour Helpline 

Abans provides after sales service assistance for customers, island-wide, and outside working hours, 
through the Abans 24 hour assistance number 5-555-888.

`` Customer Call Center 
All incoming calls from across the island have been diverted to one number. This has helped improve 
customer related feedback through better coordination and faster responses.

`` Live Chat 
The Abans service center’s website, www.abanservice.lk provides instant access to support services, 
through an online chat facility.

`` Online Service Tracking 
For the first time in Sri Lanka, customers can now track online, the status of their goods submitted for 
repairs or servicing, through the ‘Check your job online,’ facility provided by Abans.

`` On-site Repairs 
A mobile service unit is maintained by Abans Service PLC, to conduct repairs and servicing ‘on site,’ at 
the residence or business premises of a customer. The mobile service can be utilised for minor repairs, 
where trained technicians will repair products in the Abans mobile unit. This saves valuable time and costs 
involved in transporting goods to service centres.

`` Abans Service Centres 
Currently Abans has 17 customer service outlets coming 
under Abans Electricals PLC. In addition, a network of 57 
franchise agents has been established to extend Abans 
customer care to rural customers.

1.	 Negombo
2.	 Galle
3.	 Matara
4.	 Batticaloa
5.	 Ampara
6.	 Trincomalee
7.	 Jaffna
8.	 Ratnapura
9.	 Vavuniya
10.	 Anuradhapura
11.	 Dambulla
12.	 Kandy
13.	 Badulla
14.	 Gampaha
15.	 Puttalam
16.	 Hambantota
17.	 Wellawatta - Head office
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Human Resource Management

Building Our Team
Our human resource base plays a central role in maintaining competitiveness and sustaining revenue and 
profit growth of the Company. Therefore, human resource management is a key strategic concern for Abans 
PLC.

During the current financial year we focused on four key areas to strengthen our team. They were;

`` The recruitment of suitable persons with the correct skills
`` Education and attitude to strengthen our team
`` Retaining our talent pool
`` Establishing a performance oriented culture
`` 	Enhancing productivity and efficiency by integrating people with ICTs.

Human Resource Strategic Priorities for the Year

Recruitment Building the Abans 
Team

Retention of 
Employees

Integrating People 
with IT

Establish a 
Performance Culture

Recruitments and Replacements
The workforce of Abans PLC continued to expand in the 2015/16 financial year to support the expansion of the 
Company, mainly in the retail sector, represented by a growing number of Abans showrooms. The total Abans 
workforce grew to reach 1,893 personnel with 433 new recruitments and replacements during this financial 
year. We continued our practice of accommodating youth as management trainees and interns.

Abans Employee Profile as at 31st March 2016
New Recruitments in 2015/16 (including replacements) 

Employee type Male Female Total

Permanent 179 48 227

Contract 73 111 184

Interns & Management Trainees 16 6 22

Total 268 165 433

Abans Human Resource 
Policy
Abans is an equal opportunity 
employer and as a policy does 
not tolerate discrimination or 
harassment, including sexual 
harassment, of employees.  

Abans Code of Conduct  
The Abans employee code 
of conduct and discipline 
is the basis for the 
organisation culture and 
employee behaviour.  The 
code is formally conveyed 
to all employees during 
their induction training to 
ensure that all employees 
are familiar with Company 
expectations of behaviour.
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Total Employees by Type of Contract as at 31st March 2016 

Employment type Male Female Total

Permanent 1,102 245 1,347

Contract 248 276 524

Interns & Management Trainees 16 6 22

Total 1,366 527 1,893
 
Total Employees by Employment Grade as at 31st March 2016 

Employee category Male Female Total

Executive 1,053 503 1,556

Middle management 70 12 82

Non - executive 224 6 230

Senior management 17 4 21

Top management 2 2 4

Total 1,366 527 1,893

Total Employees by Age as at 31st March 2016

Age No. of Employees

Above 60 17

60-50 81

50-40 236

40-30 712

30-20 824

Below 20 23

 Total 1,893

A majority of our employees (82%), are below the age of 40 years. We believe our young workforce makes the 
company more responsive and flexible, enabling faster responses to external changes.

Retaining Our Talent
`` 	Abans Buddy System: A significant new addition to our human resource management system was the 

introduction of a buddy system to support new recruits, trainees and interns. Given the rapid expansion of 
the Abans Group and the Company’s expanding branch network, we believe a mentoring mechanism, which 
facilitates a friendship based guidance process, will make it easier for new comers to become familiarised 
with Abans systems and procedures, and to integrate with the Abans corporate ethics and culture. Therefore, 
the existing 1 week induction programme was merged with a 1 month mentoring programme. 
 
While the Abans Buddy System is currently in its introductory stage, we are encouraged by the positive 
response from department heads and also new recruits, who have found it easier to adjust within their 
new work roles under the guidance of a colleague. 

Human Resource Management
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Human Resource Management

`` Improving Employee Retention : The mentoring system has contributed towards employee retention. The 
Company had experienced relatively high levels of attrition among new recruits with less than 1 year of 
service. Exit interviews indicated that this was largely due to lack of career focus and lack of exposure to 
work environments. Therefore, the Company has re-evaluated its recruitment processes, employee benefits 
and training and induction processes, to improve employee retention. The attrition rate has now begun 
reducing. We hope to contain attrition at below 15% by the end of the new financial year. 

Year Attrition Rate

2014/15 23-24%

2015/16 19-20%

2016/17 (Target) 15%

Currently 40% of our employees have been with the Company for over 5 years and we hope to increase this 
share over the next few years, by focusing on retention.

Total Employees by Years of Service 

No of Years of Service No of Employees 

Over 30 11

Between 30-25 5

Between 25-20 18

Between 20-15 72

Between 15 -10 182

Between 10-05 468

Below 05 1,137

Total 1,893

Establishing a Performance Culture
Abans is a Company built on a strong work ethic. Therefore, retaining this Company culture while diversifying 
and expanding deeper into the regions, is a priority. During the current year a number of steps were taken in 
this regard.

`` Setting Departmental KPIs: The process has been initiated to identify departmental and individual 
KPIs for the entire Abans Group based on corporate goals and objectives. The KPIs will be established 
in consultation with management, and will form the basis of performance evaluation and rewards of 
employees.

`` Improving the Performance Review Process: The annual performance review process was made more 
transparent and structured for greater objectivity and fairness in evaluating employee performance. A 
score card was developed with targeted performance criteria for each job category and the score card 
and criteria were conveyed to all employees. All employees and management are now aware of how they 
will be reviewed and how performance will be rated. The new mechanism has resulted in more balanced 
assessments of employees and a better understanding of training and development needs. During the 
year, 100% of permanent employees, of all grades, participated in performance reviews.

25%

4%

9%

2%

60%

Years of Service

Over 20
Between 15-20
Between 10-15
Between 05-10
Below 05
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Human Resource Management

`` Workplace health and Safety: Essential health and sanitation facilities are provided by the Company.
`` Employee training: The Abans Group invested LKR 10.8 Mn on employee training during the financial year 

2015/16, while Abans PLC, the trading arm of the Group, spent LKR 9.6 Mn on employee training. The 
training calendar was developed based on identified skill gaps in line with each Company’s growth targets.

Abans PLC Training Programmes in 2015/16

Training Programme No of Participants No. of Programmes

Dealer Trainings

Electronic Dealer Training 151 03

Duty free Dealer Training 59 02

Product Trainings

Air Conditioner & Technology 140 06

Televisions & Technology 43 01

Home Appliances 320 05

Audio Products 35 01

Mobile 1,063 32

Skills Development Training

Workshop on “Territory Management in Changing Business 
Environment”

51 01

In Store Management Training 474 11

IT Training for Back Office Executives 486 30

Out Bound Training 380 08

Regional Trainings

Regional Administration & Product Training 334 12

Total 3,536 112

Internships and Management Trainees
Abans recruits young professionals as interns and management trainees. Management trainees are exposed 
to the entire business process of the Company in the first year of training. The internship programme gives 
exposure to an industry based training. These trainees and interns will be absorbed into the permanent cadre 
of Abans PLC.

Integrating People with IT
During the current year we implemented an upgraded HRI system that now provides all executive staff with 
real time, online, access to human resource support services. Executive staff can now update their personal 
information and have access to information such as available days of leave and frequently used templates, 
such as leave applications. Employees can also obtain relevant approvals online, eliminating the need to travel 
to head office. The system has directly contributed to greater efficiencies by reducing human resource related 
administration work load and allowing employees to self administer their work related transactions. We hope 
to extend this system to all minor staff within the new financial year by setting up employee kiosks in strategic 
Abans premises.

Out bound Training

Product Trainings
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Human Resource Management

In addition, the new supply chain system inter-connects staff of Abans branches and head office and different departments, thereby significantly 
reducing manual paper work and eliminating duplication along the entire supply chain. The system is expected to generate significant cost 
advantages.

Employee Grievance Management
Abans has a formal grievance management process that facilitates a confidential domestic inquiry for any employee grievance. We strive to resolve 
grievances to the satisfaction of our employees to maintain a fair and equitable work environment. As at end March 2016, the Group had only 1 
formal employee grievance pending at the Labour Tribunal.

Grievance Handling Mechanism

Employee  
Grievance

Presented to 
Immediate Superior 

or Head of HR

Transfer to Legal 
Department

External  
Intervention

Labour Tribunal

IF Unresolved

IF Unresolved IF Unresolved

Abans Employee Benefits

Medical benefits Hospitalisation and O.P.D treatment expenses are reimbursed according to employee grades. 

Death and disease donations `` In the event of a death of an employee, the family receives LKR 100,000 and the employee is granted LKR 
25,000 in the case of a death of an immediate family member.

`` In the case of severe illness, undergoing an operation, or permanent disability, financial support is provided 
on a case by case basis. During the current year the Company supported a cancer patient with LKR 
100,000.

Insurance coverage `` All permanent employees are provided surgical and hospitalisation insurance coverage. 
`` Field staffs are provided personal accident insurance coverage. 

Special promotions for staff `` All Abans employees can purchase electronic and home appliances at a special discount. 
`` Staff members also receive concessions, discounts and easy payment schemes. 

Reimbursement of expenses `` Subscriptions on Professional Membership: In order to enrich their careers and retain employee capital 
within the organisation, Abans reimburses professional subscriptions.

`` Travel Expenses: Travel expenses for official purposes are reimbursed. In addition, vehicle maintenance, 
transport allowances and fuel allowances are provided depending on the employee grade.

`` Accommodation: Accommodation costs at company specified hotels, for field work, are reimbursed.
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Employee Events
The Company organises many employee events to encourage internal connectivity and cooperation. Some of the more significant events are 
presented below.

Human Resource Management

Flood Relief for Employees
During the floods of May 2016, 
Abans responded immediately 
by giving priority to assist Abans 
employees and their families 
who were affected. Abans also 
extended assistance to members 
of the public.

Donation of School Books
The Abans school book donation 
campaign, which was originally 
initiated to support the children 
of the Abans Group’s minor 
staff, was extended to children 
of all Abans employees. During 
the current year, the Abans 
Group donated school books to 
over 1,600 children of Abans 
employees. 

Abans Day
The 2015 Abans Day was held 
at BRC Grounds in August 2015 
with the participation of all Abans 
Group employees and their 
families. Employees with over 15 
years of service were honoured 
with gifts and certificates. 

Abans Assistants’ Day
Abans conducted Assistants’ Day 
for retail showroom staff and 
regional managers in various 
regions to enhance their team 
spirit, leadership abilities and 
cooperation.

Abans Basketball Team
The Abans basketball team 
participated in the Mercantile 
Basketball Association 
tournament.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Social responsibility is viewed as an integral element of conducting business operations where the company strives to improve quality of life of the 
people. The company is also highly conscious of its environmental obligations.

During the year, Abans has engaged with several community welfare and cultural events. A few of these events are described below. 

Supporting Flood Victims
During the floods of May 2016, 
Abans conducted a campaign to 
clean the homes of flood victims 
and repair their electronic items, 
free of charge.

Assistance for Chronic Kidney 
Patient
The Abans technical team 
installed an Enhanced RO 
Water Purifier at the home of a 
kidney patient in Ihalakotasa, 
Bakamuna, and made provisions 
for electricity bill payments for 
one year.

Thakshila Subani (46), a mother 
of two, suffers from chronic 
kidney disease due to lack of 
clean drinking water. The Abans 
intervention provides Thakshila 
and her children with access to 
clean drinking water. 

Helping Differently Abled 
Children
The Abans staff donated 
stationary, toys, cosmetics and 
other essentials to the disabled 
children’s shelter, “Sevana” 
Special School in Kotte.

Lunch for Seniors
The Abans Welfare Association 
provided lunch for the senior 
residents of the Gamini Matha 
elders’ home.

Dry Rations for Unprivileged 
Families
In December 2015, the Welfare 
Association of the Abans 
wholesale channel identified 
70 families from Kataragama, 
Okkampitiya and Kirinda and 
donated dry rations, clothes and 
stationery.

Bringing Happiness to Children
The Abans Welfare Association 
visited the Sri Jinananda 
Children's Home in Bambalapitiya 
and spent the day with the 
children, providing refreshments 
and making them smile.

Donation of Laptops
Laptops were donated to 
unprivileged students island 
wide, based on their educational 
performance at national exams. 

Blood Donation Campaign
Abans conducted a blood donation 
campaign in January 2016, for the 
10th consecutive year.

Abans Dansala
The Abans wholesale division 
conducted a cooked rice dansala 
for the 11th consecutive year, in 
June 2015.
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GOVERNANCE AND 
COMPLIANCE

“Abans helps me take my 
work on the go so that I can 
experience new things and 
achieve my goals. That’s what I 
call happiness.”
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of Abans 
PLC has pleasure in presenting 
the Annual Report and the 
Audited Financial Statements of 
the Company and its subsidiaries 
for the financial year ended 31st 
March 2016.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of Abans 
PLC are importing and marketing 
of electrical and electronic 
home appliances, crockery and 
cookware, sanitary and light 
fittings, a host of other household 
items and carrying out electro 
mechanical contract work and 
clearing and forwarding activities.

The Company has five 
Subsidiaries, one Joint Venture 
and one Associate Company and 
their activities are given on page 
77 of this Annual Report.

Business Review
A review of the financial and 
operational performance and 
future business developments 
of the group, sectors, and its 
business units are described in 
the Chairperson’s Message and 
the Management Discussion and 
Analysis sections of this Annual 
Report. These Reports together 
with the Audited Financial 
Statements reflect the state of 
affairs of the Group. Segment 
wise contribution to Group 
Revenue, Results, Assets and 
Liabilities are provided in Note 04 
to the Financial Statements.

Results and Appropriations
Revenue generated by the Company for the year under review amounted to LKR 27.5 Bn whilst Group Revenue 
amounted to LKR 35 Bn. Contribution to Group Revenue from the different business segments carried out by 
the five subsidiaries is provided in Note 14.2 to the Financial Statements.

Financial Statements and the Report of the Auditors
The Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2016 as approved by the Board 
of Directors on 8th of August 2016 are given on pages 69 to 136. The Auditors’ Report on the Financial 
Statements of the Group is given on page 69.

Accounting Policies
The Accounting Policies adopted in the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements are given on 
pages 77 to 94. There were no material changes in the Accounting Policies adopted by the Group during the 
year under review.

Investments
Total investments of the Company in its Subsidiaries, Associates, Equity investments and other Financial 
Instruments amounted to LKR 2,722,961,960. The details of the investments are given in Notes 13, 15, 16 
and 17 to the Financial Statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment
The Net Book Value of Property, Plant and Equipment as at year end amounted to LKR 1,103,049,733 and 
LKR 1,296,760,133 for the Company and the Group respectively. Total capital expenditure during the year for 
acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment by the Company and the Group amounted to LKR 147,488,466 
and LKR 260,121,313 respectively. Details of Property, Plant and Equipment are given in Notes 8, 10, 12 to 
the Financial Statements.

Stated Capital and Reserves
The Stated Capital of the Company as at 31st March 2016 was LKR 218,500,000 consisting of LKR 
216,000,000 ordinary voting and LKR 2,500,000 ordinary non-voting shares. The total Group Equity was  
LKR 7 Bn as at 31st March 2016.

Internal Control and Risk Management
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the Group’s system of internal control. The systems are 
designed to provide reasonable assurance that the assets of the Group are safeguarded and to ensure that 
proper accounting records are maintained. The Board of Directors having reviewed the system of internal 
control is satisfied with the systems and measures in effect at the date of signing this Annual Report.

Human Resources
The Company has an equal employment opportunity policy and these principles are enshrined in specific 
selection, training, development and promotion policies, ensuring that all decisions are based on merit. The 
Group practices equality of opportunity for all employees irrespective of ethnic origin, religion, political opinion, 
gender, marital status or physical disability. Further, the Company continued to develop the team and focus 
their contribution towards the achievement of corporate goals.
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors of the 
Company as at 31st March 2016 
and their brief profiles are given 
on pages 10 to 12. The following 
persons were the Directors of the 
Company as at 31st March 2016.

(a)	 Mrs. Aban Pestonjee - 
Chairperson

(b)	 Mr. Behman Pestonjee – 
Managing Director

(c)	 Mrs. Saroshi Dubash - 
Executive Director

(e)	 Mr. Rusi Pestonjee - Executive 
Director

(h)	 Mr. Hiran Embuldeniya- 
Independent Non-Executive 
Director

(i)	 Mr. Sriyan de Silva 
Wijeyeratne- Independent 
Non-Executive Director

Further, resolutions will be 
tabled at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting to re-elect Mrs. 
Aban Pestonjee, the Director who 
is above the age of 70 years and 
who is due to retire at the end 
of the Annual General Meeting 
in terms of Section 210 of the 
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.

Board Committees
The Board has appointed 
two Sub-Committees i.e. the 
Audit Committee and the 
Remuneration Committee. The 
composition and responsibilities 
of the said Committees are 
detailed in the respective reports.

Interest Register
The Company maintains an Interest Register in compliance with the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007. In 
compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, this Annual Report also contains particulars of 
entries made in the Interest Register.

Directors’ interest in Contracts
Directors’ interests in contracts are disclosed in the related party transactions under Note 34 to the Financial 
Statements.

Directors’ Shareholding
The shareholdings of the Directors of the Company as at 31st March 2016, and as defined under the Listing 
Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange are as follows. 

Name of the Director Shareholding

Ordinary Voting Shares Class B Ordinary 
Management Non-

voting shares

Total ordinary Shares 
(Voting & Non-Voting)

Number % Number % Number %

Aban Pestonjee 432,000 20% 5,000 20% 437,000 20%

Saroshi Dubash 432,000 20% 5,000 20% 437,000 20%

Rusi Pestonjee 432,000 20% 5,000 20% 437,000 20%

Behman Pestonjee 432,000 20% 5,000 20% 437,000 20%

Hiran Chaminda 
Embuldeniya

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

S. J. D. S. Wijeyeratne Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Total 1,728,000 20,000 1,748,000

Directors’ Remuneration
Directors’ remuneration is established within a framework approved by the Remuneration Committee. 
Directors’ remuneration in respect of the Company for the year is given in Note 34.5 to the Financial 
Statements.

Share Information
Information relating to earnings, dividends and net assets is given on pages 139 to 141. The distribution and 
the composition of major shareholdings are given on pages 139 to 140 of this Annual Report. 

Listed Debt
Information relating to the listed debentures is given on page 141.
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ANNUAL REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Corporate Governance
The Board of Directors has 
endeavored to ensure that 
the Company has complied 
with the Listing Rules of the 
Colombo Stock Exchange and 
the Code of Best Practices on 
Corporate Governance issued 
by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of Sri 
Lanka. Directors are committed 
towards the furtherance of 
Corporate Governance principles 
of the Company. The measures 
taken in this regard are set out 
in the Corporate Governance 
Report on pages 51 to 66 of 
this Annual Report. Further, 
the Directors declare that the 
Company has not engaged in 
any activity which contravenes 
laws and regulations. All material 
interests in contracts involving 
the Company have been declared 
by the Directors and they have 
refrained from voting on matters 
in which they were materially 
interested. The Company has 
made all endeavors to ensure 
the equitable treatment of 
shareholders, the business 
is a going concern, and a 
review of internal controls 
covering financial, operational 
and compliance controls and 
risk management has been 
conducted. The Directors have 
obtained a reasonable assurance 
of their effectiveness and 
successful adherence.

Statutory Payments
The Board of Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge, all taxes, duties and levies payable by the 
Company and its Subsidiaries, all contributions, levies and taxes payable on behalf of, and in respect of the 
employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries, and all other known statutory dues as were due and payable 
by the Company and its Subsidiaries as at year end have been paid or, where relevant provided for.

Auditors
Messrs. Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants are deemed re-appointed in terms of Section 158 of the 
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 as the Auditors of the Company. A resolution to authorise the Directors to 
determine the remuneration of the Auditors will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Total audit fees paid to Messrs. Ernst & Young by the Company and its Subsidiaries are disclosed in Note 25 
to the Financial Statements. The Auditors of the Company and its Subsidiaries have confirmed that they do not 
have any relationship with the Company or its subsidiaries (other than the Auditor) that would have an impact 
on their independence.

Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting will be held at Head Office, Abans PLC, on 27th September 2016 at 2.00 PM. The 
Notice of Meeting appears in the supplementary information section of the comprehensive Annual Report. This 
Annual Report is signed for and on behalf of the Board of Directors.

By Order of the Board

Varners International (Pvt.) Ltd.
Company Secretaries,

Level 14, West Tower,
World Trade Centre,
Echelon Square,
Colombo 01.
8th August 2016
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY

The following statement sets out 
the responsibility of Directors 
in relation to the financial 
statements of the Company 
and group. The responsibility of 
independent auditors in relation 
to the financial statements 
prepared in accordance with the 
provision of Companies Act No. 
07 of 2007 (“the Act”) and SLFRS 
is set out in the independent 
auditors’ report.

The financial statements 
comprise:

`` 	Statement of profit and loss 
and other comprehensive 
income, which present a true 
and fair view of the profit and 
loss of the Company and the 
group for the financial year; 
and

`` Statement of financial 
position, which presents a 
true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Company and 
the group as at the end of 
the financial year and which 
comply with the requirements 
of the Act and SLFRS.

The Directors are required to 
ensure that, in preparing these 
financial statements:

`` Appropriate accounting 
policies have been selected 
and applied in a consistent 
manner and material 
departures if any, have been 
disclosed and explained.

`` All applicable accounting standards (SLFRS/LKAS) issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 
Lanka, as relevant have been followed.

`` Judgments and estimates have been made which are reasonable and prudent.

The Directors are also required to ensure that the Company and the group have adequate resources to 
continue in operation to justify applying the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements.

Further, the Directors have a responsibility to ensure that the Company maintains sufficient accounting records 
to disclose, with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the Company and of the group and to ensure 
that the financial statements presented comply with the requirements of the Act.

The Directors are also responsible for taking reasonable steps to safeguard the assets of the Company and of 
the group and in this regard, to give proper consideration to the establishment of appropriate internal control 
systems with a view to preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

The internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established 
policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed. However, there are inherent limitations that 
should be recognised in weighing the assurance provided by any system of internal controls and accounting.

The Audit Committee of the Company meets periodically with the internal auditors and the independent 
external auditors to review the manner in which these auditors are performing their responsibilities and 
to discuss auditing, internal control and financial reporting issues. To ensure complete independence, 
the independent auditors and the internal auditors have full and free access to the members of the Audit 
Committee to discuss any matter of substance.

The Directors are required to prepare the financial statements and to provide the independent external 
auditors with every opportunity to take whatever steps and undertake whatever inspections that they may 
consider to be appropriate to enable them to give the independent auditors’ opinion.

The Directors are of the view that they have discharged their responsibilities as set out in this statement.

Compliance Report
The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge, all taxes, duties and levies payable by the Company 
and its subsidiaries, all contributions, levies and taxes payable on behalf of and in respect of employees of the 
Company and its subsidiaries and all other known statutory dues as were due and payable by the Company 
and its subsidiaries as at the reporting date have been paid or where relevant provided for.

By order of the Board,

Varners International (Pvt.) Ltd.
Company Secretaries
8th August 2016
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Audit Committee Report

Role of the Committee
Audit Committee is a sub-
Committee of the Board of 
Directors and it is accountable 
to the Board. The Committee is 
chaired by Mr. Hiran Embuldeniya 
and consists of one other 
Independent Non-Executive 
Director Mr. Sriyan de Silva 
Wijeyeratne.

The Committee is responsible 
for supporting the Board in 
ensuring that the Group’s financial 
results, internal controls and 
risk management are effectively 
managed in line with the best 
practices and in compliance with 
the accounting standards of the 
institute of chartered accountants 
of Sri Lanka, requirements of the 
listing rules of the Colombo Stock 
Exchange and other relevant 
laws and regulations. In addition, 
the Committee considers the 
contents of internal and external 
audit reports and recommends 
the appointment of the external 
auditors.

The Audit Committee obtains 
representations from the Head of 
Finance and Chief Internal Auditor 
on the adequacy and effectiveness 
of internal control systems.

Meetings
During the year, the Audit 
Committee met five times. The 
attendance of the members at 
these meetings were as follows:

Mr. Hiran Embuldeniya	 4/5
Mr. Sriyan de Silva Wijeyeratne	 4/5

The Executive Director Mrs. Saroshi Dubash, the Head of Finance, Chief Internal Auditor and Senior Managers 
of the company’s External Auditors, Messrs Ernst & Young also attended most of these meetings by invitation. 
Further members of the management of the company were invited to participate in the meeting as and when 
the necessity arose.

Financial Reporting and Audit
The independent Auditors are responsible for auditing the annual consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and ensuring that the financial statements truly and 
fairly present the results of operations and the financial position of the Company. The independent auditors 
are also responsible for issuing a report on those financial statements. The Audit Committee monitors and 
oversees these processes.

The Committee also reviewed and discussed with the External Auditor and management, the matters 
communicated to the Committee in the management letter. The Committee suggested remedial action as 
required based on the recommendations of the External Auditor.

The Committee carried out an evaluation of the External Auditors to establish their independence and 
objectivity. The evaluation included the review of policies and procedures to ensure independence as well as a 
review of the non-audit services provided by the Auditors to Abans PLC. As part of this review the engagement 
partner has been replaced by rotation. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that 
Ernst and Young be reappointed as Auditors for the financial year ending 31st March 2016.

Internal Audit, Risks and Controls
The Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls and corporate risks which 
are under the purview of the Chief Internal Auditor to provide reasonable assurance that there is no material 
misstatement or loss, the Group’s assets are safeguarded and the financial information used within the 
business and for external reporting is reliable.

The Audit Committee receives regular reports on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls in the 
Group, compliance with laws and regulations and established policies and procedures of the Group. During the 
course of the year, the Committee followed up on the treasury management review conducted in the previous 
year and monitored progress made in implementing the recommendations.

The Chief Internal Auditor prepared an annual internal audit plan which was approved by the Committee and 
has direct access to the chairman of the Audit Committee.

On behalf of the Board Audit Committee,

Hiran Embuldeniya
Chairman
8th August 2016
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BOARD REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Role of the Committee:
The Committee is entrusted with 
the responsibility to evaluate, 
assess, decide and recommend, 
to the Board of Directors, on 
any matters that may affect 
the remuneration structure 
and policies of the company. 
The Committee reviews the 
remuneration and other benefits 
of personnel, along with the 
Recruitment and Performance 
Appraisal process. This is 
with the objective of ensuring 
that the company is geared 
to attract, grow and retain 
Employees with appropriate 
skills and competencies, who 
could further the key objectives 
of the company. The Committee 
also reviews the policies and 
parameters of the remuneration 
structure for staff members and 
provides inputs on implementing 
the same.

Members
The Board Remuneration 
Committee comprises the 
following personnel:
Mr. Sriyan de Silva Wijeyeratne	
-Chairman (Independent Non-
Executive Director)
Mr. Hiran Embuldeniya	
- Independent Non-Executive 
Director

The committee met on three occasions during the year under review and all members attended the meetings. 
The Executive Director, General Managers and the DGM-HR attended by invitation.

Remuneration and Benefits provided
The remuneration provided to employees consists of a Fixed Basic salary component and allowances, and 
a variable portion which is conditional upon performance of the company and the individual. Employees 
also enjoy other benefits such as medical and travel etc where applicable, and in keeping with the market 
practices. No remuneration is paid to the Non-Executive Directors other than the Directors fees paid for 
participation at Board meetings.

The committee reviewed information in related to remuneration and retention ratios of staff members with 
the objective of introducing individual performance reviews which are more closely linked to the corporate 
objectives, as that it could help with the retention of key personnel. The committee also assessed and made 
recommendations on Annual Increments and bonuses, where required.

Conclusion
Following the discussions at Committee meetings, the Chairman of the Committee reports to the Board on 
the Committee’s findings and recommendations, on matters related to Remuneration and Performance 
Management. The Committee is satisfied that the company follows appropriate recruitment, appraisal, and 
remuneration policies and procedures, which reasonably ensure that the Human Capital of the company is 
retained and developed. There is severe competition for talent in the market and the company will need to 
continually evolve in this area, to keep abreast with the growth aspirations of the organisation.

Sriyan de Silva Wijeyeratne
Chairman,
Remuneration Committee
8th August 2016
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The governance structure of the Group is diagrammatically depicted below:
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The Audit Committee takes steps to verify the integrity of financial information and internal controls through 
reviews carried out by both external and internal audits.

Remuneration Committee assists the Board in setting the levels and structure for remuneration of executive 
directors and senior management benchmarking on the industry standards and the remuneration and 
employment policies of the Abans Group.

Attendance at Board Meetings
The Board of Directors performs the role of leading the Company primarily through participation in Board 
meetings and Board Sub-Committee meetings. The Board and the Committees constructively use the time and 
agenda of these meetings to perform their roles effectively.

Corporate Governance

The Board is committed 
to maintaining the highest 
standards of corporate 
governance across all activities 
of the Company. The purpose of 
governance is to create long-
term sustainable shareholder 
value through effective and 
prudent management. The 
principal duties of the Board 
include formulating business 
strategies and overseeing 
their implementation by the 
management with proper 
controls to manage risks. The 
Board is focused on ensuring 
that the Company operates in 
conformity with applicable laws 
and regulations and that all 
material operations are subject 
to effective internal controls 
and significant risks managed 
properly.

The Board has appointed two 
sub-committees to assist it in 
the performance of its duties. 
These committees, which 
include the Audit Committee 
and Remuneration Committee, 
function within the mandates 
approved by the Board. The 
committees have an appropriate 
balance of skills, expertise, and 
independence to discharge their 
responsibilities effectively. The 
structure and operations of these 
committees are illustrated in this 
report.
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The attendance of the directors at meetings of the Board and the Sub-committees during the year is detailed below

Name of the Director

Main Board Audit Committee  
Meetings

Remuneration  
Committee Meetings 

Eligible to 
Attend

Attended Eligible to 
Attend

Attended Eligible to 
Attend

Attended

1. Aban Pestonjee 4 4  -  -  -  - 

2. Saroshi Dubash 4 3 - -  -  - 

3. Rusi Pestonjee 4 4  -  -  -  - 

4. Behman Pestonjee 4 3  -  -  -  - 

5. Hiran Chaminda Embuldeniya 4 3 5 4 3 3

6. S. J. D. S Wijeyeratne 4 3 5 4 3 3

Governance Practices Adopted by Abans
The Board is headed by the Chairman who is responsible for overseeing the Board and ensuring its effectiveness on all aspects of its role. The Board 
is collectively responsible for the long-term success of Abans.

The Board consists of an Executive Director, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors who contribute different perspectives to its decision-
making process. The composition of the Board complies with the corporate governance directives CSE and CA Sri Lanka “Code of Best Practice”.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and the Corporate Management. The Board is responsible for setting the strategic 
direction and ensuring that the underlying objectives are achieved by the management as per the Board approved policies and plans.

Relations with the Shareholders
The Chairman ensures that the views of the major shareholder are communicated to the Board. The major shareholders are represented on the 
Board and get an intimate understanding of matters pertaining to the governance and strategy of Abans. The Non-Executive Directors are provided 
with the opportunity to attend meetings with the Board of Directors of Abans. This creates a forum for the directors to maintain a dialogue on matters 
of interest to shareholders.

Corporate Governance
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Corporate Governance

Stakeholder Engagement
The stakeholder engagement is a key component of a sustainable business and responsible corporate management. Abans PLC gives due 
importance to expectations and opinions of all stakeholders and develop engagement strategies with them. The key stakeholders of Abans PLC and 
the methods of engagement with them are presented below.

Stakeholder Method of Engagement Frequency Key Topics Discussed

Shareholders and 
Investors

Annual and Extraordinary General Meetings Annual /When required
`` Financial performance
`` Distribution of profits
`` Business plans and strategies

Circulation of Annual Reports Annual

Colombo Stock Exchange announcements Quarterly/When required

Updates on the Corporate Website Continuous

Customers

Direct interaction through business units Continuous
``  Products, services, promotions
`` Service standard improvement
`` After Sales Service

Client visits, business promotion meetings Continuous

Marketing communication and product advertising Continuous

Updates on the Corporate Website Continuous

Employees

Human Resources Portal (HR Portal), emails Continuous
`` Financial performance
`` Policies and procedures
`` Training requirements

Staff performance review engagements Annually

Employee training workshops and seminars Continuous

Informal get-togethers ( Abans Day) Annually

Government
Direct interaction with Government Department, 
Authorities and Local Governments 

Continuous `` Compliance with Government Rules
`` Financial performance

Suppliers
Meeting with suppliers, contractors, and Banks Monthly / Quarterly `` Compliance with rules

`` Statutory reportingPress notices calling for quotations tenders As an when required

Community
Direct interactions in CSR engagements Continuous `` CSR initiatives Environmental, 

community and social issues.
`` Products responsibilitiesAbans website, information briefings, sponsorships. Continuous

Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance
We set out below, the corporate governance practices adopted and practiced by the Company, the extent of adoption of the code of Best Practice on 
Corporate Governance issued in year 2013 jointly by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and Securities of Exchange Commission of 
Sri Lanka and the Rules set out in Section 7.10 of the Colombo Stock Exchange Listing Rules on Corporate Governance.
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Corporate Governance
Principles

Reference to
SEC & ICASL Code

Adoption
Status

Extent of Adoption (2015/2016 )

Section 1

The company :

A. Directors
1. The Board

Principle- A.1 Adopted The profile of the Board and Corporate management is provided on pages 10 to 12.

Board Meetings Code – A.1.1 Adopted During the financial year 2015/16 a total of four Board meetings were held by Abans 
PLC.

Details of Board meetings and Board Sub Committee Meetings are given on page 52 
of this Annual Report.

2. Responsibilities of the 
Board

Code – A.1.2 Adopted The Board takes responsibility for setting the overall strategy and level of risk 
appetite in governing affairs of the company and approves capital and operating 
plans presented by management for the achievement of the strategic objectives it 
has set.

3. Compliance with 
laws and access to 
independent professional 
advice

Code – A.1.3 Adopted The Board affirms collectively, and also the Directors individually, their duty to abide 
by the laws of this land for the prudent conduct of affairs of the company is given in 
page 48 by the Board of Directors.

4. Company Secretary Code – A.1.4 Adopted All Directors have access to the Company Secretary. The company Secretary 
coordinates scheduling of Board meetings and other Sub –Committee meetings, 
keeping minutes, and other relevant records

5. Independent judgment Code –A.1.5 Adopted Each Director brings independent judgment to bear on issues that are discussed at 
the Board and by having meetings of the Board, equal opportunity is available for 
Directors to express their views independently.

6. Dedicating time and 
effort

Code A.1.6 Adopted During financial year 2015/16 a total of four Board meetings were held by Abans 
PLC.

All Non-Executive Directors have attended majority of the meetings and have 
devoted their time adequately.

Information pertaining to Director participation levels at Board meeting and Board 
subcommittee meeting are given on page 52.

7. Training needs of 
Directors

Code – A.1.7 Adopted The Directors are given opportunity to having sufficient exposure, expertise in their 
relevant areas to fulfill their duties and responsibilities owing to the Board.

A.2 Chairperson and Chief 
Executive Officer

8. Keeping separate the 
role of Chairperson and 
Chief Executive

Principle A.2

Code A.2.1

Adopted

Adopted

Chairperson is providing leadership for governing Board activity and discharging 
Board functions.

All the executive responsibilities for the overall management of the company are 
held with Managing Director. (No separate Chief Executive Officer).

Corporate Governance
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Principles

Reference to
SEC & ICASL Code

Adoption
Status

Extent of Adoption (2015/2016 )

A.3 Chairperson’s role

9. Chairperson’s role 
in conducting Board 
proceedings

Principle A.3

Code A.3.1

Adopted

Adopted

Mrs. Aban Pestonjee, the Chairperson of the Board is an Executive Director who 
demonstrates leadership to the Board by discharging Board functions effectively, 
and prudently.

Being the founder with years of experience behind her, the Chairperson is able to 
properly conduct in Board matters. She can obtain advice from across the Board 
considering the well-blended knowledge and experience of Abans PLC’s Directors.

A.4. Financial acumen

10. Availability of sufficient 
financial wisdom and 
knowledge within the 
Board

Principle – A.4 Adopted The Board is equipped with qualified Directors in the field of Finance and 
accountancy and possesses the necessary financial wisdom.

Board has the privilege of having Directors who possesses qualifications in the field 
of finance and accountancy to obtain advice and guidance.
Finance Division is also well equipped in financial capabilities having qualified 
Chartered Accountants and experienced personnel to support the Board of 
Directors.

A.5 Board Balance

11.Presence of Non- 
Executive Directors

12. Independent Directors

13.Criteria for evaluating 
Independence of Non- 
Executive Directors

14. Signed independence 
declaration by the Non- 
Executive Directors

15. Determination of 
independence of Non –
Executive Directors

Principle - A.5

Code A.5.1

Code A.5.2

Code A.5.3

Code –A 5.4

Code –A 5.5

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

As per Corporate Governance Direction issued by CSE and ICASL, Abans PLC Board 
maintained the required Board balance right throughout the FY 2015/16, keeping 
proper checks and balance between Executive and Non-Executive Directors.

Two out of six Directors on Abans PLC Board are Non-Executive Directors. The ratio 
of 1/3rd maintained since June 2014, fulfills minimum requirement prescribed by 
the code.

Both Non – Executive Directors are independent in terms of the criteria defined by 
CSE rule 7.10.4 on corporate governance, fulfills the minimum guidelines prescribed 
by the code.

The Independent Non – Executive Directors complied with independence criteria 
stipulated by the SEC and ICASL guidelines during financial year 2015/16.

Each Non-Executive Director of the company has made written submissions as to 
their independence as per schedule J of the code.

Based on the written submissions made by the following Non-Executive Directors as 
per code, the Board deems the said Directors “Independent” as at 31st March 2016.

Mr. H. C. Embuldeniya
Mr. S. J. D. S. Wijeyeratne
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Principles

Reference to
SEC & ICASL Code

Adoption
Status

Extent of Adoption (2015/2016 )

16. Appointment of an 
alternate Director by a 
Non- Executive Director

17. Senior Independent 
Director (SID )

18. Confidential 
discussion with SID

19. Meeting of Non- 
Executive Directors

20. Recording of concerns 
in Board minutes

Code A 5.6

Code A.5.7

Code A.5.8

Code A 5.9

Code A 5.10

N/A

N/A

N/A

Not
Adopted

Adopted

Not applicable as no Alternate Director was appointed during 2015/16.

Chairperson’s and Managing Director’s roles have been separated w.e.f 08.07.2014 
and therefore no requirement to appoint a Senior Independent Director.

Please see Code – A.5.7 above.

No  meeting of Non-Executive Directors was held during the period.

Company Secretary records any concerns raised by the Directors during the year in 
Board minutes with sufficient details.

A.6. Supply of Information

21. Information to the 
Board by management

22. Adequate time for 
effective meetings

Principle - A.6

Code A 6.1

Code A 6.2

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Agenda together with high quality information is circulated seven days prior to the 
Board meeting to discharge the Board obligations effectively as a practice.

Board receives adequate information by the Management on a timely manner. The 
Board receives regular reports and presentations on strategies and developments in 
relation to its business lines and performance.

Executive Directors constantly briefed the Board on the functional areas of Revenue, 
Finance and Recoveries that they oversee. The Board on other functional matters 
deals with the Managing Director or the heads of those respective departments 
when necessary.

A.7 Appointments to the 
Board

23. Nominations 
Committee

24. Board assessment 
by the Nominations 
Committee

Principle– A.7

Code A.7.1

Code A.7.2

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Although the formal Nomination committee is not formed by the Board, new 
appointments are decided based on consent of the chairperson and all Board of 
Directors and the final decision is made by the Board.

All new appointments to the Board are considered and recommended by the Board 
as a whole in an objective and transparent manner

Board as a whole carried out an annual assessment of Abans PLC Board’s 
Composition to assess the level of skills, experience, qualifications, and knowledge 
of the Board members’ address the growing strategic needs of the Company.
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Principles

Reference to
SEC & ICASL Code

Adoption
Status

Extent of Adoption (2015/2016 )

25. Disclosure of 
appointments to 
shareholders

Code A.7.3 Adopted All new Board appointments as it happens are communicated to shareholders 
via the Colombo Stock Exchange. A brief summary of the new Director appointed 
including the qualifications, experiences, names of the companies in which the 
Director holds directorships, and memberships in Board Sub Committees is usually 
given in the Annual Report.

A.8 Re - election

26. Appointment of Non- 
Executive Directors

27. Election of Directors by 
Shareholders

Principle – A.8

Code A.8.1.

Code A.8.2

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

In terms of the Article 5.4 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Executive 
Directors are not whilst holding that office be subject to retirement by rotation or  
taken into account for determining the rotation of retirement of directors.  Therefore 
there are two Non-Executive Directors of the Board who will be eligible for rotation of 
whom one of them will be re-elected at the next Annual General Meeting.

As explained in A.8 above 

As explained in A.8 above

A.9 Appraisal of Board 
performance

28. Appraisal of Board 
performance

29. Annual self- 
assessment of the Board 
and its committees

30. Disclosure of method 
of appraisal

Principle A.9

Code – A.9.1

Code – A.9.2

Code – A.9.3

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

The performance of the Board and sub- committee is reviewed and evaluated by the 
Board and Chairperson based on self- appraisal basis

As explained in principle A.9 above.

Please see A.9.1 above.

Please see A.9.1 above.

A.10 Disclosure of 
information on Directors

31. Director information

Principle A.10

Code – A.10.1

Adopted

Adopted

Information pertaining to all Abans PLC Directors is made available to the 
shareholders through the Annual report.

Information pertaining to Directors are provided on pages 10 to 12.
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Principles

Reference to
SEC & ICASL Code

Adoption
Status

Extent of Adoption (2015/2016 )

A.11 Appraisal of the 
Chief Executive Officer

32. Targets for Managing 
Director

33. Evaluation of MD’s 
performance

Principle A.11

Code A.11.1

Code A.11.2

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

The Chairperson and other Board members reviewed performance of the Managing 
Director and as a formality the Remuneration Committee carried out a formal 
evaluation to decide his remuneration package, and changes thereof.

Being the apex chief executive of the company the Managing Director is entrusted 
by the Board to conduct day to day operations effectively to attain broad strategic 
targets/ goals.

The performance of the MD is evaluated in relation to achievement of business 
targets.

B. Directors remuneration
B.1 Remuneration 
procedure

34. Remuneration 
Committee

35. Remuneration 
Committee composition

36. Remuneration of Non- 
executive Directors

37. Remuneration 
Committees access to 
Managing Director and 
professional advice

Principle B.1

Code – B.1.1

Code B.1.2

Code B.1.3

Code B.1.4

Code B. 1.5

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

No Director is involved in deciding his or her own remuneration package.

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee authorised to evaluate, 
assess, decide and recommend, to the Board, Executive Directors remuneration as 
per the Terms and Reference of the Remuneration Committee.

Remuneration Committee comprises of all Non-Executive Directors and the 
Chairman of the Committee is Mr. S. J. D. S. Wijeyeratne

The report of the Remuneration Committee is given on Page 50 to the annual 
report. The Remuneration Committee composition and details of meetings held and 
participation status is given on page 52.

The Board has the authority on deciding the Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration 
packages which is made as a collective decision. The Non- Executive Directors are 
paid a fee for attending Board or other Committee meetings or carrying out other 
Non- executive duties based on their responsibilities assigned.

When deciding on remuneration of Executive Directors, the Committee also obtains 
advice from the Managing Director as necessary
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Principles

Reference to
SEC & ICASL Code

Adoption
Status

Extent of Adoption (2015/2016 )

B.2 The level and make up 
of remuneration structure

38. Managing Director’s 
remuneration

39. Comparison of 
remuneration with other 
Institutions

40. Remuneration 
comparison with other 
group companies

41. MD’s performance 
related payments

42. Executive share 
options

43. Deciding Executive 
Director Remuneration

44. Early terminations 
clauses in service contract 
of Directors

45. Early terminations of 
Directors

46. Level of Remuneration 
of Non-Executive Directors

Principle B.2

Code B.2.1

Code B.2.2

Code B.2.3

Code B.2.4

Code B.2.5

Code B.2.6

Code B.2.7

Code B.2.8

Code B.2.9

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

N/A

Adopted

N/A

N/A

Adopted

The Board together with the Remuneration Committee aims to attract retain and 
motivate high caliber individuals for top executive positions.

The Remuneration Committee makes assessment on the sufficiency of  
remuneration of Executive Directors  to ensure a strategy of retention.  Executive 
Director including performance of Managing Director is evaluated annually and 
suitable remuneration levels are decided by the Committee. 

When positioning remuneration levels relative to other companies in the industry, 
Remuneration Committee reviews the  information related to the Executive Directors 
pay level against the industry.

Executive Directors represent other companies within the group.

Please refer principle B.2 and Code B.2.1 above.

There was no executive share options scheme offered to any Director during 
2015/16 period.

Please see comments given in Principle B.2 for details on Executive Director 
Remuneration.

Not applicable to the Board.

In an event of early termination of a director, the remuneration will be concluded 
based on the scenario occurred.

The Non- Executive Directors are paid a fee for their services as mentioned in Code 
B.1.4.
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Principles

Reference to
SEC & ICASL Code

Adoption
Status

Extent of Adoption (2015/2016 )

B.3 Disclosure of 
remuneration

47. Names of members 
in the Remuneration 
Committee and 
remuneration paid to 
Directors

Principle B.3

Code – B.3.1

Adopted

Adopted

The Remuneration Committee operates within agreed terms of reference and is 
committed to the principles of accountability and transparency.

Details of Remuneration Committee composition with meetings held and 
participation status of members is provided on page 52.

“Related Party Disclosure Note” on pages 133 to 136 is in the notes to financial 
statements provides information on remuneration paid to Executive and Non-
Executive Directors in aggregate.

C. Relations with 
shareholders

C.1 Constructive use of 
AGM

48. Level of proxies at 
AGM’s

49. Propose separate 
resolutions for each 
separate issue

50. Availability of 
Chairperson’s of all Board 
Sub-Committees at AGM’s

51. Adequate notice of the 
AGM

52. Voting procedures at 
General Meetings

Principle C

Principle C.1

Code - C.1.1

Code – C.1.2

Code – C.1.3

Code – C.1.4

Code – C.1.5

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Abans PLC’s Board facilitates effective communication with shareholders by holding 
the Annual General Meeting. Directors are expected to take a positive approach to 
views of all shareholders during such meetings.

AGM will be held on 27/09/2016 and all shareholders are encouraged to 
participate at the AGM.

Proxy forms are made available in the Annual report that is released with adequate 
prior notice to all shareholders in accordance with Companies Act.

Company passed separate resolutions for the adoption of the “Report of the 
Directors” and “Statement of Financial report and the Report of the Auditors” 
included in the Annual Report.

All Board members which include Chairpersons of all the Board Sub committees, 
namely, Audit Committee, and Remuneration Committee are presented at the AGM 
to answer any questions coming under the purview of their Committee.

For the previous financial period, the Annual report of FY 2014/15 was submitted to 
the Colombo Stock Exchange on 24/08/2015 and was delivered to all shareholders 
on same day. Abans PLC’s AGM was held on 23/09/2015.

Voting procedures at the General Meetings are circulated to the shareholder.
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Principles

Reference to
SEC & ICASL Code

Adoption
Status

Extent of Adoption (2015/2016 )

C.2 Communication with 
Shareholders

53. Channel to reach 
all shareholders of the 
Company

54.Disclousure of 
the shareholder 
Communication Policy, 
Methodology and 
Implementation

55. Disclosure of Contact 
person for shareholders

56. Process to make 
aware of major issues and 
concerns of shareholders

57. Person to Contact in 
relation to shareholders 
matters

58. Responding process of 
shareholder matters

Principle C.2

Code- C.2.1

Code- C.2.2 & C2.3

Code- C.2.4

Code – C.2.5

Code – C.2.6

Code- C.2.7

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Extensive financial and non-financial information of company’s activities are 
provided to shareholders through the Annual report and the Interim Reports 
published on a quarterly basis.

Formal communications with the shareholders are conducted through Notices 
to shareholders, Annual Report and Quarterly Financial Statements, and general 
meetings of shareholders. All the financial information such as Annual Reports, 
Interim reports are made available to shareholders via CSE website.

The Communication Policy is implemented through exchange Memos, Electronic 
Mails, Board Papers and Presentations.

As per the general practice of the company, main point of contact for the 
shareholders for their concerns and clarification is the board of directors.

Material issues and concerns of the shareholders are communicated to the Board 
by management of the company and family directors hold weekly meetings to 
discuss business matters.

The Chairman, MD, Directors, Company Secretary and key management personnel 
is designated as contact persons on shareholder matters.

According to Abans PLC’s “Communication Policy”, all shareholders related material 
matters are handled promptly and attentively by the Board upon being informed.

C.3 Major transactions

59. Disclose material facts 
of major transactions

Principle – C.3

Code - C.3.1

Adopted

Adopted

Abans PLC Board has established a process to capture and disclose any material 
transactions proposed that would alter or vary the net asset position of Company 
either through its audited financial statements or in interim publication or by making 
announcement to the Colombo Stock Exchange.

Material related party transaction or corporate transactions involving acquisitions, 
mergers or disposal, which materially affect Abans PLC net assets position, are 
disclosed on pages 133 to 136.
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Corporate Governance
Principles

Reference to
SEC & ICASL Code

Adoption
Status

Extent of Adoption (2015/2016 )

60. Balanced and 
understandable 
assessment of the 
company

61. Directors Report

62.Directors’ and Auditors’
Responsibility statement

63.Management 
Discussions
and Analysis

64. Directors’ affirmation 
of going concern

65. Calling of an EGM 
when net assets fall below 
50% of shareholders’ 
funds

66.Adequacy and accuracy 
of related third party 
transaction disclosures

Code – D.1.1

Code – D.1.2

Code – D.1.3

Code – D.1.4

Code – D.1.5

Code – D.1.6

Code – D.1.7

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Regulatory interim publication format and the applicable accounting standards are 
compiled by the Abans PLC

The Annual Report of the Board of Directors (Directors’ Report) provided on pages 
45 to 46 gives an affirmation on Company’s compliance to laws and regulations, 
confirms the going concern assumption and the effectiveness of Internal Control 
System that is in place.

Statement of Directors’ responsibility for Financial Reporting given on page 48 
provides a statement setting out the responsibilities of the Board for the preparation 
and presentation of the Financial Statements.

As per Code –D.1.4 management commentary covering all requirements is given on 
pages 13 to 42 in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”, which comprises the 
sustainability section as well.

The Annual Report of the Board of Directors provides disclosure affirming the 
going concern of the company, after drawing attention to aspects mentioned in the 
schedule G of the Code.

A situation of a serious loss of capital is unlikely to arise.

An adequate and accurate disclosure of related party transactions is given in Note 
34 to the Financial Statements on pages 133 to 136.
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Corporate Governance
Principles

Reference to
SEC & ICASL Code

Adoption
Status

Extent of Adoption (2015/2016 )

D.2 Internal Controls-
Maintaining a sound 
system of internal 
controls

67. Reviewing 
effectiveness of internal 
control system

68. Internal Audit function

69. Audit Committee
to review process and 
effectiveness of risk 
management and internal 
controls and to report to 
the Board

70. Statement of Internal 
Control

Principle – D.2

Code – D.2.1

Code – D.2.2

Code – D.2.3

Code – D.2.4

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

The Board has established an effective system of internal controls to safeguard 
the assets of the company. The systems of internal controls in place have been 
designed to counter various risks that could either arise from dealing in financial 
transactions or from other events and changes in environment and business 
conditions.

Internal Auditors have been entrusted to periodically review the adequacy and 
effectiveness of internal controls of the company a feedback of which is given to the 
higher level Audit Committee. Statement on Internal Controls provided on pages 17 
to 20 complies with content of Annexure K of the code.

Abans PLC’s Internal Audit division which is centrally located provides independent 
and objective assurance in respect of the adequacy of the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal controls and governance process across the company.

Audit Committee continuously reviewed the effectiveness of risk management 
process and internal controls and ensured the soundness of the risk management 
process and internal controls and managed to report any deficiencies and matters 
to Board with recommendations.

The Board Statement on Internal Controls given on page 45 complies with the 
contents in Annexure K of the code.
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Principles

Reference to
SEC & ICASL Code

Adoption
Status

Extent of Adoption (2015/2016 )

D.3 Audit Committee -
A Committee to review 
financial reporting 
aspects, internal controls 
and maintain relationship 
with company auditors

71. Audit Committee 
composition

72. Reviewing objectivity, 
effectiveness and 
independence of External 
Auditors

73. Terms of reference of 
the Audit Committee

Principle – D.3

Code - D.3.1

Code - D.3.2

Code - D.3.3

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

The Board of Abans PLC has established an Audit Committee that operates 
independently under specified terms of reference covering review of financial 
reporting aspects, internal controls and maintaining relationship with company 
auditors internal and external in accordance with the provisions of this Code and 
other regulatory requirements.

The Committee met 05 times during the year. The names of members forming the 
Audit Committee, their participation level, secretary, and invitees of the Committee 
are disclosed on page 49.

As disclosed in Audit Committee Report, the Audit Committee in keeping to it 
terms of reference monitors the objectivity, effectiveness and independence of the 
External Auditor of the company

The Board approved written terms of reference governs all activities of Audit 
Committee. The Terms of Reference have been drawn after giving due reference the 
“Code of Best Practices on Audit Committee”

D.4 Code of Business
Conduct & ethics

75. Compliance to 
requirements on business 
conduct and ethics

76. Affirmation by 
Chairperson that no 
individual has violated 
business conduct and 
ethical requirements of 
the company

Principle – D.4

Code D.4.1

Code D.4.2

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

High standards in business conduct and ethics is an integral part of Abans PLC’s 
culture. In keeping to Abans PLC’s practiced value system, an organisation wide 
human resource policy document is in place which defines clear HR policies and 
procedures to employee.

The HR division has devised a formal document incorporating human resources 
procedures including aspects on employee conduct.

The Chairperson’s affirmation that she is not aware of any violations to requirements 
of the company on specified business conduct and ethics is given in the 
“Chairperson’s review” on pages 6 to 9.

D.5 Corporate Governance 
disclosure

77. Disclosure on 
Corporate Governance

Principle D.5

Code – D.5.1

Adopted

Adopted

Abans PLC Board of Directors upholds adopting sound corporate governance 
practices, while improving the overall governance year on year.

Abans PLC’s Corporate Governance report of FY 2015/16 provides a comprehensive 
disclosure on the company’s corporate governance framework and practices 
indicating Code of best practices on corporate governance issued in 2013.
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Principles

Reference to
SEC & ICASL Code

Adoption
Status

Extent of Adoption (2015/2016 )

Section 2 :

Shareholders

E1. Institutional Investors

78. Constructive dialog 
between shareholders and 
company.

Principle E.1

Code – E.1.1

N/A

Adopted

Abans PLC shareholder base comprises only individual investors.

The Company obtained Debt listing status in Colombo Stock Exchange, Main Board 
since 2013.

Being the communication agent, the Board Chairperson performs a crucial role to 
communicate the opinions and views of shareholders to both Board and corporate 
management concisely.

E.2 Evaluation of 
Governance Disclosure

Principle E.2 Adopted Matters relating to governance are communicated effectively to all shareholders 
via the Annual Report and through AGM as disclosed in above Code E.1.1, views 
and other material matters of shareholders are subsequently taken up at Board 
meetings as necessary.

F. Other Investors
F.1 Individual shareholders

Principle- F.1 Adopted Annual report of Abans PLC comprises adequate information for prospective 
investors to carryout thorough analysis of the company. Further Abans PLC publishes 
accounts in the CSE website on quarterly basis so that retail investors could make 
judgment of the performance of the company on an ongoing basis.

F.2 Shareholder voting Principle- F.2 Adopted Individual shareholders are encouraged to participate at the Annual General 
Meeting and to exercise their voting rights.

G .Sustainability 
Reporting

79. Economic 
Sustainability

80. Environmental 
Sustainability

81. Labour practices

Principle- G.1

G.1.1

G.1.2

G.1.3

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Being a responsible corporate citizen Abans PLC believes in meeting most of 
our responsibilities towards key stakeholder namely; shareholders, customers, 
employees, suppliers and the community in the optimal way through our business 
activities, more from a long term perspective.

The economic sustainability is provided in page 07 under “Performance of Our 
Companies” in the Chairperson’s Message Section and Statement of Value added is 
given in page 138.

Abans initiatives on environmental practices are given in page 08 under “Growing 
Sustainability” in the Chairperson’s Message Section.

 
A comprehensive disclosure on labour practices is provided in pages 37 to 42 under 
“Human Resource Management” in Management Discussion and Analysis.
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance
Principles

Reference to
SEC & ICASL Code

Adoption
Status

Extent of Adoption (2015/2016 )

82. Society governance 
disclosures

83. Product responsibility 
disclosures

84. Stakeholder 
identification, 
engagement, and effective 
communication

85. Formalised 
Sustainability Reporting 
Process.

G.1.4

G.1.5

G.1.6

G.1.7

Adopted

Adopted

Adopted

Not
Adopted

A disclosure on Social practices is provided in page 43 under “Corporate Social 
Responsibility” in Management Discussion and Analysis.

A disclosure of product responsibility practices is provided in page 36 under 
“Customer Engagement” Management Discussion and Analysis.

Stakeholder identification, engagement and effective communication: Please refer 
page 53 for details of engagement practices with the shareholders, customers, 
government, employees, suppliers and the community at large.
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Financial 
Reports

“Happiness is being able to make 
delicious food for my children, 

just like my Mother used to make 
for me. Their choice was Abans 

and so is mine.”
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Financial 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ABANS PLC
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Abans PLC, 
(“the Company”), and the consolidated financial statements of the 
Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”), which comprise the statement 
of financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the statement of profit or 
loss, statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes 
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (set out on pages 77 to 136).

Board’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Board of Directors (“Board”) is responsible for the preparation of 
these financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such internal controls as 
Board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri 
Lanka Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by Board, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair 
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2016, and 
of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
As required by Section 163(2) of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, we 
state the following:

a)	 The basis of opinion, Scope and Limitations of the audit are as 
stated above.

b)	 In our opinion :
`` 	we have obtained all the information and explanations that 

were required for the audit and, as far as appears from our 
examination, proper accounting records have been kept by the 
Company.

`` 	the financial statements of the Company give a true and fair 
view of its financial position as at 31 March 2016, and of its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and

`` 	the financial statements of the Company and the Group and 
comply with the requirements of Section 151 and 153 of the 
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

08 August 2016
Colombo



70 Abans PLC | Annual Report 2015/16

OVERVIEW  |  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  |  GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE  |  FINANCIAL REPORTS  | SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

	G roup	C ompany
Year ended 31 March			   2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
		N  ote	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Continuing Operations
Revenue		  5.1	 34,933,245,274	 30,082,217,757	 27,501,593,009	 25,030,345,580
Cost of Sales			   (24,173,581,123)	 (21,565,435,105)	 (19,340,460,685)	 (18,463,726,814)
Gross Profit			   10,759,664,151	 8,516,782,652	 8,161,132,324	 6,566,618,766
Other Operating Income		  5.2	 247,614,896	 292,360,320	 235,537,658	 311,321,674
Selling & Distribution Expenses			   (4,233,641,878)	 (3,225,612,993)	 (3,522,305,279)	 (2,603,833,657)
Administrative Expenses			   (4,129,045,695)	 (3,935,006,028)	 (2,857,515,893)	 (2,787,213,669)
Operating Profit			   2,644,591,474	 1,648,523,951	 2,016,848,810	 1,486,893,114
Finance Cost		  5.3	 (1,050,908,089)	 (1,045,891,861)	 (1,028,823,131)	 (1,022,995,330)
Finance Income		  5.4	 65,768,752	 191,418,624	 62,703,720	 189,360,610
Share of Associates' Profits		  15	 60,279,671	 42,950,354	 -	 -
Share of Joint Venture's Loss		  16	 (75,455,796)	 (45,274,224)	 -	 -
Profit before Income Tax and Value Added Tax on  
 F inancial Services from Continuing Operations			   1,644,276,012	 791,726,844	 1,050,729,399	 653,258,394
Value Added Tax on Financial Services			   (33,742,312)	 (25,468,054)	 (2,884,772)	 (2,722,882)
Income Tax Expense		  6.1	 (510,898,173)	 (205,056,915)	 (322,316,714)	 (215,163,027)

Discontinued Operations
Profit for the Year from Discontinued Operation		  31	 -	 15,750,000	 -	 -
Profit for the Year			   1,099,635,527	 576,951,875	 725,527,913	 435,372,485

Attributable to:
Equity Holders of the Parent			   1,087,444,834	 564,835,785	 725,527,913	 435,372,485
Non-Controlling Interest			   12,190,693	 12,116,090	 -	 -
			   1,099,635,527	 576,951,875	 725,527,913	 435,372,485

Earnings Per Share
Profit for the Year Attributable to  
  Ordinary Equity Holders of the Parent		  7	 497.69	 258.51	 332.05	 199.26

Earnings Per Share for Continuing Operations
Profit for the Year Attributable to  
  Ordinary Equity Holders of the Parent		  7	 497.69	 251.30	 332.05	 199.26

The accounting policies and notes on pages 77 through 136 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

	G roup	C ompany
Year ended 31 March			   2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
		N  ote	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Profit for the Year			   1,099,635,527	 576,951,875	 725,527,913	 435,372,485

Other Comprehensive Income
Other Comprehensive Income to be Reclassified to  
  Profit or Loss in Subsequent Periods :
Gain/(Loss) on Available for Sale Financial Assets			   (130,255)	 4,763,566	 -	 -
Net Other Comprehensive Income to be Reclassified to  
  Profit or Loss in Subsequent Periods			   (130,255)	 4,763,566	 -	 -

Other Comprehensive Income not to be Reclassified to  
  Profit or Loss in Subsequent Periods :
Revaluation Gain		  8	 96,760,807	 -	 89,854,882	 -
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Defined Benefit Plans		  27.2	 11,790,362	 (1,801,299)	 8,778,935	 3,375,345
Actuarial Losses from Associate		  15.2	 (220,637)	 (2,282,471)	 -	 -
Tax Effect		  6.2	 (10,675,853)	 97,327	 (8,064,509)	 (945,097)
Net Other Comprehensive Income not to be  
  Reclassified to Profit or Loss in Subsequent Periods			   97,654,679	 (3,986,443)	 90,569,308	 2,430,248

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax			   97,524,424	 777,123	 90,569,308	 2,430,248

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year, Net of Tax			   1,197,159,951	 577,728,998	 816,097,221	 437,802,733

Attributable to:
Equity Holders of the Parent			   1,184,232,494	 563,815,251	 816,097,221	 437,802,733
Non-Controlling Interest			   12,927,457	 13,913,747	 -	 -
			   1,197,159,951	 577,728,998	 816,097,221	 437,802,733

The accounting policies and notes on pages 77 through 136 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

	G roup	C ompany
As at 31 March 2016		N  ote	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
			   LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment		  8	 1,216,234,279	 1,021,708,483	 1,041,696,453	 919,043,603
Prepaid Lease Rental		  9	 257,373,737	 260,000,000	 257,373,737	 260,000,000
Investment Properties		  10	 23,854,597	 25,252,210	 23,854,597	 25,252,210
Lease Rentals Receivable and Stock Out on Hire		  11	 1,872,280,011	 1,643,410,169	 -	 -
Intangible Assets		  12	 56,671,257	 134,128,101	 37,498,683	 123,809,786
Investments in Subsidiaries		  13	 -	 -	 466,173,511	 466,173,511
Investments in an Associate		  15	 342,739,493	 307,043,712	 30,752,197	 30,752,197
Investments in a Joint Venture		  16	 2,055,169,194	 1,736,208,070	 2,198,216,870	 1,803,799,950
Other Financial Assets		  17	 33,026,949	 150,676,484	 16,578,568	 16,789,700
Deferred Tax Assets		  6.4	 374,251,906	 287,889,493	 275,368,855	 204,587,498
Trade and Other Receivables		  18	 677,210,253	 339,895,595	 -	 -
			   6,908,811,676	 5,906,212,317	 4,347,513,471	 3,850,208,455

Current Assets
Inventories		  19	 10,365,724,961	 8,688,659,973	 8,716,690,228	 7,033,963,561
Trade and Other Receivables		  18	 11,542,692,280	 10,688,028,573	 9,776,239,487	 9,974,478,184
Lease Rentals Receivable and Stock Out on Hire		  11	 1,723,971,768	 1,259,875,081	 -	 -
Income Tax Receivables			   4,584,793	 4,641,546	 -	 -
Other Financial Assets		  17	 257,008,792	 362,179,092	 11,240,814	 8,105,005
Securities Purchased under Repurchase Agreement		  20	 630,158,530	 426,888,521	 -	 -
Cash and Short Term Deposits		  21	 806,268,158	 758,088,398	 663,688,713	 614,002,427
			   25,330,409,282	 22,188,361,184	 19,167,859,242	 17,630,549,177
Total Assets			   32,239,220,958	 28,094,573,501	 23,515,372,713	 21,480,757,632
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

	G roup	C ompany
As at 31 March 2016		N  ote	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
			   LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Stated Capital		  22	 218,500,000	 218,500,000	 218,500,000	 218,500,000
Other Component of Equity		  23	 457,158,336	 352,706,442	 399,048,767	 314,800,292
Retained Earnings			   6,363,505,389	 5,417,740,673	 4,571,761,088	 3,971,992,342
Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent			   7,039,163,725	 5,988,947,115	 5,189,309,855	 4,505,292,634

Non-Controlling Interests			   133,916,025	 119,056,474	 -	 -
Total Equity			   7,173,079,750	 6,108,003,589	 5,189,309,855	 4,505,292,634

Non-Current Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings		  25	 3,167,783,211	 4,148,613,753	 3,154,402,157	 4,125,083,728
Warranty Provision		  26	 313,863,057	 277,776,277	 269,748,307	 237,248,368
Employee Benefits Liabilities		  27	 236,796,414	 217,662,634	 149,772,204	 141,801,533
Trade and Other Payables		  28	 1,697,858,803	 1,106,703,668	 -	 -
			   5,416,301,485	 5,750,756,332	 3,573,922,668	 4,504,133,629

Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables		  28	 9,390,126,784	 8,811,276,713	 5,136,817,454	 5,409,861,280
Income Tax Liabilities			   403,429,392	 93,248,304	 265,419,967	 44,718,023
Interest Bearing Borrowings		  25	 9,856,283,547	 7,331,288,563	 9,349,902,769	 7,016,752,066
			   19,649,839,723	 16,235,813,580	 14,752,140,190	 12,471,331,369
Total Equity and Liabilities			   32,239,220,958	 28,094,573,501	 23,515,372,713	 21,480,757,632

These Financial Statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No :07 of 2007.

Chandima Bandara
Chief Financial Officer

The board of directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements. Signed for and on behalf of the board by.	  

Rusi Pestonjee	 Saroshi Dubash
Director	 Director

The accounting policies and notes on pages 77 through 136 form an integral part of the financial statements.

8th August 2016
Colombo
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Group	A ttributable to the Equity Holders of the Parent
						N      on-
	 Stated	R evaluation	O ther	R etained		C  ontrolling	T otal
	C apital	R eserve	R eserves	 Earnings	T otal	I nterest	 Equity
Year ended 31 March 2016	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Balance as at 01 April 2014	 218,500,000	 307,385,292	 49,098,126	 4,850,148,446	 5,425,131,864	 105,142,727	 5,530,274,591
Net Profit for the Year				    564,835,785	 564,835,785	 12,116,090	 576,951,875
Other Comprehensive Income	 -	 -	 116,266	 (1,136,800)	 (1,020,534)	 1,797,657	 777,123
Transfers to/(from) During the year	 -	 -	 (3,893,242)	 3,893,242	 -	 -	 -
Balance as at 31 March 2015	 218,500,000	 307,385,292	 45,321,150	 5,417,740,673	 5,988,947,115	 119,056,474	 6,108,003,589
Net Profit for the Year	 -	 -	 -	 1,087,444,834	 1,087,444,834	 12,190,693	 1,099,635,527
Other Comprehensive Income	 -	 88,479,045	 (116,266)	 8,424,881	 96,787,660	 736,764	 97,524,424
Dividends	 -	 -	 -	 (132,080,000)	 (132,080,000)	 (3,791)	 (132,083,791)
Transfers to/(from) During the year	 -	 -	 16,089,115	 (18,025,000)	 (1,935,885)	 1,935,885	 -
Balance as at 31 March 2016	 218,500,000	 395,864,337	 61,293,999	 6,363,505,389	 7,039,163,725	 133,916,025	 7,173,079,750

Company			   Stated	O ther	R evaluation	R etained	T otal
			C   apital	R eserves	R eserve	 Earnings
			   LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Balance as at 01 April 2014			   218,500,000	 7,415,000	 307,385,292	 3,534,189,609	 4,067,489,901
Net Profit for the Year			   -	 -	 -	 435,372,485	 435,372,485
Other Comprehensive Income			   -	 -	 -	 2,430,248	 2,430,248
Balance as at 31 March 2015			   218,500,000	 7,415,000	 307,385,292	 3,971,992,342	 4,505,292,634
Net Profit for the Year			   -	 -	 -	 725,527,913	 725,527,913
Other Comprehensive Income			   -	 -	 84,248,475	 6,320,833	 90,569,308
Dividends			   -	 -	 -	 (132,080,000)	 (132,080,000)
Balance as at 31 March 2016			   218,500,000	 7,415,000	 391,633,767	 4,571,761,088	 5,189,309,855

The accounting policies and notes on pages 77 through 136 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

	G roup	C ompany
Year ended 31 March		N  ote	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
			   LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Cash Flows from/(used in) Operating Activities
Profit before Tax from Continuing Operation			   1,644,276,012	 791,726,844	 1,050,729,399	 653,258,394
Profit before Tax from Discontinued Operation		  31	 -	 15,750,000	 -	 -
			   1,644,276,012	 807,476,844	 1,050,729,399	 653,258,394

Adjustments for:
  Depreciation - Property Plant & Equipment		  8	 118,359,910	 104,629,757	 92,246,425	 93,701,824
  Depreciation - Investments Property		  10	 1,397,613	 1,397,612	 1,397,613	 1,397,612
  Amortisation of Intangible Assets & prepaid Rent			   91,688,264	 89,583,167	 89,945,713	 84,976,134
  Fair Value of Quoted Shares			   17,519,280	 (5,053,213)	 211,132	 (99,680)
  Impairment of Property Plant & Equipment		  8	 12,797,326	 -	 8,020,500	 -
  Income from Investments			   (9,274,340)	 (99,206,478)	 (23,042,590)	 (99,987,284)
  (Profit)/Loss on Disposal of Assets			   (6,845,895)	 197,703	 (8,345,024)	 (13,786,661)
  Finance Costs		  5.3	 1,050,908,089	 1,045,891,861	 1,028,823,131	 1,022,995,330
  Share of Associate (Profit)		  15	 (60,279,671)	 (42,950,354)	 -	 -
  Share of Loss from Joint Venture		  16	 75,455,796	 45,274,224	 -	 -
  Provision for Warranty		  26	 286,660,938	 247,935,793	 242,118,928	 200,170,870
  Employee Benefit Obligation Transferred		  27	 -	 (1,909,849)	 910,000	 (51,233,531)
  Provision for Employee Benefits Liabilities		  27	 47,051,278	 42,557,414	 28,799,511	 27,676,455
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes	 		  3,269,714,600	 2,235,824,481	 2,511,814,738	 1,919,069,463
  (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories			   (1,677,064,988)	 (246,028,764)	 (1,682,726,666)	 85,692,993
  (Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables			   (1,884,944,894)	 (935,313,560)	 198,238,697	 127,015,796
  Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables			   1,170,005,206	 1,167,415,290	 (273,043,826)	 (540,213,355)
Cash Generated from Operations			   877,709,924	 2,221,897,447	 754,282,943	 1,591,564,897

  Finance Cost Paid		  5.3	 (1,050,908,089)	 (1,045,891,861)	 (1,028,823,131)	 (1,022,995,330)
  Employee Benefits Liabilities Paid		  27	 (16,127,136)	 (8,024,414)	 (12,959,905)	 (7,092,414)
  Repair Charges Paid		  26	 (250,574,158)	 (208,430,571)	 (209,618,989)	 (200,156,236)
  Income Tax Paid			   (312,565,120)	 (104,992,887)	 (183,345,409)	 (54,865,323)
Net Cash Flows from/(used in) Operating Activities			   (752,464,579)	 854,557,714	 (680,464,491)	 306,455,594



76 Abans PLC | Annual Report 2015/16

OVERVIEW  |  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  |  GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE  |  FINANCIAL REPORTS  | SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

	G roup	C ompany
Year ended 31 March		N  ote	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
			   LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Cash Flows from / (Used in) Investing Activities
  Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment		  8	 (229,401,590)	 (172,128,074)	 (146,480,119)	 (113,208,405)
  Acquisition of Leasehold Right		  9	 -	 (260,000,000)	 -	 (260,000,000)
  Acquisition of Intangible Assets		  12	 (11,605,157)	 (24,039,636)	 (1,008,347)	 (18,455,009)
  Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment			   26,439,826	 4,361,160	 21,760,250	 55,054,895
  (Acquisition)/Proceeds From Other Investments			   205,300,555	 (220,696,299)	 (3,135,809)	 (540,314)
  Dividend Received			   14,761,804	 104,693,942	 23,042,590	 99,987,284
  Profit/(Loss) on Available for Sale Financial Assets			   (130,255)	 4,763,566	 -	 -
  Investments in Subsidiaries		  13	 -	 -	 -	 (950)
  Investments In Joint Ventures		  16	 (394,416,920)	 (461,000,000)	 (394,416,920)	 (461,000,000)
  Securities Purchased under Repurchase Agreement		  20	 (203,270,009)	 (157,891,198)	 -	 -
Net Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities			   (592,321,746)	 (1,181,936,539)	 (500,238,355)	 (698,162,499)

Cash Flows from/(used in) Financing Activities
  Increase/(Decrease) in Import Financing Loans			   544,442,745	 1,909,869,072	 544,442,745	 1,909,869,072
  Proceeds From Interest Bearing Borrowings			   10,034,568,215	 5,245,792,600	 9,481,978,408	 5,088,756,923
  Repayment of Interest Bearing Borrowings			   (10,132,245,269)	 (2,751,286,135)	 (9,678,863,189)	 (2,608,038,792)
  Proceeds/(Payment) from other Bearing Borrowings			   956,432,418	 (4,229,178,025)	 917,125,597	 (4,106,917,784)
  Payment/(Obtained) under Finance Lease Liabilities			   (9,086,035)	 (7,593,803)	 (7,556,728)	 (7,593,803)
  Dividends Paid			   (132,083,791)	 -	 (132,080,000)	 -
Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities			   1,262,028,283	 167,603,709	 1,125,046,833	 276,075,616

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Short Term Deposits			  (82,758,042)	 (159,775,116)	 (55,656,013)	 (115,631,289)

Cash and Short Term Deposits at the beginning of the Year	 21	 527,327,034	 687,102,150	 482,686,214	 598,317,503
Cash and Short Term Deposits at the end of the Year		  21	 444,568,992	 527,327,034	 427,030,201	 482,686,214

The accounting policies and notes on pages 77 through 136 form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
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1.	COR PORATE INFORMATION
1.1	R eporting Entity
Abans PLC is a Limited Liability Company incorporated and domiciled in 
Sri Lanka and listed in Colombo Stock Exchange. The registered office 
of the Company and the principal place of business are situated at No. 
498, Galle Road, Colombo 03.

1.2	C onsolidated Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements of Abans PLC, as at and for the 
year ended 31 March 2016, encompasses the Company, its subsidiaries 
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interests in Equity 
Accounted investees (Associates and Joint Ventures).

1.3	 Parent Entity
The Company does not have a parent undertaking and the shares are 
held by individuals. No individual shareholder has a controlling interest.

1.4	A pprovals of Financial Statements
The Financial Statements of Abans PLC and Its Subsidiaries for the year 
ended 31 March 2016 were authorised for issue in accordance with a 
resolution of the Board of Directors on the 8th of August 2016.

1.5	 Directors’ Responsibility Statement
The Board of Directors is responsible for preparation and presentation 
of financial statements.

1.6	 Principal Activities & Nature of Operations
Parent Company- Abans PLC
During the year, the principal activities of the Company were importing 
and marketing of electrical and electronic home appliances, crockery 
and cookware, sanitary and light fittings, a host of other household 
items and carrying out electro mechanical contract work.

Subsidiary – Abans Retail (Pvt) Ltd
The principal activities of the Company were buying and selling hire 
purchase sales of electrical and electronic home appliances, crockery 
and cookware, sanitary and light fittings, a host of other household 
items.

Subsidiary – Abans Lanka (Pvt) Ltd
The principal Activities of the Company were importing and selling of 
mobile phones. However the Company has suspended its operations in 
a previous year, due to future Group restructuring plan.

Subsidiary - AB Technologies (Pvt) Ltd
The principal activities of the Company were developing computer 
software and providing IT Related Services.

Subsidiary - Abans Finance PLC
During the year, the principal activities of the Company were acceptance 
of Deposits, granting lease facilities, Hire Purchase, Mortgage Loans 
and other credit facilities, Real Estate Development and related 
services.

Subsidiary - Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd
The principal activities of the Company providing complete range of 
MVAC (Mechanical, Ventilation and Air Conditioning) solution which 
includes supply, install, maintenance and after sales services.

Associate - Abans Electricals PLC
The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing and 
assembling household electrical and electronic appliances and 
providing repairs and maintenance and technical services of similar 
type of appliances.

Joint Venture - Colombo City Centre Partners (Pvt) Limited
The principle activity of the Company is to carry out mix development 
project.

2.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1	 Basis of Preparation and Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on an the historical cost 
basis, except for Lands and Buildings, Fair value through profit or loss 
financial assets, Available for sale and that have been measured at fair 
value and defined benefit plans which are measured at present value 
of retirement benefits obligation as explained in the respective notes in 
the financial statement.

2.1.1	 Statement of Compliance
The financial statements which comprise the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows together with 
the Accounting Polices and notes have been prepared in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRS/LKAS) as issued by the 
institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka (CA Sri Lanka) and the 
requirement of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007.
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2.1.2	C omparative Information
The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company 
and are consistent with those used in the previous year.

2.1.3	G oing Concern
The Directors have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate or 
cease trading.

2.1.4	 Presentation and Functional Currency
The financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees (LKR), 
the Group functional and presentation currency, which is the primary 
economic environment in which the Holding Company operates. 
Each entity in the Group uses the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which they operate as their functional currency.

2.1.5	 Materiality and Aggregation
Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the 
financial statements. Items of a dissimilar nature or function are 
presented separately unless they are immaterial.

2.2	 Basis of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the Financial 
Statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016. 
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed or has right, to variable 
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to 
affect those returns though its power over the investee. Especially, the 
Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

`` 	Power over the investee (ie. Existing rights that give it the current 
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)

`` 	Exposure, or fights, to variable returns from its involvement with the 
investee

`` 	The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its return

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result 
in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less 
than majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group 
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it 
has power over an investee, including:

`` The contractual agreement with the other vote holders of the 
investee.

`` 	Rights arising from other contractual agreements

`` 	The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and 
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the 
three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the 
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group 
loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses 
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in 
the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains 
control until the date the Group ceases to control the Subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) 
are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to 
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling 
interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments 
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their 
accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-Group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and 
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are 
eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of 
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related 
assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-controlling interest and other 
components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in 
profit or loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

2.3	 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
2.3.1	I nvestment in an Associate and Joint Venture
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. 
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and 
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint 
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that 
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of 
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of 
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the 
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing 
control.
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The considerations made in determining significant influence or 
joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over 
Subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associate and joint venture are 
accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint 
venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the 
investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of 
net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. 
Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the 
carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment 
separately.

The statement of profit or loss reflects the Group’s share of the results 
of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change in OCI of 
those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, 
when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of 
the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any 
changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. 
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the 
Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of 
the interest in the associate or joint venture.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and 
a joint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit or loss 
outside operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax and non-
controlling interests in the Subsidiaries of the associate or joint venture.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for 
the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments 
are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether 
it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment 
in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group 
determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in 
the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the 
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between 
the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying 
value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate 
and a joint venture’ in the statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over 
the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained 
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount 
of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or 
joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds 
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

2.3.2	 Transactions with Non-Controlling Interests
The profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary attributable to equity 
interests that are not owned by the parent, directly or indirectly through 
Subsidiaries, is disclosed separately under the heading ‘Non- controlling 
Interest’.

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with non-controlling 
interests as transactions with parties external to the Group.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest 
even if that results in a deficit balance.

2.3.3	C onsolidation of Entities with Different Accounting Periods
The financial statements of all entities in the Group other than Colombo 
City Centre Partners (Pvt) Ltd, are prepared for a common financial year, 
which ends on 31 March.

Colombo City Centre Partners (Pvt) Ltd with a 31 December financial 
year end prepares for consolidation purpose, additional financial 
information as of the same date as the financial statements of the 
parent.

2.3.4	C urrent Versus Non-Current Classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial 
position based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is current when it is:

`` 	Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the 
normal operating cycle

`` 	Held primarily for the purpose of trading
`` Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting 

period  
Or

`` Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged 
or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period
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All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

`` 	It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle
`` 	It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
`` 	It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting 

period 
Or

`` There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability 
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets 
and liabilities.

2.3.5	F air Value Measurement
The Group measures financial instruments such as investment in equity 
securities, and non-financial assets such as land and buildings, at fair 
value at each balance sheet date. Fair-value related disclosures for 
financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured at 
fair value or where fair values are disclosed, are summarised in the 
following notes:

`` 	Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and 
assumptions (Notes 3 and 29)

`` 	Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (Note 
29)

`` 	Property, plant and equipment under revaluation model (Note 8)
`` 	Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) 

(Note 29)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 
takes place either:

`` 	In the principal market for the asset or liability 
Or

`` 	In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous 
market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by 
the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the 
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset 
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best 
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account 
a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using 
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market 
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the 
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure 
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in 
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, 
described in Note 29.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements 
at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether 
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as 
properties and significant liabilities, such as employee benefit liability.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined 
classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, 
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair 
value hierarchy, as explained above.

2.3.6	R evenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the 
economic benefits will flow to the Group, and the revenue and 
associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received 
or receivable, net of trade discounts and value added taxes, after 
eliminating sales within the Group.
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The following specific criteria are used for recognition of revenue:

2.3.6.1	Revenue Recognition Policy of Abans Finance PLC
a.	I nterest Income and Interest Expense
For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest 
bearing financial assets classified as available for sale and financial 
instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss, interest 
income or expense is recorded using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). 
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments 
or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a 
shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the 
financial asset or financial liability.

The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of the financial 
instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees 
or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument 
and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future credit losses. The 
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted 
if the Company revises its estimates of payments or receipts. The 
adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original EIR and 
the change in carrying amount is recorded as ’Interest and similar 
income’ for financial assets and ’Interest and similar expense’ for 
financial liabilities. However, for a reclassified financial asset for which 
the bank subsequently increases its estimates of future cash receipts 
as a result of increased recoverability of those cash receipts, the effect 
of that increase is recognised as an adjustment to the EIR from the 
date of the change in estimate. Once the recorded value of a financial 
asset or a Group of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an 
impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognised using the 
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of 
measuring the impairment loss.

b.	F ee and Commission Income
The Company earns fee and commission income from a diverse range 
of services it provides to its customers. Fee income can be divided into 
the following two categories:

- Fee income earned from services that are provided over a certain 
period of time

Fees earned for the provision of services over a period of time are 
accrued over that period. These fees include Credit related fees & 
commission, Service charge, Transfer Fees and other fees income. Loan 
commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down and other 

credit related fees are deferred (together with any incremental costs) 
and recognised as an adjustment to the EIR on the loan. When it is 
unlikely that a loan will be drawn down, the loan commitment fees are 
recognised over the commitment period on a straight line basis.

- Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the payment is 
established.

c.	N et trading Income
Net trading income includes all gains and losses from changes in fair 
value and related dividends for financial assets and financial liabilities 
‘held for trading’ other than interest income.

2.3.6.2	Revenue Recognition Policy Other than Abans Finance PLC
d.	 Sale of Goods (Normal Trading Transactions)
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risk 
and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyers, 
the recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs 
and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no 
continuing management involvement with the goods and the amount of 
revenue can be measured reliably.

e.	 Sale of Goods (Hire Purchase Transactions)
At the time of effecting hire sales, the cash sales value is recognised 
as sales. The unearned income is recognised as income over the term 
of hire purchase contract commencing from the month in which first 
rental is due, in proportion to the declining receivable balance, so as to 
produce a constant periodic rate of return on the hirer’s net investment 
outstanding on the hire purchase.

f.	 Service Fee Income on Hire Purchase
Service Fee Income is recognised over the length of hire purchase 
agreement using the effective interest rate method. In the event of 
early termination of the Hire Purchase Contract or Cash conversion 
remaining deferred, service income is recognised when such contract is 
recognised or converted.

g.	R endering of Services
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised by reference to the 
stage of completion. Stage of completion is measured by referring to the 
terms and references in the construction contract. Where the contract 
outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only to the 
extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered. Revenue 
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from rendering of maintenance services is recognised in the accounting 
period in which the services are rendered or performed.

h.	D ividend
Revenue is recognised when the Group's right to receive the payment 
is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the 
dividend.

i.	R ental Income
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties 
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Rental 
income is recognised on an accrual basis.

j.	G ains and Losses
Net gains and losses of a revenue nature arising from the disposal of 
property, plant and equipment and other noncurrent assets, including 
investments, are accounted for in the statement of profit or loss, after 
deducting from the proceeds on disposal, the carrying amount of such 
assets and the related selling expenses.

k.	I nterest – Other
Interest Income is recognised in profit or loss as it accrues and is 
calculated by using the effective interest rate method.

l.	O ther Income
Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.

2.3.7	E xpenditure Recognition
Expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the basis 
of a direct association between the cost incurred and the earning of 
specific items of income. All expenditure incurred in the running of the 
business and in maintaining the property, plant and equipment in a 
state of efficiency has been charged to the statement of profit or loss.

2.3.8	F inance Costs
Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings and financial 
leases that are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The interest 
expense component of finance lease payments is allocated to each 
period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate 
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of 
time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of 

the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed 
in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other 
costs that the Group incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

2.3.9	 Taxes
Current Income Tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The 
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity 
is recognised in equity and not in the statement of profit or loss. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns 
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject 
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Taxation
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary 
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences, except:

`` When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition 
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a 
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

`` 	In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with 
investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint 
arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary 
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary 
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused 
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax 
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

`` 	When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary 
difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability 
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in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time 
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable 
profit or loss

`` 	In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with 
investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint 
arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent 
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the 
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which 
the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each 
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are 
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent 
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the 
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability 
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is 
recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised 
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in 
equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally 
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax 
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and 
the same taxation authority.

Sales Tax
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax, 
except:

`` When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is 
not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the sales 
tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as 
part of the expense item, as applicable.

`` 	When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales 
tax included.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the 
taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the 
statement of financial position.

VAT on Financial Services
VAT on Financial Services is calculated in accordance with VAT Act No. 
14 of 2002 and subsequent amendment thereto.

2.3.10	F oreign Currencies
The Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lanka Rupees, which is 
the Group’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and Balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group 
entities at their respective functional currency spot rate at the date the 
transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at 
the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or translation of 
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a 
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates 
of the initial transactions.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency 
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair 
value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition 
of gain or loss on change in fair value in the item (i.e., the translation 
differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other 
comprehensive income (OCI) or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI 
or profit or loss, respectively).

2.3.11	 Discontinued Operations
Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing 
operations and are presented as a single amount as profit or loss after 
tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit or loss. 
Additional information are provided in Note 31.

All other notes to the financial statements include amounts for 
continuing operations, unless otherwise mentioned.
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2.3.12	 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recognised if it is probable that 
future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the 
Group and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

Plant and equipment, construction in progress are stated at cost, net of 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Such 
cost includes the cost of replacing component parts of the Property, 
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction 
projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of 
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group 
derecognises the replaced part, and recognises the new part with its 
own associated useful life and depreciation. Likewise, when a major 
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of 
the Property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition 
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Land and buildings are measured at fair value less accumulated 
depreciation on buildings and impairment losses recognised at the 
date of revaluation. Valuations are performed with sufficient frequency 
to ensure that the carrying amount of a revalued asset does not differ 
materially from its fair value.

A revaluation surplus is recognised in other comprehensive income 
and accumulated in equity in the asset revaluation reserve, except to 
the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset 
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in which 
case the increase is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. A 
revaluation deficit is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except 
to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset 
recognised in the asset revaluation reserve.

A transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained earnings is 
made for the difference between depreciation based on the revalued 
carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on the asset’s 
original cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the 
revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the 
asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the 
asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular 
asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 
of the assets. The estimated useful lives of the assets are disclosed in Note 8.11

An item of property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon 
replacement, disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the 
asset is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset 
is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of 
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end 
and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

2.3.13	 Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is 
based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception date. The 
arrangement is assessed for whether fulfillment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement 
conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not 
explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Group as Lessee
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an 
operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership to the Group is classified as a finance 
lease.

Finance lease assets are capitalised at the commencement of the lease 
at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the 
present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are 
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability 
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance 
of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the 
statement of profit or loss.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, 
if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership 
by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter 
of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Operating 
lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the 
statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Prepayments that are classified as operating leases over land is 
disclosed as non-current assets in the statement of financial position.
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Group as a lessor
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating 
leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an 
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset 
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they 
are earned.

Agreements which transfer to counterparties substantially all the risks 
and rewards incidental to the ownership of assets, but not necessarily 
legal title, are classified as finance leases. When the Company is 
a lessor under finance leases the amounts due under the leases, 
after deduction of unearned charges, are included in ‘Lease rentals 
receivables and stock out on hire, The finance income receivable is 
recognised in ‘Net interest income’ over the periods of the leases so as 
to give a constant rate of return on the net investment in the leases.

2.3.14	 Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction 
or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period 
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part 
of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the 
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other 
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

2.3.15	 Investment Properties
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including 
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment 
properties are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses. Such cost include the cost of replacing 
part of an existing investment property, at the time that cost is incurred 
if the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-to-day 
servicing of the investment property.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been 
disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no 
future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there 
is a change in use. For a transfer from investment property to owner-
occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the 

fair value at the date of change in use. If owner-occupied property 
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such 
property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and 
equipment up to the date of change in use.

Where Group companies occupy a significant portion of the investment 
property of a subsidiary, such investment properties are treated as 
property, plant and equipment in the consolidated financial statements, 
and accounted using Group accounting policy for property, plant and 
equipment.

2.3.16	I ntangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets 
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, 
excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and 
expenditure is recognised in the statement of profit or loss when it is 
incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or 
indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful 
economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an 
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation 
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a 
finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting 
period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern 
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset 
is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as 
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The 
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss in the expense category consistent with 
the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but 
are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed 
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be 
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is 
made on a prospective basis.
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Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are 
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of 
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

2.3.17	F inancial Instruments - Initial Recognition and Subsequent 
Measurement
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset 
of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another 
entity.

2.3.17.1	 Financial Assets
a)	I nitial Recognition and Measurement
Financial assets within the scope of LKAS 39 are classified as financial 
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, 
held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or as 
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, 
as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial 
assets at initial recognition.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction 
costs, in the case of assets not at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets 
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the 
marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., 
the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

b)	 Subsequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are 
classified in four categories:

`` 	Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
`` 	Loans and receivables
`` 	Held-to-maturity investments
`` 	AFS financial assets

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial 
assets held-for-trading and financial assets designated upon initial 
recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are 
classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired for the purpose 
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. This category includes 
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not 

designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined 
by LKAS 39. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives 
are also classified as held-for-trading unless they are designated as 
effective hedging instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried in the 
statement of financial position at fair value with changes in fair value 
recognised in the other income in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include 
investments made in quoted equity securities.

Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After 
initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method (EIR), less 
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in 
the statement of profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and 
in cost of sales or other operating expenses for receivables.

Held-to-Maturity Investments
Non derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and 
fixed maturities are classified as held-to-maturity when the Group has 
the positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity. After initial 
measurement, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Amortised 
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of 
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss in finance costs.

Available-for-Sale Financial Investments
AFS financial assets include equity investments and debt securities. 
Equity investments classified as AFS are those that are neither 
classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit 
or loss. Debt securities in this category are those that are intended to 
be held for an indefinite period of time and that may be sold in response 
to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.
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After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subsequently 
measured at fair value with unrealised gains or losses recognised in OCI 
and credited in the AFS reserve until the investment is derecognised, at 
which time, the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in other operating 
income, or the investment is determined to be impaired, when the 
cumulative loss is reclassified from the AFS reserve to the statement 
of profit or loss in finance costs. Interest earned whilst holding AFS 
financial assets is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its AFS 
financial assets in the near term is still appropriate. When, in rare 
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due 
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial 
assets if the management has the ability and intention to hold the 
assets for foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the AFS category, the fair value 
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new 
amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on the asset that has been 
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining 
life of the investment using the EIR. Any difference between the new 
amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the 
remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the asset is subsequently 
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is 
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

c)	D e-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part 
of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., 
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) 
when:

`` 	The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired 
Or

`` 	The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the 
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows 
in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ 
arrangement; and either
(a)	 the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards 

of the asset,
or
(b)	 the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all 

the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control 
of the asset

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an 
asset or has entered into a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if, 
and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, 
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of 
its continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an 
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability 
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the 
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the 
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying 
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that 
the Group could be required to repay.

d)	I mpairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective 
evidence that a financial asset or a Group of financial assets is impaired. 
A financial asset or a Group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired 
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more 
events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an 
incurred' loss event') and that loss event has an impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of the financial asset or the Group of financial assets 
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include 
indications that the debtors or a Group of debtors is experiencing 
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or 
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other 
financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there 
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as 
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial Assets Carried at Amortised Cost
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses 
whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial 
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets 
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no 
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed 
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a 
Group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and 
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually 
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or 
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment 
of impairment.
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The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the 
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses 
that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated 
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective 
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an 
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on 
the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest 
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring 
the impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of 
finance income in the statement of profit or loss. Loans together with 
the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic 
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has 
been transferred to the Group. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of 
the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously 
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the 
allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is 
credited to finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Available-for-Sale Financial Investments
For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at each 
reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an investment or 
a Group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, 
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in 
the fair value of the investment below its cost. 'Significant is evaluated 
against the original cost of the investment and 'prolonged ‘against the 
period in which the fair values has been below its original cost.

Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss- measured 
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current 
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss-is removed from other 
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed 
through the statement of profit or loss; increases in their fair value after 
impairments are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale, 
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial 
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for 
impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference between 
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss 
on that investment previously recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss.

Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced 
carrying amount of the asset, using the rate of interest used to discount 
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment 
loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance income. If, in 
a subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and 
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the 
impairment loss was recognised in the statement of profit or loss, the 
impairment loss is reversed through the statement of profit or loss.

2.3.17.2	 Financial Liabilities
a)	I nitial Recognition and Measurement
Financial liabilities within the scope of LKAS 39 are classified as 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and 
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an 
effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification 
of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the 
case of loans and borrowings, carried at amortised cost. This includes 
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, bank 
overdrafts, loans and borrowings, financial guarantees contracts, and 
derivative financial instruments.

b)	 Subsequent Measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification 
as follows:

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial 
liabilities held-for-trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial 
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities are classified as held-for-trading if they are acquired 
for the purpose of selling in the near term. This category includes 
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not 
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by 
LKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held-
for-trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held-for-trading are recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss.

The Group has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial 
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and Borrowings
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the 
effective interest rate method (EIR) amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement 
of profit or loss.

c)	D erecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the 
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing 
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

2.3.17.3	 Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset with the net amount 
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position only if there 
is a current enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts 
and intent to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously.

2.3.17.4	 Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets 
at each reporting date is determined by reference to quoted market 
prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask 
price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value 
is determined using appropriate valuation techniques. Such techniques 
may include:

`` 	Using recent arm's length market transactions;
`` 	Reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is 

substantially the same;
`` 	A discounted cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as 
to how they are measured are provided in Note 29.

2.3.17.5	 Collaterals
a)	C ollateral Valuation
The Company seeks to use collateral, where possible, to mitigate its 
risks on financial assets. The collateral comes in various forms such 
as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, gold, real estate, 
receivables, other non-financial assets. The fair value of collateral 
is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and based on the 
guidelines issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

Non-financial collateral, such as real estate, is valued based on data 
provided by third parties such as Independent values and other 
independent sources.

b)	C ollateral Repossessed
The Company’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset 
is best used for its internal operations or should be sold. Assets 
determined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred to 
their relevant Asset category at the lower of their repossessed value or 
the carrying value of the original secured asset.

c)	R enegotiated Loans
Where possible, the Company seeks to restructure loans rather than to 
take possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment 
arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once the 
terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using 
the original EIR as calculated before the modification of terms and 
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the loan is no longer considered past due. Management continually 
reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that 
future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject 
to a criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur. The 
loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment 
assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR.

2.3.17.6	 Repurchase Agreement
Securities purchased under agreements to resell at a specified future 
date are not recognised in the statement of financial position. The 
consideration paid, including accrued interest, is recorded in the 
statement of financial position, reflecting the transaction’s economic 
substance as a loan by the Company. The difference between the 
purchase and resale prices is recorded in ‘Net interest income’ and is 
accrued over the life of the agreement using the EIR.

If securities purchased under agreement to resell are subsequently sold 
to third parties, the obligation to return the securities is recorded as a 
short sale within ‘Financial liabilities held for trading’ and measured at 
fair value with any gains or losses included in ‘Net trading income’.

2.3.18	 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, 
after making due allowances for obsolete and slow moving items. Net 
realisable value is the price at which inventories can be sold in the 
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and 
the estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

The cost incurred in bringing inventories to its present location and 
conditions are accounted using the Following cost formulae:-

Finished Goods	 - First in First Out Basis
Work-in-Progress	 - At the cost of direct materials, direct labor and 

an appropriate proportion of fixed production 
overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Goods in Transits	 - At Purchase Price

2.3.19	R eal Estate Stock
Real estate stock comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion 
and other costs incurred in bringing the real estate to its saleable 
condition.

Purchase Cost	 - Land Cost with legal charges
Cost of Conversion	 - Actual Development Cost

2.3.20	I mpairment of Non Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an 
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the 
Company makes an estimate of the asset's recoverable amount. An 
asset's recoverable amount is higher of asset's or cash generating units 
(CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other 
assets or Groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or 
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired 
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to 
sell, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If 
no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model 
is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, 
quoted share prices for publicly traded Subsidiaries or other available 
fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on 
inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in those 
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, 
except for a property previously revalued where the revaluation was 
taken to other comprehensive income.

In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive 
income up to the amount of any previous revaluation. For assets 
excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to 
whether there is any indication that previously recognised impairment 
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication 
exists, the Group estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A 
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been 
a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable 
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal 
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its 
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in 
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the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued 
amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

2.3.21	C ash and Short-Term Deposits
Cash and short-term deposits in the statement of financial position 
comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with a 
maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and 
short term deposits consist of cash and short-term deposits as defined 
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

2.3.22	 Provisions
General
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation 
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision 
to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the 
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the 
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is 
presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are 
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, 
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as 
a finance cost. The sale provision is estimated to be 1% of sales by the 
management based on their past practice.

Warranty Provisions
Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the product 
is sold or service provided to the customer. The provision is based 
on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes 
against their associated possibilities. This represents a general 
provision for future warranty expenses on sales up to the end of the 
financial period based on past trend for warranty claims.

2.3.23	E mployee Benefits
2.3.23.1	 Defined Benefit Plan – Gratuity
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a 
defined contribution plan. Group measure the cost of defined benefit 
plan-gratuity; every financial year using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method, as recommended by LKAS 19 – Employee Benefits, with the 
advice of an actuary.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by 
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates that 
are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and 
that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related 
liability. The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends 
on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis 
using a number of assumptions. Key assumptions used in determining 
the defined retirement benefit obligations are given in Note 27.3. Any 
changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of 
defined benefit obligations.

The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount 
rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, 
mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the long term 
nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant 
uncertainty.

Provision has been made for retirement gratuities from the beginning 
of service for all employees, in conformity with LKAS 19 - Employee 
Benefits. However, under the Payment of Gratuity Act No. 12 of 1983, 
the liability to an employee arises only on completion of 5 years of 
continued service.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the statement of other 
comprehensive income (OCI) in the period in which it arises.

The item is stated under Employee Benefit Liability in the statement of 
financial position.

This is not an externally funded defined benefit plan.

2.3.23.2	 Defined Contribution Plans - Employees’ Provident Fund & 
Employees’ Trust Fund
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under 
which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and 
will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. 
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Obligations for contributions to Provident and Trust Funds covering all 
employees are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or 
loss in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

All employees who are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund 
contributions and Employees’ Trust Fund contributions are covered 
by relevant contribution funds in line with respective statutes and 
regulations. The Group contributes 12% and 3% of gross emoluments 
of employees to Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund 
respectively.

2.3.24	 Statement of Cash Flows
The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared using the “Indirect 
Method”

Interest paid is classified as operating cash flow. Dividend received and 
investments in joint venture are classified as cash flows from operating 
activities. Dividend paid are classified as financing cash flows.

2.4	E ffect of Accounting Standards Issued But Not Yet Effective
The following SLFRS have been issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka that have an effective date in the future 
and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. 
Those SLFRS will have an effect on the accounting policies currently 
adopted by the Group and may have an impact on the future financial 
statements.

2.4.1	 SLFRS 9 -Financial Instruments: Classification and 
Measurement
SLFRS 9 replaces the existing guidance in LKAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement SLFRS 9 includes 
revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial 
instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating 
impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting 
requirements. It also carries forward the guidance on recognition and 
derecognition of financial instruments from LKAS 39.

SLFRS 9 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2018, with early adoption permitted.

2.4.2	 SLFRS 15 -Revenue from Contracts with Customers
SLFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining 
whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. It replaces existing 

revenue recognition guidance, including LKAS 18 Revenue, LKAS 11 
Construction Contracts and IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes.

SLFRS 15 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2018, with early adoption permitted.

Pending the completion of the detailed impact analysis, possible Impact 
from SLFRS 9, and SLFRS 15 is not reasonably estimable as of the 
reporting date.

The following Standards, amendments and improvements are not 
expected to have a significant impact on the Company’s/Group’s 
financial statements.

`` SLFRS 14 -Regulatory Deferral Accounts
`` Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations 

(Amendments to SLFRS 11).
`` Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and 

Amortisation (Amendments to LKAS 16 and LKAS 38).
`` Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments to 

LKAS 27).
`` Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate 

or Joint Venture (Amendments to SLFRS 10 and LKAS 28).
`` Annual Improvements to SLFRS 2012–2014 Cycle – various 

standards.
`` Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception 

(Amendments to SLFRS 10, SLFRS 12 and LKAS 28).
`` Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to LKAS 1).

3.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND 
ASSUMPTIONS
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with SLFRS 
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions 
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and 
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment 
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has 
made following judgments, estimates and assumptions which have the 
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in these financial 
statements.
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Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
The Group carries land and buildings at revalued amounts with changes 
in fair value being recognised in OCI. Land and buildings were valued by 
reference to market-based evidence, using comparable prices adjusted 
for specific market factors such as nature, location and condition of the 
property.

Impairment of Loans and Advances
The Company reviews their individually significant loans and advances 
at each date of statement-of-financial position to assess whether an 
impairment loss should be recorded in the Statement of profit or loss. 
In particular, management’s judgment is required in the estimation 
of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the 
impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about 
a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future 
changes to the impairment allowance. Loans and advances that 
have been assessed individually and found to be not impaired and 
all individually insignificant loans and advances are then assessed 
collectively, in Groups of assets with similar risk characteristics, to 
determine whether provision should be made due to incurred loss 
events for which there is objective evidence, but the effects of which are 
not yet evident. The collective assessment takes in to account data from 
the loan portfolio (such as levels of arrears, credit utilisation, loan-to-
collateral ratios, etc.), and judgments on the effect of concentrations of 
risks and economic data (including levels of unemployment, inflation, 
interest rates, exchange rates).

Further details about impairment of loans and advances are given in 
Note 11.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash 
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of 
its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use (VIU). The fair value 
less costs to sell calculation is based on available data from an active 
market, in an arm’s length transaction, of similar assets or observable 
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The 
value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The 
cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do 
not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed 
to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s 
performance of the cash generating unit being tested. The recoverable 
amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted 

cash flow model as well as the expected future cash inflows and the 
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Defined Benefit Plans
The cost as well as the present value of defined benefit plans - gratuity 
is determined using Actuarial Valuations. An actuarial valuation involves 
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments 
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, 
future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. 
Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term 
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in 
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting 
date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In 
determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers 
the interest rates of government bonds in currency consistent with the 
currency of the post-employment benefit obligation, and extrapolated 
as needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term 
of the defined benefit obligation. The underlying bonds are further 
reviewed for quality.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. 
Those mortality tables tend to change only at intervals in response to 
demographic changes. Future salary increases and pension increases 
are based on expected future inflation rates.

Further details about defined benefit obligations are given in Note 27.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgment is required to 
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, 
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits 
together with future tax planning strategies.

Transfer Pricing
The Group is subject to income taxes and other taxes including 
transfer pricing regulations. Management has used its judgement on 
the application of such laws and regulations aspects including but 
not limited to identifying associated undertaking, estimation of the 
respective arm’s length prices and selection of appropriate pricing 
mechanism.
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Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment
The Group reviews the assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods 
of depreciation at each reporting date; judgment by management is 
exercised in the estimation of these values, rates and methods.

4.	 SEGMENT REPORTING
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in 
business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, 
including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with 
any of Group’s other components. All operating segments’ operating 
results are reviewed regularly by the Chairman to make decisions about 
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, 
and for which discrete financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the Chairman include items 
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated 
on reasonable basis.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period 
to acquire property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets other 
than goodwill.

Segment Information
For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units 
based and services and has three reportable segments, as follows.

Trading
This segment includes importing and marketing of electrical and 
electronic home appliances, crockery and cookware, sanitary and 
light fittings, a host of other household items and carrying out electro 
mechanical contract work.

Engineering Services
Engineering services includes Air conditioning installation on providing 
complete range of MVAC (Mechanical, Ventilation and Air Conditioning) 
solution which includes supply, install, maintenance and after sales 
services.

Financial Services
The Financial Services segment provide services such as, acceptance 
of deposits, granting lease facilities, hire purchase, mortgage loans and 
other credit facilities, real estate development and related services.
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Segmental Information
	T rading	 Engineering Services	F inancial Services	G roup
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Revenue	 31,753,592,318	 27,607,920,111	 1,879,369,545	 1,526,907,920	 1,300,283,411	 947,389,726	 34,933,245,274	 30,082,217,757

Segment Results  
  (Operating Profit)	 2,365,395,523	 1,422,225,808	 118,526,595	 117,664,814	 160,669,356	 108,633,329	 2,644,591,474	 1,648,523,951
Finance Costs	 (1,024,548,170)	 (1,019,492,256)	 (26,359,919)	 (26,399,605)	 -	 -	 (1,050,908,089)	 (1,045,891,861)
Finance Income	 65,768,752	 191,418,624	 -	 -	 -	 -	 65,768,752	 191,418,624
Share of Associates Profits	 60,279,671	 42,950,354	 -	 -	 -	 -	 60,279,671	 42,950,354
Share of Joint Venture Loss	 (75,455,796)	 (45,274,224)	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (75,455,796)	 (45,274,224)
Profit before Income Tax	 1,391,439,980	 591,828,306	 92,166,676	 91,265,209	 160,669,356	 108,633,329	 1,644,276,012	 791,726,844
VAT on Financial Services	 (3,553,851)	 (14,344,111)	 -	 -	 (30,188,461)	 (11,123,943)	 (33,742,312)	 (25,468,054)
Income Tax Expense	 (457,207,593)	 (171,840,687)	 (13,334,350)	 (8,508,409)	 (40,356,230)	 (24,707,819)	 (510,898,173)	 (205,056,915)
Profit for the year	 930,678,536	 405,643,508	 78,832,326	 82,756,800	 90,124,665	 72,801,567	 1,099,635,527	 561,201,875

Assets and Liabilities
Non Current Assets	 2,297,082,801	 2,350,047,682	 178,431,506	 149,908,175	 4,433,297,369	 3,406,256,460	 6,908,811,676	 5,906,212,317
Current Assets	 21,313,768,054	 19,180,130,060	 2,301,229,355	 1,640,363,487	 1,715,411,873	 1,367,867,637	 25,330,409,282	 22,188,361,184
Total Assets	 23,610,850,855	 21,530,177,742	 2,479,660,861	 1,790,271,662	 6,148,709,242	 4,774,124,097	 32,239,220,958	 28,094,573,501

Non-Current Liabilities	 3,503,635,655	 4,293,274,277	 199,557,688	 183,453,144	 1,713,108,142	 1,274,028,911	 5,416,301,485	 5,750,756,332
Current Liabilities	 14,629,295,424	 12,244,554,009	 1,199,468,300	 1,016,034,556	 3,821,075,999	 2,975,225,015	 19,649,839,723	 16,235,813,580
Total Liabilities	 18,132,931,079	 16,537,828,286	 1,399,025,988	 1,199,487,700	 5,534,184,141	 4,249,253,926	 25,066,141,208	 21,986,569,912

Other Disclosures
Amortisation of Intangible Assets	 87,570,284	 84,976,134	 -	 -	 1,491,717	 4,607,033	 89,062,001	 89,583,167
Depreciation for the Year	 89,285,406	 79,167,643	 19,055,223	 19,055,223	 11,416,894	 7,804,503	 199,757,523	 106,027,369
Purchase of Property,  
  Plant and Equipment	 188,043,290	 339,089,194	 -	 76,312,493	 60,472,866	 16,726,387	 248,516,156	 432,128,074
Purchase of Intangible Assets	 4,745,627	 18,532,242	 -	 -	 6,859,530	 5,507,394	 11,605,157	 24,039,636
Provision for Employee  
  Benefit Liability	 32,588,467	 34,990,788	 5,339,956	 4,763,418	 9,122,855	 2,803,208	 47,051,278	 42,557,414
Deferred Tax Assets	 311,250,143	 265,050,026	 1,582,227	 4,393,317	 61,419,536	 18,446,150	 374,251,906	 287,889,493
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5.	REVENUE /OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES
5.1	 Revenue
	G roup	C ompany
Year ended 31 March	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Gross Revenue	 35,247,572,135	 30,357,798,921	 27,771,075,175	 25,264,873,710
Less: Nation Building Tax	 (314,326,861)	 (275,581,164)	 (269,482,166)	 (234,528,130)
Revenue	 34,933,245,274	 30,082,217,757	 27,501,593,009	 25,030,345,580

5.2	O ther Operating Income
	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Income from Other Investments	 9,202,318	 99,206,478	 23,042,590	 99,987,284
Commission Income	 143,297,107	 115,892,416	 109,696,558	 93,106,010
Rent Income	 11,852,072	 27,242,006	 9,018,422	 25,142,006
Sundry Income	 63,723,288	 41,430,190	 51,482,238	 33,354,653
Fixed Assets Hiring Income	 -	 -	 23,076,654	 21,654,607
Investment Disposal Income	 1,326,247	 -	 -	 15,750,000
Profit/(Loss) from Disposal of Assets	 6,845,895	 (197,703)	 8,345,024	 13,786,661
Fines and Surcharges	 11,367,969	 8,786,933	 10,876,172	 8,540,453
	 247,614,896	 292,360,320	 235,537,658	 311,321,674

5.3	F inance Cost
	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Interest Expense on Overdrafts	 10,205,412	 9,386,040	 4,368,541	 4,610,476
Interest Expense on Borrowings	 561,638,337	 686,766,864	 545,978,144	 668,645,897
Finance Charges on Lease Liabilities	 2,220,118	 1,234,203	 1,632,224	 1,234,203
Debenture Interest	 476,844,222	 348,504,754	 476,844,222	 348,504,754
	 1,050,908,089	 1,045,891,861	 1,028,823,131	 1,022,995,330
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5.4	F inance Income
	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Interest Income on Debtors	 33,333,149	 66,255,429	 33,333,149	 66,255,429
Interest Income on staff Loans	 1,403,035	 1,430,239	 1,403,035	 1,430,239
Interest Income on Bank Deposits and Intercompany	 31,032,568	 123,732,956	 27,967,536	 121,674,942
	 65,768,752	 191,418,624	 62,703,720	 189,360,610

5.5	 Profit/(Loss) Before Tax
	G roup	C ompany
Stated after Charging /(Crediting)	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Included in Administrative Expenses
Employees Benefits including the following
  - Defined Benefit Plan Costs - Gratuity	 47,051,278	 42,557,414	 28,799,511	 27,676,455
  - Defined Contribution Plan Costs - EPF & ETF	 118,533,943	 144,311,083	 64,976,306	 67,311,600
Amortisation of Intangible Assets	 89,062,001	 89,583,167	 87,319,450	 84,976,134
Depreciation	 119,757,523	 106,027,369	 93,644,038	 95,099,436
Exchange (Gains)/Losses	 (9,796,596)	 (10,585,388)	 (12,330,326)	 (11,528,047)
Auditors' Fees	 2,886,425	 3,025,598	 1,499,748	 1,036,500

Included in Selling and Distribution Expenses
Employees Benefits including the following
  - Defined Contribution Plan Costs - EPF & ETF	 271,744,313	 185,964,180	 229,734,914	 185,964,180
Transport Costs	 31,829,118	 21,178,664	 31,812,768	 21,171,014
Advertising Costs	 435,322,105	 414,582,742	 355,795,978	 308,927,020
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6.	INCO ME TAX
6.1	 Statement of Profit or Loss
	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Current Income Tax:
Current Tax Expense for the Year (Note 6.3)	 587,304,702	 247,567,205	 399,799,900	 177,506,056
Under/(Over) Provision of Current Taxes in respect of Prior Years	 (300,413)	 22,131,142	 (693,681)	 22,131,142
Expenses on Assessments	 2,056,361	 -	 2,056,361	 -
Share of Taxes of Associate	 18,875,789	 1,646,434	 -	 -

Deferred Tax:
Deferred Taxation Charge/(Reversal)	 (97,038,266)	 (66,287,866)	 (78,845,866)	 15,525,830
Income Tax Expense Reported in the Statement of Profit or Loss	 510,898,173	 205,056,915	 322,316,714	 215,163,027

6.2	 Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Deferred Tax Related to Items Charged or  
 C redited to Other Comprehensive Income:
Revaluation Gain	 7,540,066	 -	 5,606,407	 -
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Retirement Benefit Plans	 3,135,787	 (97,327)	 2,458,102	 945,097
Income Tax Charged Directly to Other Comprehensive Income	 10,675,853	 (97,327)	 8,064,509	 945,097

6.3	R econciliation between Current Tax Expense/(Income) and the Product of Accounting Profit.

	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Accounting Profit (Profit before Tax )	 1,678,018,324	 817,194,898	 1,053,614,171	 655,981,276
Less: Value Added Tax on Financial Statement	 (33,742,312)	 (25,468,054)	 (2,884,772)	 (2,722,882)
	 1,644,276,012	 791,726,844	 1,050,729,399	 653,258,394
Aggregate Disallowed Items	 818,683,655	 730,186,217	 738,076,179	 585,065,110
Aggregate Allowable Expenses	 (1,918,094,563)	 (1,194,787,032)	 (335,037,994)	 (326,616,580)
Income not Subject to Tax	 96,728,096	 (309,003,930)	 (60,758,185)	 (309,003,930)
Other Sources of Income Liable for Tax	 1,470,002,644	 939,397,830	 5,574,811	 19,514,157
Taxable Profit	 2,111,595,845	 957,519,929	 1,398,584,210	 622,217,151

Total Assessable Income	 1,469,229,089	 748,835,538	 1,469,229,089	 748,835,538
Tax Loss Utilised	 -	 (149,495,836)	 -	 (107,213,366)
	 1,469,229,089	 599,339,702	 1,469,229,089	 641,622,172

Construction & Export	 12%	 11,723,959	 12,803,271	 246,452	 206,823
Other	 28%	 575,580,743	 234,763,934	 399,553,448	 177,299,233
	 587,304,702	 247,567,205	 399,799,900	 177,506,056



99 Abans PLC | Annual Report 2015/16

OVERVIEW  |  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  |  GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE  |  FINANCIAL REPORTS  | SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6.4	R econciliation of Net Deferred Tax Asset
	G roup	C ompany
2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Balance as at 01 April	 (287,889,493)	 (221,504,303)	 204,587,498	 221,058,425
Charge/(Release) Made during the Year	 (86,362,413)	 (66,385,190)	 70,781,357	 (16,470,927)
Balance as at 31 March	 (374,251,906)	 (287,889,493)	 275,368,855	 204,587,498

6.5	 Deferred Tax Assets, Liabilities and Income Tax Relate to the Following:

	 Statements of	 Statement of Other	 Statement of
	 Financial Position	 Comprehensive Income	 Profit or Loss
Group	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Deferred Tax Liability
Capital Allowances for Tax Purposes
  - Property, Plant and Equipment	 65,648,040	 91,990,579	 -	 -	 (26,342,539)	 11,201,409
  - Intangible Assets	 10,523,296	 34,666,740	 -	 -	 (24,143,444)	 (18,625,915)
	 76,171,337	 126,657,319	 -	 -	 (50,485,982)	 (7,424,506)

Deferred Tax Assets
Employee Benefits Liabilities	 (62,227,372)	 (57,231,835)	 3,135,787	 (97,327)	 (8,131,324)	 (5,827,818)
Warranty Provision	 (87,881,656)	 (78,760,631)	 -	 -	 (9,121,025)	 (12,044,735)
Inventory Provision	 (78,280,801)	 (73,565,129)	 -	 -	 (4,715,672)	 6,528,219
Provision for Impairment on Trade and  
  Other Receivables	 (248,542,499)	 (196,982,665)	 -	 -	 (51,559,834)	 (24,426,612)
	 (476,932,328)	 (406,540,260)	 3,135,787	 (97,327)	 (73,527,855)	 (35,770,946)

Carried forward Tax Loss	 -	 (26,975,572)	 -	 -	 26,975,572	 (23,092,414)
Revaluation of Buildings	 26,509,086	 18,969,020	 7,540,066	 -	 -	 -
	 26,509,086	 (8,006,552)	 7,540,066	 -	 26,975,572	 (23,092,414)

Deferred Income Tax Charge/(Reversal)	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (97,038,266)	 (66,287,866)

Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset)	 (374,251,906)	 (287,889,493)	 10,675,853	 (97,327)
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6.	INCO ME TAX (Contd…)

	 Statements of	 Statement of Other	 Statement of
	 Financial Position	 Comprehensive Income	 Profit or Loss
Company	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Deferred Tax Liability
Capital Allowances for Tax Purposes
- Property, Plant and Equipment	 55,754,243	 65,643,989	 -	 -	 (9,889,746)	 14,944,590
- Intangible Assets	 10,499,631	 34,666,740	 -	 -	 (24,167,109)	 (18,625,915)
	 66,253,874	 100,310,729	 -	 -	 (34,056,855)	 (3,681,325)

Deferred Tax Assets
Employee Benefits Liabilities	 (41,936,217)	 (39,704,429)	 2,458,102	 945,097	 (4,689,890)	 8,581,857
Warranty Provision	 (75,529,526)	 (67,412,817)	 -	 -	 (8,116,709)	 (987,371)
Inventory Provision	 (71,139,270)	 (63,516,958)	 -	 -	 (7,622,312)	 16,576,392
Provision for Impairment on Trade and  
  Other Receivables	 (177,593,143)	 (153,233,043)	 -	 -	 (24,360,100)	 (4,963,723)
	 (366,198,156)	 (323,867,247)	 2,458,102	 945,097	 (44,789,011)	 19,207,155

Revaluation of Buildings	 24,575,427	 18,969,020	 5,606,407	 -	 -	 -
	 24,575,427	 18,969,020	 5,606,407	 -	 -	 -

Deferred Income Tax Charge/(Reversal)	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (78,845,866)	 15,525,830

Net Deferred Tax Liability/(Asset)	 (275,368,855)	 (204,587,498)	 8,064,509	 945,097

6.6	 The deferred tax effect on undistributed reserves of subsidiaries and associate has not been recognised since the parent can control the timing of the 
reversal of these temporary differences.
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7.	EARNING S/(LOSS) PER SHARE
7.1	 Basic Earnings Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average number 

of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year and the previous year are 
adjusted for events that have changed the number of ordinary shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in the resources such as a bonus 
issue or a share split.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic Earnings Per Share computations.

	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Amount Used as the Numerator:
Net Profit Attributable to Ordinary  
  Equity Holders of the Parent	 1,087,444,834	 564,835,785	 725,527,913	 435,372,485
Net Profit from Continuing Operations Attributable to  
  Ordinary Equity Holders of the Parent	 1,087,444,834	 549,085,785	 725,527,913	 435,372,485

	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	N umber	N umber	N umber	N umber

Number of Ordinary Shares used as the denominator:
Ordinary Shares	 2,160,000	 2,160,000	 2,160,000	 2,160,000
Non Voting Ordinary Shares	 25,000	 25,000	 25,000	 25,000
	 2,185,000	 2,185,000	 2,185,000	 2,185,000

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these 
financial statements.
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8.	 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
8.1	G ross Carrying Amounts
Group
	B alance As at					B     alance As at
	 01 April 2015	A dditions	D isposals	T ransfers*	R evaluation	 31 March 2016
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

At Cost or Valuation
Land	 487,341,001	 28,094,075	 -	 -	 69,832,000	 585,267,076
Buildings	 113,462,973	 1,471,946	 -	 (26,936,756)	 26,928,807	 114,926,970
Furniture and Fittings	 290,418,825	 64,576,739	 (61,214)	 17,456,055	 -	 372,390,405
Office Equipment	 87,128,037	 14,360,029	 (83,915)	 -	 -	 101,404,151
Motor Vehicles	 174,274,617	 54,375,911	 (30,214,447)	 -	 -	 198,436,081
Computer Equipment	 134,848,033	 32,159,737	 (2,512,727)	 -	 -	 164,495,043
Telephone	 1,265,061	 252,451	 -	 -	 -	 1,517,512
Service Equipment	 22,610,696	 8,011,915	 (644,224)	 -	 -	 29,978,387
Generators	 6,199,947	 30,951	 -	 -	 -	 6,230,898
Plant and Machinery	 2,046,115	 -	 -	 -	 -	 2,046,115
	 1,319,595,305	 203,333,754	 (33,516,527)	 (9,480,701)	 96,760,807	 1,576,692,638

Assets on Leases
Motor Vehicles	 33,767,972	 19,114,566	 (7,525,000)	 -	 -	 45,357,538
	 33,767,972	 19,114,566	 (7,525,000)	 -	 -	 45,357,538
Total Value of Depreciable Assets	 1,353,363,277	 222,448,320	 (41,041,527)	 (9,480,701)	 96,760,807	 1622,050,176

In the Course of Construction
Capital Working Progress	 -	 26,067,836	 -	 -	 -	 26,067,836
	 -	 26,067,836	 -	 -	 -	 26,067,836

Total Gross Carrying Amount	 1,353,363,277	 248,516,156	 (41,041,527)	 (9,480,701)	 96,760,807	 1,648,118,012
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8.2	 Depreciation & Impairment
	B alance As at	C harge for				B    alance As at
	 01 April 2015	 the Year	D isposals	T ransfers*	I mpairment	 31 March 2016
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

At Cost or Valuation
Land	 -	 -	 -	 -	 4,378,000	 4,378,000
Buildings	 6,112,151	 5,791,730	 -	 (11,903,881)	 8,419,326	 8,419,326
Furniture and Fittings	 94,787,760	 38,828,738	 (7,864)	 2,423,180	 -	 136,031,814
Office Equipment	 30,044,352	 11,582,466	 (40,062)	 -	 -	 41,586,756
Motor Vehicles	 85,575,480	 28,715,169	 (15,093,271)	 -	 -	 99,197,378
Computer Equipment	 83,196,334	 24,838,295	 (1,654,868)	 -	 -	 106,379,761
Telephone	 617,137	 248,351	 -	 -	 -	 865,488
Service Equipment	 16,826,991	 1,704,709	 (171,959)	 -	 -	 18,359,741
Generators	 4,282,697	 1,211,082	 -	 -	 -	 5,493,779
Plant and Machinery	 2,046,115	 -	 -	 -	 -	 2,046,115
	 323,489,017	 112,920,540	 (16,968,024)	 (9,480,701)	 12,797,326	 422,758,158

Assets on Leases
Motor Vehicles	 8,165,777	 5,439,370	 (4,479,572)	 -	 -	 9,125,575
	 8,165,777	 5,439,370	 (4,479,572)	 -	 -	 9,125,575
Total Depreciation	 331,654,794	 118,359,910	 (21,447,596)	 (9,480,701)	 12,797,326	 431,883,733

*This transfer includes the accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date that was eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the revalued asset 
which is amounting to LKR 9,480,701/-.

8.3	N et Book Values
			   2016	 2015
			   LKR	 LKR

At Cost or Valuation
Land			   580,889,076	 487,341,001
Buildings			   106,507,644	 107,350,822
Furniture and Fittings			   236,358,591	 195,631,065
Office Equipment			   59,817,395	 57,083,685
Motor Vehicles			   99,238,703	 88,699,137
Computer Equipment			   58,115,282	 51,651,699
Telephone			   652,024	 647,924
Service Equipment			   11,618,646	 5,783,705
Generators			   737,119	 1,917,250
Plant and Machinery			   -	 -
			   1,153,934,480	 996,106,288

Assets on Leases
Motor Vehicles			   36,231,963	 25,602,195
			   36,231,963	 25,602,195

In the Course of Construction
Capital Working Progress			   26,067,836	 -
			   26,067,836	 -
Total Carrying Amount of Property, Plant and Equipment			   1,216,234,279	 1,021,708,483
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8.	 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (Contd…)
8.4	G ross Carrying Amounts
Company
	B alance s at					B     alance As at
	 01 April 2015	A dditions	D isposals	T ransfers*	R evaluation	 31 March 2016
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

At Cost or Valuation
Land	 461,213,001	 -	 -	 -	 69,832,000	 531,045,001
Buildings	 101,648,505	 -	 -	 (26,054,587)	 20,022,882	 95,616,800
Furniture and Fittings	 243,749,431	 46,226,323	 -	 17,456,055	 -	 307,431,809
Office Equipments	 66,843,433	 6,158,797	 -	 -	 -	 73,002,230
Motor Vehicles	 134,917,383	 50,952,488	 (23,814,447)	 -	 -	 162,055,424
Computer Equipments	 80,966,049	 15,832,663	 (1,325,201)	 -	 -	 95,473,511
Telephone	 1,265,061	 249,593	 -	 -	 -	 1,514,654
Service Equipments	 146,015	 961,468	 (644,224)	 -	 -	 463,259
Generators	 6,199,947	 30,951	 -	 -	 -	 6,230,898
	 1,096,948,825	 120,412,283	 (25,783,872)	 (8,598,532)	 89,854,882	 1,272,833,586

Assets on Leases
Motor Vehicles	 28,087,500	 -	 (7,525,000)	 -	 -	 20,562,500
	 28,087,500	 -	 (7,525,000)	 -	 -	 20,562,500
Total Value of Depreciable Assets	 1,125,036,325	 120,412,283	 (33,308,872)	 (8,598,532)	 89,854,882	 1,293,396,086

In the Course of Construction
Capital Working Progress	 -	 26,067,836	 -	 -	 -	 26,067,836
	 -	 26,067,836	 -	 -	 -	 26,067,836
Total Gross Carrying Amount	 1,125,036,325	 146,480,119	 (33,308,872)	 (8,598,532)	 89,854,882	 1,319,463,922
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8.5	 Depreciation

	B alance As at	C harge for the				B    alance As at
	 01 April 2015	Y ear	D isposals	T ransfers*	I mpairment	 31 March 2016
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

At Cost or Valuation
Buildings	 5,822,053	 5,199,659	 -	 (11,021,712)	 8,020,500	 8,020,500
Furniture and Fittings	 67,623,196	 33,280,610	 -	 2,423,180	 -	 103,326,986
Office Equipments	 18,319,801	 8,718,584	 -	 -	 -	 27,038,385
Motor Vehicles	 57,170,000	 21,286,828	 (14,592,176)	 -	 -	 63,864,652
Computer Equipments	 44,665,429	 17,822,753	 (649,939)	 -	 -	 61,838,243
Telephone	 617,137	 248,296	 -	 -	 -	 865,433
Service Equipments	 36,691	 230,630	 (171,959)	 -	 -	 95,362
Generators	 4,282,697	 1,211,082	 -	 -	 -	 5,493,779
	 198,537,004	 87,998,442	 (15,414,074)	 (8,598,532)	 8,020,500	 270,543,340

Assets on Leases
Motor Vehicles	 7,455,718	 4,247,983	 (4,479,572)	 -	 -	 7,224,129
	 7,455,718	 4,247,983	 (4,479,572)	 -	 -	 7,224,129
Total Depreciation	 205,992,722	 92,246,425	 (19,893,646)	 (8,598,532)	 8,020,500	 277,767,469

*This transfer includes the accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date that was eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the revalued asset 
which is amounting to LKR 8,592,532/-.

8.6	N et Book Values
			   2016	 2015
			   LKR	 LKR

At Cost or Valuation
Land			   531,045,001	 461,213,001
Buildings			   87,596,300	 95,826,452
Furniture and Fittings			   204,104,823	 176,126,235
Office Equipments			   45,963,845	 48,523,632
Motor Vehicles			   98,190,772	 77,747,383
Computer Equipments			   33,635,268	 36,300,620
Telephone			   649,221	 647,924
Service Equipments			   367,897	 109,324
Generators			   737,119	 1,917,250
			   1,002,290,246	 898,411,821

Assets on Leases
Motor Vehicles			   13,338,371	 20,631,782
			   13,338,371	 20,631,782

In the Course of Construction
Capital Working Progress			   26,067,836	 -
			   26,067,836	 -
Total Carrying Amount of Property, Plant and Equipment			   1,041,696,453	 919,043,603
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8.	 PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT (Contd…)
8.7	 The Lands & Buildings of the Group were revalued during the financial year ended 31 March 2016 and such assets were valued on an open market 

value for existing use basis. The result of the revaluation have been incorporated in to the current year financial statements. The surplus arising from 
the revaluation was transferred to a revaluation reserve. Land and Buildings have been revalued by Mr. K.D.Sirisena (Incorporated Valuer) and H.N. 
Jayawardene (Incorporated Valuer).

The carrying amount of revalued assets that would have been included in the financial statements had the assets been carried at cost less depreciation is as 
follows:

		D  epreciation	N et Carrying	N et Carrying
		I  f assets were	A mount	A mount
Class of Asset	C ost	 carried at cost	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Land	 238,783,086	 -	 238,783,086	 238,783,086
Building	 62,760,168	 35,093,237	 27,666,931	 30,804,939

8.8	 During the financial year, the Group and Company acquired property, plant & equipment to the aggregate value of LKR 248,516,156/- and 
LKR 146,480,119/- respectively (2015 - LKR 432,128,074/- and LKR 373,208,405/-). Cash payment amounting LKR 229,401,590/-and LKR 
146,480,119/- respectively. (2015 - LKR 172,128,074/-and LKR 113,298,405/-).	  

8.9	 The amount of borrowing costs capitalised with property, plant and equipment during the year ended 31 March 2016 was Nil.

8.10	 Property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company includes fully depreciated assets having a gross carrying amount of LKR 66,062,032/- 
and LKR 66,062,032/- respectively (2015 -LKR 30,911,052/- and LKR 30,911,052/- ).

8.11	 The useful lives of the assets is estimated as follows;

			   2016	 2015

Buildings			   20 Years	 20 Years
Lease hold Buildings			   15 Years	 15 Years
Service Equipments			   4 Years	 4 Years
Office Equipments			   8 Years	 8 Years
Furniture and Fittings			   8 Years	 8 Years
Motor Vehicles			   4-10 Years	 4-10 Years
Computer Equipments			   4 Years	 4 Years
Telephone			   4 Years	 4 Years
Generators			   4 Years	 4 Years
Plant, Machinery and Equipment			   5-10 Years	 5-10 Years
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8.12	 Details of Land & Buildings Revaluation
Name of Professional Valuer /Location Extent Method of Valuation and 

Significant Unobservable Inputs
Range of Estimate for 

Unobservable Inputs
2016 Valuation  

LKR
2014 Valuation 

LKR
KD Sirisena- Consultant Valuer
Freehold Property at Ratmalana Market Comparable method
Land 14.9 P Price per perch of Land LKR 650,000 9,700,000 8,940,000
Building 5,162 sq.ft Price per sq.ft for Building LKR 1,500 7,800,000 7,773,000

KD Sirisena- Consultant Valuer
Freehold Property at Liberty Plaza Market Comparable method
Shopping Block at Liberty Plaza Colombo 435 sq.ft Gross monthly rental LKR  2,160 15,700,000 13,920,000

Estimated Outgoing Expenses 33.33%
Risk 4%

KD Sirisena- Consultant Valuer
Freehold Property at Kandy Market Comparable method
Land 11.094 P Price per perch of Land LKR  11,000,000 122,000,000 105,393,000
Building 4415 sq.ft Price per sq.ft for Building LKR                1,750 8,000,000 7,726,250
KD Sirisena- Consultant Valuer
Freehold Property at Kalutara Market Comparable method
Land 24.46 P Price per perch of Land LKR             805,000 19,700,000 17,310,000
Building 9403 sq.ft Price per sq.ft for Building LKR                3,500 33,000,000 32,910,500
KD Sirisena- Consultant Valuer
Freehold Property at Nugegoda Market Comparable method
Land 17.45 P Price per perch of Land LKR          4,038,000 70,470,000 60,235,000
KD Sirisena- Consultant Valuer
Freehold Property at Gampaha Market Comparable method
Land 17.52 P Price per perch of Land LKR          3,000,000 52,600,000 43,800,000
Building sq.ft Price per sq.ft for Building LKR 1,000,000 1,000,000
KD Sirisena- Consultant Valuer
Freehold Property at Kurunegala Market Comparable method
Land 50 P Price per perch of Land LKR          1,750,000 87,500,000 77,320,000
Building sq.ft Price per sq.ft for Building LKR 2,500,000 2,500,000
KD Sirisena- Consultant Valuer
Freehold Property at Rajagiriya Market Comparable method
Land 22 P Price per perch of Land LKR          2,500,000 55,000,000 48,400,000
Building 3687 sq.ft Price per sq.ft for Building LKR                   600 2,200,000 2,212,200
KD Sirisena- Consultant Valuer
Freehold Property at Wellawatta Market Comparable method
Land 25.65 P Price per perch of Land LKR          3,500,000 90,000,000 76,950,000
HN Jayawardene
Freehold Property at Ratmalana Market Comparable method
Land 15.00  P Price per purch of Land LKR             750,000 11,250,000 9,750,000
Building 3,157 sq.ft Price per sq.ft for Building LKR                2,500 7,892,500 5,552,400
HN Jayawardene
Freehold Property at Ratmalana Market Comparable method
Land 17 P Price per purch of Land LKR             750,000 12,825,000 11,115,000
Building 3,690 sq.ft Price per sq.ft for Building LKR                2,576 9,503,800 4,527,600
R T K Sirisena
Freehold Property at Galnewa Market Comparable method
Building sq.ft Price per sq.ft for Building LKR             410,000 35,000,000 -
KD Sirisena- Consultant Valuer
Freehold Property at Ratmalana Market Comparable method
Land 15.75 P Price per purch of Land LKR             750,000 12,000,000 -
Land 15 P Price per purch of Land LKR             650,000 9,750,000 -
Building 3065 sq.ft Price per sq.ft for Building LKR                3,888 12,000,000 -
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9.	 Prepaid Lease Rent
			   2016	 2015
Group/Company			   LKR	 LKR

As at 01 April			   260,000,000	 -
Additions During the Year			   -	 260,000,000
Amortisation for the Year			   (2,626,263)	 -
As at 31 March			   257,373,737	 260,000,000

9.1	 Leasehold land payments are up-front payments to acquire long-term leasehold interests of land situated in Bentota obtained from The Sri Lanka 
Tourism Development Authority. These payments are stated at cost and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease period of 99 years.

10.	INVE STMENT PROPERTIES
10.1	G ross Carrying Amounts

Group/Company	B alance As at			B   alance As at
	 01 April 2015	A dditions	D isposals	 31 March 2016
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

At Cost
Land	 14,676,525	 -	 -	 14,676,525
Buildings	 27,892,446	 -	 -	 27,892,446
	 42,568,971	 -	 -	 42,568,971

10.2	 Depreciation
	
	B alance As at	C harge for		B  alance As at
	 01 April 2015	 the Year	D isposals	 31 March 2016
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

At Cost
Buildings	 17,316,761	 1,397,613	 -	 18,714,374
	 17,316,761	 1,397,613	 -	 18,714,374

10.3	N et Book Value
			   2016	 2015
			   LKR	 LKR

At Cost
Carrying Amount of Investment Property			   23,854,597	 25,252,210
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10.4	 Details of Fair Values of Investment Properties are as follows;

Name of Professional	 Extent	 Significant Unobservable	 Range of Estimate for		  Date of the
Valuer/Location		I  nputs	U nobservable Inputs	V aluation	V aluation 

KD Sirisena- Consultant Valuer
Investment Property at  
Ratmalana		  Market Comparable method
Land	 31 P	 Price per perch of Land	 LKR 4,173,387	 148,250,000	 15 March 2016
Building	 15164 sq.ft	 Price per sq.ft for Building	 LKR 3,940	 59,750,000
				    208,000,000

*The investment properties are valued by Mr. K.D. Sirisena, Incorporated Valuer using the open market value method.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The fair value of the Group’s/Company’s investment property are categorised into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

10.5	 No rental income earned or direct operating expenses incurred for the investment properties.

10.6	 The useful lives of the investment property is estimated as follows;

			   2016	 2015

Building			   20 Years	 20 Years

11.	 LEASE RENTALS RECEIVABLE AND STOCK OUT ON HIRE - GROUP
Group
11.1
	W ithin One Year	O ver One Year*	T otal
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Gross Receivable
  - Lease Rentals	 2,608,328,913	 1,714,060,734	 2,233,308,471	 1,864,922,946	 4,841,637,384	 3,578,983,680
  - Amounts receivable from Hirers	 165,402,739	 353,080,049	 47,482,264	 170,500,462	 212,885,003	 523,580,511
	 2,773,731,652	 2,067,140,783	 2,280,790,735	 2,035,423,408	 5,054,522,387	 4,102,564,191
Less: Unearned Income	 (767,466,097)	 (608,135,623)	 (408,510,724)	 (392,013,239)	 (1,175,976,821)	 (1,000,148,862)
Net Investment	 2,006,265,555	 1,459,005,160	 1,872,280,011	 1,643,410,169	 3,878,545,566	 3,102,415,329

Less:
  - Allowances For Impairment Losses	 (276,780,949)	 (195,612,684)			   (276,780,949)	 (195,612,684)
  - Rentals received in advance	 (20,500)	 (124,357)			   (20,500)	 (124,357)
  - VAT	 (5,492,338)	 (3,393,038)			   (5,492,338)	 (3,393,038)
	 1,723,971,768	 1,259,875,081			   3,596,251,779	 2,903,285,250

* Lease rental receivables include, net rental receivable balance over 5 year of LKR 11,499/- (2015 - LKR 66,579)



110 Abans PLC | Annual Report 2015/16

OVERVIEW  |  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  |  GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE  |  FINANCIAL REPORTS  | SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

11.	 LEASE RENTALS RECEIVABLE AND STOCK OUT ON HIRE - GROUP (Contd…)
11.2	A llowance for Impairment
			   2016	 2015
			   LKR	 LKR

As at 01 April			   195,612,684	 151,926,289
Charge/(Reversal) for the year			   145,889,821	 44,238,677
Amount Written off			   (64,721,556)	 (552,282)
As at 31 March			   276,780,949	 195,612,684

12.	IN TANGIBLE ASSETS	
	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

As at 01 April	 134,128,101	 199,671,632	 123,809,786	 190,330,911
Acquired during the year	 11,605,157	 24,039,636	 1,008,347	 18,455,009
Charge for the year	 (89,062,001)	 (89,583,167)	 (87,319,450)	 (84,976,134)
As at 31 March	 56,671,257	 134,128,101	 37,498,683	 123,809,786

12.1	 This includes only locally purchased software where it is estimated that these software will benefits the Company over period of 4 years, and is being 
amortised over a period of 4 years.

13.	INVE STMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
13.1	 Quoted
	H olding	C ost	 Market Value	C ost	 Market Value
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2016	 2015	 2015
	 %	 %	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Abans Finance PLC*	 89.26	 89.26	 360,172,561	 1,261,555,229	 360,172,561	 842,137,653
			   360,172,561	 1,261,555,229	 360,172,561	 842,137,653

* Abans Finance PLC was Listed in Colombo Stock Exchange on June 2011

13.2	N on-Quoted
	H olding	C ost		C  ost
	 2016	 2015	 2016		  2015
	 %	 %	 LKR		  LKR

AB Technologies (Pvt) Ltd.	 100	 100	 5,000,000		  5,000,000
Abans Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.	 56.87	 56.87	 6,000,000		  6,000,000
Abans Retail (Pvt) Ltd	 100	 100	 100,000,000		  100,000,000
Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd	 95	 95	 950		  950
Less: Impairment			   (5,000,000)		  (5,000,000)
			   106,000,950		  106,000,950
Carrying Value of  
 I nvestments in Subsidiaries			   466,173,511		  466,173,511

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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14.	 MATERIAL PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES
14.1	 Proportion of Equity Interest Held by Non-Controlling Interests:

		C  ountry of
		I  ncorporation	 2016	 2015
Name		  and Operation	 %	 %

Abans Finance PLC		  Sri Lanka	 10.74	 10.74
Abans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd		  Sri Lanka	 5	 5

14.2	 The summarised financial information of these subsidiaries is provided below. This information is based on amounts before inter-company eliminations.

	A bans Finance PLC	A bans Engineering (Pvt) Ltd
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Summarised Statement of Profit or Loss
Revenue	 1,300,283,411	 947,389,726	 1,956,385,140	 1,603,923,516
Expenses	 (1,139,614,055)	 (838,756,396)	 (1,837,388,176)	 (1,494,757,668)
Finance Cost	 -	 -	 (25,362,770)	 (22,111,823)
Profit for the year	 160,669,356	 108,633,330	 93,634,194	 87,054,025

Attributable to Non-Controlling Interests	 17,255,889	 11,667,220	 4,681,710	 4,352,701

Summarised Statement of Financial Position
Non Current Assets	 2,709,325,601	 1,806,485,785	 109,855,050	 93,369,266
Current Assets	 3,439,383,641	 2,967,638,313	 1,893,121,132	 1,396,063,302
Non Current Liabilities	 (1,713,108,142)	 (35,004,726)	 (38,853,704)	 (22,749,160)
Current Liabilities	 (3,821,075,999)	 (4,214,249,200)	 (1,808,189,112)	 (1,390,455,499)
Total Equity	 614,525,101	 524,870,172	 156,138,895	 76,227,909

Attributable to Equity Holders of Parent	 548,525,105	 468,499,116	 148,331,950	 72,416,514
Attributable to Non-Controlling Interest	 65,999,996	 56,371,056	 7,806,945	 3,811,395

Summarised Cash Flow Information
Operating	 107,996,674	 587,734,926	 (226,462,300)	 (143,220,438)
Investing	 118,347,087	 (117,069,735)	 (40,254,996)	 (29,155,187)
Financing	 (65,532,531)	 (225,205,345)	 221,632,338	 116,728,055
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents	 160,811,230	 245,459,847	 (45,084,958)	 (55,647,570)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15.	INVE STMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
15.1	 The Group/Company has a 42.95% (2015 - 42.95%) interest in Abans Electricals PLC, which is involved in the manufacturing and assembling 

household electrical and electronic appliances and providing repairs, maintenance and technical services of similar type of appliances.

	 Abans Electricals PLC is a public quoted entity listed in Colombo Stock Exchange.

15.2	 The Group’s interest in Abans Electricals PLC is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. The following table 
illustrates the summarised financial information of the Group’s investment in Abans Electricals PLC;

Group
			   2016	 2015
			   LKR	 LKR

Summarised Statement of Profit or Loss
Revenue			   3,506,809,241	 2,731,611,106
Operating Expenses			   (3,325,851,584)	 (2,600,494,537)
Finance Income			   -	 -
Finance Cost			   (40,609,179)	 (31,115,745)
Profit for the Year			   140,348,478	 100,000,824
Group's Share of Profit for the Year			   60,279,671	 42,950,354

Summarised Statement of Financial Position
Non Current Assets			   701,832,377	 625,622,852
Current Assets			   1,313,034,246	 995,235,082
Non Current Liabilities			   (150,108,970)	 (149,006,807)
Current Liabilities			   (1,066,761,161)	 (756,964,722)
Equity			   797,996,492	 714,886,405
Group's Carrying Amount of the Investment			   342,739,493	 307,043,711

			   2016	 2015
			   LKR	 LKR

Equity Reconciliation
Carrying Value as at 01 April			   307,043,712	 273,509,727
Share of Operating Profits/(Loss)			   60,279,671	 42,950,354
Share of Income Tax			   (18,875,789)	 (1,646,434)
Actuarial Gain /(Loss)			   (220,637)	 (2,282,471)
Dividend Received			   (5,487,464)	 (5,487,464)
Carrying Value as at 31 March			   342,739,493	 307,043,712

15.3	I nvestments in an Associate
		  Market		  Market
	C ost	V aluation	C ost	V aluation
Company	 2016	 2016	 2015	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Quoted
Abans Electricals PLC	 30,752,197	 243,884,387	 30,752,197	 232,030,420
	 30,752,197		  30,752,197

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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16.	INVE STMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE

16.1	 The Group/Company has a 50% interest in Colombo City Centre Partners (Private) Limited, a joint venture carries out mix development project.

16.2	 The Group’s interest in Colombo City Centre Partners (Private) Limited is accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial 
statements. Summarised financial information of the joint venture and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in the financial 
statements are set out below:

Group
			   2016	 2015
			   LKR	 LKR

Summarised Statement of Profit or Loss
Revenue			   -	 -
Operating Expenses			   (146,646,850)	 (89,881,055)
Finance Cost			   (4,264,742)	 (667,392)
Profit for the Year			   (150,911,591)	 (90,548,447)
Group's Share of Profit for the Year			   (75,455,796)	 (45,274,224)

Summarised Statement of Financial Position
Non Current Assets			   2,506,495,456	 3,445,864,650
Current Assets			   3,921,315,334	 383,606,973
Non Current Liabilities			   (931,590,484)	 -
Current Liabilities			   (950,640,315)	 (345,136,011)
Equity			   4,545,579,991	 3,484,335,613
Group's Carrying amount of the Investments			   2,055,169,194	 1,736,208,070

			   2016	 2015
			   LKR	 LKR

Equity Reconciliation
Carrying Value as at 01 April			   1,736,208,070	 1,320,482,294
Investment Made during the Year			   394,416,920	 461,000,000
Share of Profits/(Loss)			   (75,455,796)	 (45,274,224)
Carrying Value as at 31 March			   2,055,169,194	 1,736,208,070

16.3	I nvestment in a Joint Venture
			C   ost	C ost
			   2016	 2015
			   LKR	 LKR

Colombo City Centre Holdings Partners (Private) Limited			   2,198,216,870	 1,803,799,950
			   2,198,216,870	 1,803,799,950

There are considerations received from other investors as well as Abans PLC, which are classified under equity as Consideration Received for Shares.	  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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17.	O THER FINANCIAL ASSETS
	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Non Current
Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (Note 17.1 & Note 17.4)	 7,893,809	 25,413,089	 978,568	 1,189,700
Available for Sale of Financial Assets (Note 17.2 & Note 17.5)	 25,133,140	 125,263,395	 15,600,000	 15,600,000
	 33,026,949	 150,676,484	 16,578,568	 16,789,700

Current
Loans and Receivables*	 235,338,979	 341,028,678	 11,240,814	 8,105,005
Held to Maturity (Note 17.3)	 21,669,813	 21,150,414	 -	 -
	 257,008,792	 362,179,092	 11,240,814	 8,105,005

* Loans and receivables comprises fixed deposit investments which include investments amounting to LKR 38,000,000/- that have been pledged for facilities 
obtained from banks.

17.1	F air Value Through Profit or Loss

Group	C ost	 Market Value	C ost	 Market Value
	 2016	 2016	 2015	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Hotels & Travels
Mahaweli Reach Hotels PLC	 365,104	 212,440	 365,104	 197,400
Renuka City Hotel PLC	 394,136	 421,720	 394,136	 429,130
	 759,240	 634,160	 759,240	 626,530

Diversified Holdings
Hayleys PLC	 5,975	 16,708	 5,975	 20,400
John Keells Holdings PLC	 490,343	 345,284	 482,573	 398,200
JKH Warrants	 -	 -	 -	 2,239
Aitken Spence PLC	 -	 446	 -	 -
	 496,318	 362,438	 488,548	 420,839

Power & Energy
Lanka IOC PLC	 1,324,191	 1,300,000	 1,324,191	 1,628,000
	 1,324,191	 1,300,000	 1,324,191	 1,628,000

Banking & Finance
Sampath Bank PLC	 1,036,175	 912,362	 1,036,175	 995,302
Seylan Bank PLC - Non Voting	 673,660	 756,000	 673,660	 756,000
Seylan Bank PLC - Voting	 102,131	 86,000	 102,131	 100,000
First Capital Holdings PLC	 78,757	 37,283	 78,757	 52,704
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC	 57,740	 57,178	 57,740	 65,600
Hatton National Bank PLC	 248,806	 270,650	 248,806	 17,129,531
Nations Trust Bank PLC	 183,027	 148,400	 183,027	 200,200
Central Finance Company PLC	 239,149	 210,000	 239,149	 250,100
Union Bank PLC	 189,600	 116,200	 189,600	 168,700
DFCC Bank	 213,262	 137,000	 213,262	 202,900
Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC	 124,486	 115,000	 124,486	 107,500
	 3,146,793	 2,846,073	 3,146,793	 20,028,537

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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17.1	F air Value Through Profit or Loss (Contd…)
	C ost	 Market Value	C ost	 Market Value
	 2016	 2016	 2015	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Telecommunication
Sri Lanka Telecom PLC	 239,386	 162,572	 239,386	 190,645
	 239,386	 162,572	 239,386	 190,645

Manufacturing
Royal Ceramic Lanka PLC	 18,000	 120,120	 18,000	 135,600
Singer Sri Lanka	 60,672	 58,850	 60,672	 57,000
Tokyo Cement Company (Lanka) PLC - Non Voting	 640,367	 528,913	 640,367	 610,788
Tokyo Cement Company (Lanka) PLC - Voting	 444,928	 370,000	 444,928	 549,000
Regnis (Lanka) PLC	 8,116	 29,240	 8,116	 16,200
	 1,172,083	 1,107,123	 1,172,083	 1,368,588

Hospitals
Lanka Hospital Corporation PLC	 157,343	 153,000	 157,343	 119,700
	 157,343	 153,000	 157,343	 119,700

Investment
Ceylon Investment PLC	 108,300	 53,174	 108,300	 91,000
Access Engineering Ltd	 150,264	 83,200	 150,264	 76,800
Ceylon Guardian Investment Trust PLC	 102,687	 60,449	 102,687	 92,000
	 361,251	 196,823	 361,251	 259,800

Automobiles
United Motors Lanka PLC	 53,088	 41,500	 53,088	 44,000
	 53,088	 41,500	 53,088	 44,000

Beverage, Food & Tobacco
Hemas Holdings PLC	 117,502	 188,040	 100,726	 156,450
Piramal Glass Ceylon PLC	 465,152	 510,000	 465,152	 570,000
	 582,654	 698,040	 565,878	 726,450

Insurance
Peoples' Insurance PLC	 348,000	 392,080	 -	 -
	 348,000	 392,080	 -	 -

	 8,640,347	 7,893,809	 8,267,801	 25,413,089
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17.	O THER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Contd...)
17.2	A vailable for Sale of Financial Assets

Group			C   arrying Value	C arrying Value
	N o of Shares	N o of Shares	 2016	 2015
	 2016	 2015	 LKR	 LKR

Investment in Ordinary Shares	
Abans Environmental Services (Pvt) Ltd.	 1,000	 1,000	 500,000	 500,000
Abans Restaurant Systems (Pvt) Ltd.	 500,000	 500,000	 5,000,000	 5,000,000
Crown City Developers (Pvt) Ltd	 10,000	 10,000	 100,000	 100,000
			   5,600,000	 5,600,000

Investment in Preference Shares
Abans Investment (Pvt) Ltd.	 1,945,274	 1,945,274	 19,452,740	 19,452,740
AB Leisure (Pvt) Ltd.	 500,000	 500,000	 5,000,000	 5,000,000
Investment in Unit Trust	 -	 -	 -	 100,130,255
Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka	 1,000	 1,000	 80,400	 80,400
Less : Impairment - AB Leisure (Pvt) Limited	 -	 -	 (5,000,000)	 (5,000,000)
			   19,533,140	 119,663,395
			   25,133,140	 125,263,395

17.3	H eld to Maturity

Group			   2016	 2015
			   LKR	 LKR

Treasury Bonds*			   21,669,813	 21,150,414
			   21,669,813	 21,150,414

* Government of Sri Lanka

17.4	F air Value Through Profit or Loss
	
Company	C ost	 Market Value	C ost	 Market Value
	 2016	 2016	 2015	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Royal Ceramic Lanka PLC	 18,000	 120,120	 18,000	 135,600
Lanka IOC PLC	 675,000	 812,500	 675,000	 1,017,500
Hayleys PLC	 5,975	 16,708	 5,975	 20,400
Regnis (Lanka) PLC	 8,116	 29,240	 8,116	 16,200
	 707,091	 978,568	 707,091	 1,189,700
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17.5	A vailable for Sale of Financial Assets

Company			    Carrying Value	C arrying Value
	N o. of Shares	N o. of Shares	 2016	 2015
	 2016	 2015	 LKR	 LKR

Investment in Ordinary Shares
Abans Environmental Services (Pvt) Ltd.	 1,000	 1,000	 500,000	 500,000
Abans Restaurant Systems (Pvt) Ltd.	 500,000	 500,000	 5,000,000	 5,000,000
Crown City Developers (Pvt) Ltd	 10,000	 10,000	 100,000	 100,000
			   5,600,000	 5,600,000

Investment in Preference Shares
Abans Investment (Pvt) Ltd.	 1,000,000	 1,000,000	 10,000,000	 10,000,000
AB Leisure (Pvt) Ltd.	 500,000	 500,000	 5,000,000	 5,000,000
Less : Impairment - AB Leisure (Pvt) Limited	 -	 -	 (5,000,000)	 (5,000,000)
			   10,000,000	 10,000,000
			   15,600,000	 15,600,000

18.	 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
18.1	 Group
	 2016	 2015
	C urrent	N on-Current	T otal	C urrent	N on-Current	T otal
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Trade Receivables	 - Related Parties	 134,162,086	 -	 134,162,086	 158,092,703	 -	 158,092,703
	 - Other	 8,868,202,819	 -	 8,868,202,819	 7,560,473,119	 -	 7,560,473,119
Less: Provision for Impairment	 (530,527,158)	 -	 (530,527,158)	 (452,086,863)	 -	 (452,086,863)
		  8,471,837,747	 -	 8,471,837,747	 7,266,478,959	 -	 7,266,478,959
Other Debtors	 - Related Parties	 1,574,054,042	 -	 1,574,054,042	 2,169,724,186	 -	 2,169,724,186
	 - Other	 1,057,360,883	 -	 1,057,360,883	 1,088,173,690	 -	 1,088,173,690
Less: Provision for Impairment	 (478,076,380)	 -	 (478,076,380)	 (495,213,476)	 -	 (495,213,476)
		  10,625,176,292	 -	 10,625,176,292	 10,029,163,359	 -	 10,029,163,359
Loans and Advances		 508,467,507	 677,210,253	 1,185,677,760	 266,541,666	 339,895,595	 606,437,261
Staff Loans		  97,647,833	 -	 97,647,833	 87,780,222	 -	 87,780,222
		  11,231,291,632	 677,210,253	 11,908,501,885	 10,383,485,247	 339,895,595	 10,723,380,842
Advances and Prepayments	 311,400,648	 -	 311,400,648	 304,543,326	 -	 304,543,326
		  11,542,692,280	 677,210,253	 12,219,902,533	 10,688,028,573	 339,895,595	 11,027,924,168

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



118 Abans PLC | Annual Report 2015/16

OVERVIEW  |  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  |  GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE  |  FINANCIAL REPORTS  | SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

18.	 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd…)
18.2	C ompany
	 2016	 2015
	C urrent	N on-Current	T otal	C urrent	N on-Current	T otal
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Trade Receivables	 - Related Parties	 844,362,073	 -	 844,362,073	 1,009,892,654	 -	 1,009,892,654
	 - Other	 6,470,824,207	 -	 6,470,824,207	 5,824,590,447	 -	 5,824,590,447
Less: Provision for Impairment	 (494,549,734)	 -	 (494,549,734)	 (431,753,557)	 -	 (431,753,557)
		  6,820,636,546	 -	 6,820,636,546	 6,402,729,544	 -	 6,402,729,544
Other Debtors	 - Related Parties	 2,316,839,423	 -	 2,316,839,423	 2,938,954,675	 -	 2,938,954,675
	 - Other	 612,357,720	 -	 612,357,720	 691,139,293	 -	 691,139,293
Less: Provision for Impairment	 (310,419,062)	 -	 (310,419,062)	 (392,585,505)	 -	 (392,585,505)
		  9,439,414,627	 -	 9,439,414,627	 9,640,238,007	 -	 9,640,238,007
Staff Loans		  55,317,548	 -	 55,317,548	 57,618,438	 -	 57,618,438
		  9,494,732,175	 -	 9,494,732,175	 9,697,856,445	 -	 9,697,856,445
Advances and Prepayments	 281,507,312	 -	 281,507,312	 276,621,739	 -	 276,621,739
		  9,776,239,487	 -	 9,776,239,487	 9,974,478,184	 -	 9,974,478,184

18.3	 Provision for Impairment
	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Balance as at 01 April	 947,300,339	 856,473,724	 824,339,062	 818,245,840
Provision Made During the Period	 61,303,199	 90,826,615	 (19,370,266)	 6,093,222
Balance as at 31 March	 1,008,603,538	 947,300,339	 804,968,796	 824,339,062

19.	INVEN TORIES
	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Work in Progress	 393,524,150	 450,852,263	 7,511,796	 53,636,092
Finished Goods	 10,176,635,158	 8,409,041,163	 8,963,247,254	 7,207,173,749
Real Estate Stock	 83,066,481	 97,139,978	 -	 -
Less: Provision for slow moving inventory	 (287,500,828)	 (268,373,431)	 (254,068,823)	 (226,846,280)
Total Inventories at the Lower of Cost and Net Realisable Value	 10,365,724,961	 8,688,659,973	 8,716,690,227	 7,033,963,561

20.	 SECURITIES PURCHASED UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENT
			   2016	 2015
Group			   LKR	 LKR

Repurchase Agreements			   630,158,530	 426,888,521
			   630,158,530	 426,888,521
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21.	CA SH AND SHORT TERM DEPOSITS
21.1	F avourable Cash and Short Term Deposits
	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Cash and Bank Balances	 806,268,158	 758,088,398	 663,688,713	 614,002,427
	 806,268,158	 758,088,398	 663,688,713	 614,002,427

21.2	U nfavourable Cash and Short Term Deposits
Bank Overdraft (Note 25)	 (361,699,166)	 (230,761,364)	 (236,658,512)	 (131,316,213)
Total Cash and Short Term Deposits for the Purpose of Cash Flows Statement	 444,568,992	 527,327,034	 427,030,201	 482,686,214

22.	 STATED CAPITAL
	 2016	 2015
	N umber	 LKR	N umber	 LKR

Ordinary Shares *	 2,160,000	 216,000,000	 2,160,000	 216,000,000
Non Voting Ordinary Shares **	 25,000	 2,500,000	 25,000	 2,500,000
	 2,185,000	 218,500,000	 2,185,000	 218,500,000

*The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at a meeting of the 
Company.	  

**The holders of non voting ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time on the discretion of the directors. The holders of 
these shares are not entitled to vote at a meeting of the Company.

23.	O THER COMPONENTS OF EQUITY
	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Revaluation Reserve (Note 23.1)	 395,864,337	 307,385,292	 391,633,767	 307,385,292
Other Reserves (Note 23.2)	 45,204,884	 45,321,150	 7,415,000	 7,415,000
	 441,069,221	 352,706,442	 399,048,767	 314,800,292

23.1	R evaluation Reserve
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

On: Land and Buildings
Balance as at the Beginning of the Year	 307,385,292	 307,385,292	 307,385,292	 307,385,292
Increase/(Decrease) in Revaluation Reserve Net of Tax	 88,479,045	 -	 84,248,475	 -
Balance as at the End of the Year	 395,864,337	 307,385,292	 391,633,767	 307,385,292
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23.	O THER COMPONENTS OF EQUITY (Contd…)
23.2	O ther Reserves
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Statutory Reserve & Investment Fund Reserve (Note 23.2.1)	 53,878,999	 37,789,884	 -	 -
Other Reserves*	 7,415,000	 7,531,266	 7,415,000	 7,415,000
	 61,293,999	 45,321,150	 7,415,000	 7,415,000

*Other Reserves are used for General Purposes

23.2.1	 Statutory Reserve & Investment Fund Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year	 37,784,884	 41,683,126	 -	 -
Transfers during the year	 16,089,115	 (3,893,242)	 -	 -
	 53,878,999	 37,789,884	 -	 -

23.2.2	 Reserve Fund is a capital reserve which contains profits transferred as required by Section 3(b)(ii) of Central Bank Direction No. 1 of 2003.

24.	 DIVIDENDS PAID AND PROPOSED

Company			   2016	 2015
			   LKR	 LKR

Cash Dividends on Ordinary Shares Declared and Paid:			   132,080,000	 -
Interim dividend for 2015: LKR 2,000 per share on Non Voting Ordinary Shares 			   50,000,000	 -
Interim dividend for 2015: LKR 38 per share on Ordinary Shares			   82,080,00	 -
			   132,080,000	 -

25.	IN TEREST BEARING BORROWINGS
25.1	 Group
	A mount	A mount		A  mount	A mount
	R epayable	R epayable	 2016	R epayable	R epayable	 2015
	W ithin 1 Year	A fter 1 Year	T otal	W ithin 1 Year	A fter 1 Year	T otal
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Finance Leases	 5,721,042	 14,550,790	 20,271,832	 4,141,905	 6,101,396	 10,243,301
Import Financing Loans	 6,213,544,400	 -	 6,213,544,400	 5,669,101,655	 -	 5,669,101,655
Bank Loans	 2,113,421,836	 26,143,500	 2,139,565,336	 672,241,505	 120,871,525	 793,113,030
Bank Overdrafts (Note 21.2)	 361,699,166	 -	 361,699,166	 230,761,364	 -	 230,761,364
Commercial Papers	 77,799,911	 -	 77,799,911	 443,921,574	 -	 443,921,574
Debentures - Unsecured	 -	 -	 -	 40,000,000	 -	 40,000,000
Debentures - Listed - Unsecured	 959,769,786	 3,127,088,921	 4,086,858,707	 115,298,059	 3,955,427,220	 4,070,725,279
Securitisation	 124,327,406	 -	 124,327,406	 155,822,501	 66,213,612	 222,036,113
	 9,856,283,547	 3,167,783,211	 13,024,066,758	 7,331,288,563	 4,148,613,753	 11,479,902,316
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25.2	C ompany
	A mount	A mount		A  mount	A mount
	R epayable	R epayable	 2016	R epayable	R epayable	 2015
	W ithin 1 Year	A fter 1 Year	T otal	W ithin 1 Year	A fter 1 Year	T otal
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Finance Leases	 1,516,837	 1,169,736	 2,686,573	 4,141,905	 6,101,396	 10,243,301
Import Financing Loans	 6,213,544,400	 -	 6,213,544,400	 5,669,101,655	 -	 5,669,101,655
Bank Loans	 1,767,396,548	 26,143,500	 1,793,540,048	 457,150,159	 97,341,500	 554,491,659
Bank Overdrafts (Note 21.2)	 236,658,512	 -	 236,658,512	 131,316,213	 -	 131,316,213
Commercial Papers	 46,689,280	 -	 46,689,280	 443,921,574	 -	 443,921,574
Debentures - Unsecured	 -	 -	 -	 40,000,000	 -	 40,000,000
Debentures - Listed - Unsecured	 959,769,786	 3,127,088,921	 4,086,858,707	 115,298,059	 3,955,427,220	 4,070,725,279
Securitisation	 124,327,406	 -	 124,327,406	 155,822,501	 66,213,612	 222,036,113
	 9,349,902,769	 3,154,402,157	 12,504,304,926	 7,016,752,066	 4,125,083,728	 11,141,835,794

25.3	 Debentures
Senior Listed Rated Unsecured Redeemable

	C arring Value
Year of Issue	F ace Value	T erm	I ssue Date	 Maturity Date	I nterest Rate	 2016	 2015
						      LKR	 LKR

2013	 844,110,000	 3 Years	 20/12/2013	 20/12/2016	 14%	 873,411,024	 865,416,424
	 541,250,000	 4 Years	 20/12/2013	 20/12/2017	 14.25%	 560,373,549	 554,294,740
	 614,640,000	 5 Years	 20/12/2013	 20/12/2018	 14.50%	 636,737,571	 629,185,212

2014	 1,064,630,000	 3 Years	 26/12/2014	 26/12/2017	 8.25%	 1,087,667,895	 1,087,490,377
	 175,020,000	 4 Years	 26/12/2014	 26/12/2018	 8.50%	 178,922,085	 178,892,018
	 760,350,000	 5 Years	 26/12/2014	 26/12/2019	 9.00%	 778,299,246	 778,160,938

26.	 WARRANTY PROVISION
	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Balance as at the Beginning of the Year	 277,776,277	 238,271,055	 237,248,368	 237,233,734
Provision for the year	 286,660,938	 247,935,793	 242,118,928	 200,170,870
Utilised During the year	 (250,574,158)	 (208,430,571)	 (209,618,989)	 (200,156,236)
Balance as at the End of the Year	 313,863,057	 277,776,277	 269,748,307	 237,248,368
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27.	E MPLOYEE BENEFITS LIABILITIES
27.1	E xpense on Benefits Plan
	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Current Service Cost	 26,256,265	 26,194,893	 16,018,799	 15,419,488
Interest Cost on Benefit Obligation	 20,795,013	 16,362,521	 12,780,712	 12,256,967
Total Expenses	 47,051,278	 42,557,414	 28,799,511	 27,676,455

27.2	E mployee Benefits Liability
Balance as at 1 April	 217,662,634	 183,238,184	 141,801,533	 175,826,368
Provision for the Year	 47,051,278	 42,557,414	 28,799,511	 27,676,455
Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss	 (11,790,362)	 1,801,299	 (8,778,935)	 (3,375,345)
Benefit Paid	 (16,127,136)	 (8,024,414)	 (12,959,905)	 (7,092,414)
Transferred from/(to) Intercompany (Note 27.5)	 -	 (1,909,849)	 910,000	 (51,233,531)
Balance as at 31 March	 236,796,414	 217,662,634	 149,772,204	 141,801,533

27.3	 The principle assumptions used in determining the employment benefit liability for the Company/Group are shown below.

	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015

Salary Incremental Rate	 10% - 11%	 9% - 10%	 10%	 10%
Discount Rate	 10% - 11.5%	 8% - 9%	 11.50%	 9%
Retirement Age	 - Female	 55 - 60 years	 55 - 60 years	 60 years	 60 years
	 - Male	 55 - 60 years	 55 - 60 years	 60 years	 60 years

27.4	 Sensitivity of Assumptions in Actuarial Valuation of Retiring Gratuity Obligation

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a possible change in key assumptions employed with all other variables held constant in the Retiring 
Gratuity Obligations measurement as at 31 March 2016. The sensitivity of the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of profit or Loss is the effect of 
the assumed changes in the discount rate and salary increment on the profit or loss and Employee Benefits Liability for the year.

	G roup	C ompany
		  Sensitivity	 Sensitivity	P resent	 Sensitivity	 Sensitivity	P resent
	I ncrease/	I ncrease/	 Effect on	 Effect on	V alue of  	 Effect on	 Effect on	V alue of
	 (Decrease) in	 (Decrease) in	 Statement of	 Statement of	 Defined	 Statement of	 Statement of	 Defined
	 Discount rate	 Salary	 Profit or	 Financial	 Benefit	 Profit or	 Financial	 Benefit
	I ncrement Rate	 Loss	P osition	O bligation	 Loss	P osition	O bligation

	 1%	 -	 5,909,354	 (5,909,354)	 230,887,059	 5,225,273	 (5,225,273)	 144,546,931
	 -1%	 -	 (6,463,147)	 6,463,147	 243,259,560	 (5,633,887)	 5,633,887	 155,406,091
	 -	 1%	 (10,198,590)	 10,198,590	 246,995,003	 (6,316,295)	 6,316,295	 156,088,499
	 -	 -1%	 9,557,417	 (9,557,417)	 227,238,996	 5,948,669	 (5,948,669)	 143,823,535

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



123 Abans PLC | Annual Report 2015/16

OVERVIEW  |  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  |  GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE  |  FINANCIAL REPORTS  | SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

27.5	E mployee Benefits Liability Transferred from/(to) Related Parties
	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Abans Retail (Private) Limited	 -	 -	 -	 33,354,674
Abans Engineering (Private) Limited	 -	 -	 910,000	 15,969,008
Abans Auto (Private) Limited	 -	 1,909,849	 -	 1,909,849
	 -	 1,909,849	 910,000	 51,233,531

28.	 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
28.1	 Group
	 2016	 2015
	C urrent	N on-Current	T otal	C urrent	N on-Current	T otal
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Trade Payable	 - Related Parties	 825,029,019	 -	 825,029,019	 800,204,207	 -	 800,204,207
	 - Other	 5,314,272,052	 1,697,858,803	 7,012,130,855	 5,338,001,246	 1,106,703,668	 6,444,704,914
Other Payable	 - Related Parties	 222,449,809	 -	 222,449,809	 119,470,836	 -	 119,470,836
	 - Other	 545,964,708	 -	 545,964,708	 343,488,313	 -	 343,488,313
	 6,907,715,588	 1,697,858,803	 8,605,574,391	 6,601,164,602	 1,106,703,668	 7,707,868,270
Advances and Deposits	 1,094,644,043	 -	 1,094,644,043	 958,593,087	 -	 958,593,087
	 8,002,359,631	 1,697,858,803	 9,700,218,434	 7,559,757,689	 1,106,703,668	 8,666,461,357
Sundry Creditors Including  
  Accrued Expenses	 1,387,767,153	 -	 1,387,767,153	 1,251,519,024	 -	 1,251,519,024
	 9,390,126,784	 1,697,858,803	 11,087,985,587	 8,811,276,713	 1,106,703,668	 9,917,980,381

28.2	C ompany
	 2016	 2015
	C urrent	N on-Current	T otal	C urrent	N on-Current	T otal
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Trade Payable	 - Related Parties	 68,981,210	 -	 68,981,210	 66,314,344	 -	 66,314,344
	 - Other	 1,848,892,539	 -	 1,848,892,539	 2,772,218,947	 -	 2,772,218,947
Other Payable	 - Related Parties	 994,207,936	 -	 994,207,936	 601,661,312	 -	 601,661,312
	 - Other	 463,727,389	 -	 463,727,389	 279,888,765	 -	 279,888,765
	 3,375,809,074	 -	 3,375,809,074	 3,720,083,368	 -	 3,720,083,368
Advances and Deposits	 1,069,614,710	 -	 1,069,614,710	 940,983,990	 -	 940,983,990
	 4,445,423,784	 -	 4,445,423,784	 4,661,067,358	 -	 4,661,067,358
Sundry Creditors Including  
  Accrued Expenses	 691,393,670	 -	 691,943,228	 748,793,922	 -	 748,793,922
	 5,136,817,454	 -	 5,136,817,454	 5,409,861,280	 -	 5,409,861,280

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



124 Abans PLC | Annual Report 2015/16

OVERVIEW  |  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  |  GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE  |  FINANCIAL REPORTS  | SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

29.	FINANCIA L INSTRUMENTS
29.1	F inancial Assets and Liabilities by Categories
Group
Financial assets and liabilities in the tables below are split into categories in accordance with LKAS 39.	  

Financial Assets by Categories	 Loans and Receivables	F inancial Assets at Fair Value 	A vailable-for- Sale	H eld to Maturity
		  Through Profit or Loss	 Financial Assets 
	N otes	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
		  LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Financial instruments in  
  non-current assets
Other Financial Assets	 17	 -	 -	 7,893,809	 25,413,089	 25,133,140	 125,263,395	 -	 -
Lease Rentals Receivable  
  and Stock Out on Hire	 11	 1,872,280,011	 1,643,410,169
Trade and Other Receivables	 18	 677,210,253	 339,895,595

Financial instruments in  
current assets
Lease Rentals Receivable  
  and Stock Out on Hire	 11	 1,723,971,768	 1,259,875,081	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -
Trade and Other Receivables	 18	 11,231,291,632	 10,383,485,247	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -
Other Financial Assets	 17	 235,338,979	 341,028,678	 -	 -	 -	 -	 21,669,813	 21,150,414
Cash and Short Term Deposits	 21	 806,268,158	 758,088,398	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

Total		  16,546,360,801	 14,725,783,168	 7,893,809	 25,413,089	 25,133,140	 125,263,395	 21,669,813	 21,150,414

Financial Liabilities by Categories				F    inancial Liabilities Measured
				    at Amortised Cost
	N otes							       2016	 2015
								        LKR	 LKR

Financial instruments in  
  non-current liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings	 25							       3,167,783,211	 4,148,613,753
Trade and Other Payables	 28							       1,697,858,803	 1,106,703,668

Financial instruments in  
  current liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings	 25							       9,856,283,547	 7,331,288,563
Trade and Other Payables	 28							       8,002,359,631	 7,559,757,689

Total								        22,724,285,192	 20,146,363,673
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Company
Financial assets and liabilities in the tables below are split into categories in accordance with LKAS 39.	  

Financial Assets by Categories	 Loans and Receivables	F inancial Assets at Fair Value 	A vailable-for-Sale 
		  Through Profit or Loss	 Financial Assets 
	N otes	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
		  LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Financial instruments in  
  non-current assets
Other Financial Assets	 17	 -	 -	 978,568	 1,189,700	 15,600,000	 15,600,000

Financial instruments in  
  current assets
Trade and Other Receivables	 18	 9,494,732,175	 9,697,856,445	 -	 -	 -	 -
Other Financial Assets	 17	 11,240,814	 8,105,005	 -	 -	 -	 -
Cash and Short Term Deposits	 21	 663,688,713	 614,002,427	 -	 -	 -	 -

Total		  10,169,661,702	 10,319,963,877	 978,568	 1,189,700	 15,600,000	 15,600,000

Financial Liabilities by Categories			F   inancial Liabilities Measured
			   at Amortised Cost
	N otes					     2016	 2015
						      LKR	 LKR

Financial instruments in  
  non-current liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings	 25					     3,154,402,157	 4,125,083,728

Financial instruments in  
  current liabilities
Trade and Other Payables	 28					     4,445,423,784	 4,661,067,358
Interest Bearing Borrowings	 25					     9,349,902,769	 7,016,752,066

Total						      16,949,728,710	 15,802,903,151
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29.	FINANCIA L INSTRUMENTS  (Contd...)
29.2	F air Value Hierarchy
The Group/Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:	  

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly	  
Level 3: Techniques that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market data	  

The following tables sets out the group's and Company's asset and liabilities that are measured and recognised at fair value as at 31 March 2016.	  

Financial Assets - Group	 Level 1	 Level 2	 Level 3	T otal
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Recurring Fair Value Measurements
Financial Assets:
Available for sale	 -	 -	 25,133,140	 25,133,140
Designated at fair value through profit or loss	 7,893,809	 -	 -	 7,893,809
Held to Maturity	 -	 21,230,364
Total Recurring Financial Assets	 7,893,809	 21,230,364	 25,133,140	 33,026,949

Non Financial Assets:
Land and Buildings			   580,889,076	 580,889,076
Total Recurring Non-Financial Assets			   580,889,076	 580,889,076

Financial Assets - Company	 Level 1	 Level 2	 Level 3	T otal
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Recurring Fair Value Measurements
Financial Assets:
Available for sale	 -	 -	 15,600,000	 15,600,000
Designated at fair value through profit or loss	 978,568	 -	 -	 978,568
Total Recurring Financial Assets	 978,568	 -	 15,600,000	 16,578,568

Non Financial Assets:
Land and Buildings			   531,045,001	 531,045,001
Total Recurring Non-Financial Assets			   531,045,001	 531,045,001
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The Group/Company does not have any financial liability which is carried at fair value in the statement of financial position:
During the reporting period ended 31 March 2016 and 2015, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements.
The group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels at the date the event or change in circumstances that 
caused the transfer occurred.

Item and Valuation Approach Key Comparable Data Relationship Between Comparable Inputs to 
Fair Value

Unlisted Equity Securities
Fair value is determined by Net 
Assets basis

Market Value of assets recoverable value of trade & other 
receivable book value of liability

The Company’s Adjusted Net Assets Value 
(ANAV) less than cost of investment immediately 
recognise as an impairment to the investment

Land and Buildings
Fair value is determined by 
Comparison approach

The fair values of land are derived using the sale 
comparison approach. Sale prices of comparable land 
in similar location are adjusted for differences in key 
attributes such as land size. The valuation model is 
based on price per square meter.

The higher the value per perch/square feet, 
higher fair value

29.3	F air Value of Financial Instruments
	 2016	 2015
	C arrying	F air	C arrying	F air
Group	N ote	A mount	V alue	A mount	V alue
		  LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Financial Assets
Lease Rentals Receivable and Stock Out on Hire		  3,596,251,779	 3,633,442,953	 2,903,285,248	 3,205,230,582
Other Financial Assets		  290,035,741	 289,596,292	 512,855,575	 515,180,658
Trade and Other Receivables - Non Current	 B	 1,697,858,803	 1,697,858,803	 1,106,703,668	 1,106,703,668
Trade and Other Receivables - Current	 A	 8,002,359,631	 8,002,359,631	 7,559,757,689	 7,559,757,689
Securities Purchased under Repurchase Agreement		  630,158,527	 630,158,527	 426,888,521	 426,888,521
Cash and Short Term Deposits	 A	 806,268,158	 806,268,158	 758,088,398	 758,088,398

Financial Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings - Non Current	 B	 3,167,783,211	 3,167,783,211	 4,148,613,753	 4,148,613,753
Interest Bearing Borrowings - Current	 A	 9,856,283,547	 9,856,283,547	 7,331,288,563	 7,331,288,563
Trade and Other Payables - Non Current	 B	 677,210,253	 677,210,253	 339,895,595	 339,895,595
Trade and Other Payables - Current	 A	 11,231,291,632	 11,231,291,632	 10,383,485,247	 10,383,485,247

Fair Value Hierarchy				    Level of Valuation

Lease Rentals Receivable and Stock Out on Hire				    Level 2

Other Financial Assets
Other Financial Assets includes investments in Government of Sri Lanka Treasury Bonds with the carrying value of LKR 21,669,813 and fair value of LKR 
21,150,414 that are valued under Level 2. All other financial assets’ fair value approximates the carrying value.
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29.	FINANCIA L INSTRUMENTS  (Contd...)
29.3	F air Value of Financial Instruments (Contd...)

Company	 2016	 2015
	C arrying	F air	C arrying	F air
	N ote	A mount	V alue	A mount	V alue
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Financial Assets
Other Financial Assets		  27,819,382	 27,819,382	 24,894,705	 24,894,705
Trade and Other Receivables	 A	 9,494,732,175	 9,494,732,175	 9,697,856,445	 9,697,856,445
Cash and Short Term Deposits	 A	 663,688,713	 663,688,713	 614,002,427	 614,002,427

Financial Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings - Non Current	 B	 3,154,402,157	 3,154,402,157	 4,125,083,728	 4,125,083,728
Interest Bearing Borrowings - Current	 A	 9,349,902,769	 9,349,902,769	 7,016,752,066	 7,016,752,066
Trade and Other Payables	 A	 4,445,423,784	 4,445,423,784	 7,016,752,066	 7,016,752,066

The following describes the methods and assumptions used to determine the fair values for those financial assets and liabilities which are not already 
recorded at fair value in the financial statements;

A.	 Cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments.

B.	 Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Group/Company based on parameters such as interest rates, specific 
counting risk factors, and risk characteristics of the financed project etc. As at 31 March 2016, the carrying amounts of such receivables/borrowings are 
not materially different from their calculated fair values.

Reclassification of financial assets
There have been no reclassifications during 2015 & 2016.

30.	FINANCIA L RISK MANAGEMENT - OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES
The Group’s risk management is overseen by the Company, in close co-operation with the board of directors and focuses on actively securing the group’s short 
to medium term cash flows by minimising the exposure to financial markets. Long term financial investments are managed to generate lasting returns. The 
group does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor does it write options. The most significant financial risks to which 
the group is exposed are described below.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
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30.1	C redit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that counter-party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group 
is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial 
institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments

The Group trades only with recognised, credit worthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all clients who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit 
verification procedures.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, such as cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial investments 
and other financial investments, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counter-party. The Group manages its operations to avoid any 
excessive concentration of counter-party risk and the Group takes all reasonable steps to ensure the counter-parties fulfill their obligations.

30.1.1	 Trade & Other Receivables
Customers credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group’s established policies and procedures relating to customer credit risk 
management. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and any shipments to major customers are generally covered by letter of credit or 
other forms of credit insurance.	

The requirement for an impairment is analysed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major customers. Additionally, a large number of minor 
receivables are grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The calculation is based on actual incurred historical data.

Credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due or impaired is explained below.

Group	P ast Due not Impaired
		N  either Past
		D  ue not	
	T otal	I mpaired	 < 30 days	 30-60 days	 61-90 days	 91-120 days	 > 120 days
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

2016	 8,471,837,747	 6,414,843,361	 589,055,667	 300,595,844	 212,409,884	 359,985,829	 594,947,161
2015	 7,266,478,959	 5,273,068,942	 735,491,592	 330,550,045	 164,934,167	 147,374,130	 615,060,083

Company	P ast Due not Impaired
		N  either Past
		D  ue not	
	T otal	I mpaired	 < 30 days	 30-60 days	 61-90 days	 91-120 days	 > 120 days
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

2016	 6,820,636,546	 5,233,146,586	 465,723,234	 238,345,773	 159,774,344	 156,975,164	 566,671,444
2015	 6,402,729,544	 4,677,115,942	 626,959,221	 298,073,561	 143,567,858	 126,595,144	 530,417,820
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30.	FINANCIA L RISK MANAGEMENT - OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Contd…)
30.1	C redit Risk (Contd…)
30.1.2	 Lease Rental Receivable and Stock on Hire

		N  either Past	P ast Due
	T otal	D ue not	N ot Individually	I ndividually
	 LKR	I mpaired	I mpaired	I mpaired

2016	 3,873,032,728	 1,690,466,460	 2,085,470,606	 97,095,662
2015	 3,098,897,933	 1,444,920,109	 1,538,905,922	 115,071,901

Past Due but Not Individually Impaired

		T  otal	 1 to 30	 31 to 60	 61 to 90	 More than
		  LKR	D ays	D ays	D ays	 91 Days

2016		  2,085,470,606	 641,358,019	 429,639,453	 280,381,664	 734,091,470
2015		  1,538,905,922	 476,853,868	 337,375,253	 227,190,562	 497,486,239

30.1.3	C ash in hand and at bank
In order to mitigate concentration, settlement and operational risks related to cash and cash equivalents, the group limits the maximum cash amount that can 
be deposited with a single counter-party. The Group and Company held cash and cash equivalents of LKR 806 Mn and LKR 664 Mn at 31 March 2016 (2015 - 
LKR 758 Mn and LKR 614 Mn).

30.2	 Liquidity Risk
The Group’s policy is to hold cash and undrawn committed facilities at a level sufficient to ensure that the Group has available funds to meet its medium term 
capital and funding obligations, including organic growth and acquisition activities, and to meet any unforeseen obligations and opportunities. The Group holds 
cash and undrawn committed facilities to enable the Group to manage its liquidity risk.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a daily cash management process. This process considers the maturity of both the Group’s financial 
investments and financial assets (e.g. accounts receivable, other financial assets) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of multiple sources of funding including bank loans 
and overdrafts.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



131 Abans PLC | Annual Report 2015/16

OVERVIEW  |  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  |  GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE  |  FINANCIAL REPORTS  | SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

30.2.1	 Liquidity risk management
The business units attempt to match contracted cash outflows in each time bucket using a combination of operational cash inflows and other inflows that can 
be generated through the liquidation of short term investments, repurchase agreements or other secured borrowings.

Contractual Maturity Analysis
The Table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s Financial Liabilities as at 31 March 2015 based on contractual undiscounted Cash Flows.

Group (As at 31 March 2016)	 Less than 1 year	 1 to 2 years	 2 to 5 years	T otal
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Interest Bearing Borrowings	 9,856,283,547	 1,617,773,211	 1,550,010,000	 13,024,066,758
Trade and Other Payables	 11,087,735,587	 -	 -	 11,087,735,587
	 20,944,019,134	 1,617,773,211	 1,550,010,000	 24,111,802,345

Group (As at 31 March 2015)	 Less than 1 year	 1 to 2 years	 2 to 5 years	T otal
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Interest Bearing Borrowings	 7,331,288,562	 1,008,872,406	 3,139,741,348	 11,479,902,316
Trade and Other Payables	 9,917,980,381	 -	 -	 9,917,980,381
	 17,249,268,943	 1,008,872,406	 3,139,741,348	 21,397,882,697

Company (As at 31 March 2016)	 Less than 1 year	 1 to 2 years	 2 to 5 years	T otal
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Interest Bearing Borrowings	 9,349,902,769	 1,604,392,157	 1,550,010,000	 12,504,304,926
Trade and Other Payables	 5,136,817,454	 -	 -	 5,136,817,454
	 14,486,720,223	 1,604,392,157	 1,550,010,000	 17,641,122,380

Company (As at 31 March 2015)	 Less than 1 year	 1 to 2 years	 2 to 5 years	T otal
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Interest Bearing Borrowings	 7,016,752,066	 985,342,380	 3,139,741,348	 11,141,835,794
Trade and Other Payables	 5,409,861,280	 -	 -	 5,409,861,280
	 12,426,613,346	 985,342,380	 3,139,741,348	 16,551,697,074

30.2.2	C apital Management
Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure shareholder 
value is maximised.	  

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2016.
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30.	FINANCIA L RISK MANAGEMENT - OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (Contd…)
30.3	 Market Risk
The group is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specifically to currency risk and interest rate risk.	  

Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. 
The Group has exposure to foreign currency risk where it has cash flows in overseas operations and foreign currency transactions which are affected by foreign 
exchange movements.	  

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The 
group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.	  

Other Price Risk
The Group is exposed to equity price risk in respect of its listed equity securities and price risk for listed debentures. The Group manages those risks by 
monitoring the markets closely. According to Group policies amounts invested in volatile assets such as shares and debentures are restricted by limits set by 
Group management. 

31.	 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
31.1	 Group
Last year Company disposed the SCICOM Lanka (Private) Limited (Associates) for LKR 15,750,000/- which had carrying value of zero.

32.	A SSETS PLEDGED
The following assets have been pledged as security for Liabilities.

32.1	A ssets Pledged by Abans PLC

Nature of Assets Nature of Liability Purpose Carrying Amount Pledged
2016 2015

LKR LKR

Property At 141, Kirula Road, Colombo 05 Primary Mortgage Bond For LKR 115 Million Term Loan 207,933,200 185,539,000 
Property At No:09, Nimalka Gardens, 
Colombo 03

Primary Mortgage Bond For LKR 53.10 Million Term Loan 112,311,000 97,350,000 

Property At No:11, Nimalka Gardens, 
Colombo 03

Primary Mortgage Bond For LKR 66.90 Million Term Loan 139,980,000 122,650,000 

Property At No:09, 47Th Lane, Colombo 06 Primary Mortgage Bond For LKR 78.00 Million Term Loan 89,775,000 76,950,000 
Finished Goods Primary Mortgage Bond over Stock  For 4980.5 Mn Term Loan 8,958,839,600 7,207,173,749 
Trade Debtors- Other Primary Mortgage Bond over Debtors For 4980.5Mn Term Loan 3,234,691,981 2,974,320,804 
Trade Debtors - H.P Debtors Hire Purchased Receivable Securitisation Loan-

400Mn
Working Capital 
Finance 

3,919,184,392 3,703,583,250 

Credit Card Debtors Credit Card Receivable Securitisation Loan-500Mn Working Capital 
Finance 

45,934,189 47,981,331 

Property 118/27, Airport Road, Ratmalana Long Term Loan For 9 Million Term Loan                      -                          -   
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32.2	A ssets Pledged by Abans Finance PLC
Included Under Lease Rental Receivables & Stock Out on Hire

Lease & Hire Purchase Receivables	 Bank Overdraft	 313,366,667
Lease & Hire Purchase Receivables	 Term Loan	 224,197,557

33.	CO MMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - Group/Company
There were no Material Commitments and Contingencies as at the reporting date except followings.

Commitments
Abans PLC has entered into a Joint Venture with Silver Needle Hospitality Pvt Ltd to develop a Mixed Development Project. Abans PLC is required to make a 
total investment of LKR 2,717,000,000/-. The Company has already invested LKR 2,198,216,870/-, as at 31 March 2016.

			   2016	 2015
			   LKR	 LKR

Letters of Credit opened with Banks Favouring Suppliers			   2,515,383,492	 2,705,263,527

Contingent Liabilities
			   2016	 2015
			   LKR	 LKR

Guarantees Issued by Banks			   728,229,692	 935,719,704
Corporate Guarantee			   1,150,000,000	 1,850,000,000

34.	RE LATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
Details of significant related party disclosures are as follows:

34.1	 Transaction with /between Subsidiaries and Subsidiaries of the Parent Company
	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Balance as at 01st April	 -	 -	 1,296,296,141	 343,525,598

Nature of Transaction
Sale of goods	 -	 -	 341,009,356	 1,366,156,502
Purchase of Goods	 -	 -	 (22,597,274)	 (27,844,502)
Rendering of Services	 -	 -	 9,816,464	 -
Receipts of Services	 -	 -	 (1,378,401)	 (11,608,934)
Gratuity Transfer	 -	 -	 910,000	 (49,323,682)
Rental Expenses	 -	 -	 (4,318,096)	 -
Fund Transfers	 -	 -	 1,516,693,583	 197,288,960
Fund Receipts	 -	 -	 (2,359,415,686)	 (699,577,937)
Others	 -	 -	 25,962,038	 177,680,137
Balance as at 31 March	 -	 -	 802,978,126	 1,296,296,141

* Subsidiaries including
AB Technologies (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Finance PLC, Abans Lanka (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Retail (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Engineering (Pvt) Limited.
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34.	RE LATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Contd...)
34.2	 Transaction with /between Associates and Associates of the Parent Company

	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Balance as at 01 April	 (484,754,215)	 (347,945,754)	 (51,662,385)	 (348,721,361)

Nature of Transaction
Sale of goods	 108,072,946	 32,648,429	 29,044,241	 32,336,183
Purchase of Goods	 (2,506,651,960)	 (2,062,369,420)	 -	 (65,433,042)
Receipt of Services	 (620,176,965)	 (510,828,597)	 (511,454,183)	 (488,244,600)
Funds Receipts	 (295,887,599)	 (160,823,142)	 730,256,154	 (160,496,346)
Fund Transfers	 3,455,898,266	 2,862,959,885	 (234,169,950)	 1,040,035,442
Others	 (306,908,984)	 (298,395,616)	 (30,014,179)	 (61,138,661)
Balance as at 31 March	 (650,408,511)	 (484,754,215)	 (68,000,302)	 (51,662,385)

* Associates including

Abans Electricals PLC

34.3	 Transaction with Joint Venture
	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Balance as at 01 April	 63,477,774	 805,721	 63,339,866	 805,721
Sale of goods	 896,135	 1,806,995	 691,335	 1,555,616
Transferred from Others	 -	 -
Receipts	 (63,664,298)	 (907,684)	 (63,447,390)	 (764,676)
Fund Transfer	 393,416,920	 522,086,068	 393,416,920	 522,056,531
Investment	 (394,416,920)	 (460,500,000)	 (394,416,920)	 (460,500,000)
Other	 522,832	 186,674	 522,832	 186,674
Balance as at 31 March	 232,443	 63,477,774	 106,642	 63,339,866

* Joint Venture Includes
Colombo City Centre Partners Limited (Earlier Known as Abans Investment II (pvt) Limited)

Abans PLC has entered into a Joint Venture with Silver Needle Hospitality Pte Ltd to develop a Mixed Development Project under the name of Colombo City 
Centre Partners (Private) Limited.
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34.4	 Transaction with others
	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Balance as at 01 April	 1,829,418,288	 3,521,681,482	 1,972,898,052	 3,591,919,803

Nature of Transaction
Transferred to Joint Venture
Sale of goods	 26,327,782	 198,365,055	 19,700,440	 87,832,076
Purchase of Goods	 (2,433,796,834)	 (2,104,432,939)	 (19,209,625)	 (16,636,129)
Rendering of Services	 1,497,151	 -	 1,497,151	 -
Receipts of Services	 (1,398,958,971)	 (1,369,803,500)	 (1,309,830,054)	 (1,279,291,464)
Rent Income	 -	 (29,654,157)	 -	 24,480,000
Interest Income	 -	 66,630,938	 -	 66,630,938
Dividend	 -	 95,000,000	 -	 95,000,000
Rent Expenses	 (130,702,422)	 (118,352,343)	 (130,702,422)	 (120,924,524)
Fund Transfer	 4,156,063,087	 3,548,972,143	 1,213,624,479	 1,532,471,094
Gratuity Transfer	 -	 (1,909,849)	 -	 (1,909,849)
Funds Receipts	 (300,876,879)	 (1,809,842,271)	 (226,698,220)	 (1,849,218,813)
Other	 432,916,643	 (167,236,271)	 (158,351,916)	 (157,455,081)
Balance as at 31 March	 1,310,913,370	 1,829,418,288	 1,362,927,884	 1,972,898,052

* Other related party including

Add Outdoor (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Office Automation (Pvt) Ltd, Safraz Abans Industrials (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Warehousing (Pvt) Ltd, ABS Gardner Dixen Hall International 
(Pvt) Ltd, Abans Tours (Pvt) Ltd, PNP Logistics (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Investments (Pvt) Ltd , Crown City Developers (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Environmental Services (Pvt) 
Ltd, AB Leisure (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Constructions & Engineering (Pvt) Ltd, Cleantech (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Graphics (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Tourist Hotels (Pvt) Ltd, Abans 
Development (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Consolidated (Pvt) Ltd, A-Z Electronics (Pvt) Ltd, Sirius Technologies Services (Pvt) Ltd, , A-Z Lanka (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Restaurant 
Systems (Pvt) Ltd, AB securities (Pvt) Ltd, S.A. Medicals (Pvt) Ltd, ABA Telecom (Pvt) Ltd, S.A. Electricals (Pvt) Ltd, Aban Pestonjee Trust, Abans Partnership, 
Abans Export (Pvt) Ltd, AB Logistics Ltd, Abans Auto (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Transport (Pvt) Ltd, Abandium (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Marketing (Pvt) Ltd, Absgro (Pvt) Ltd, 
Logirite (Pvt) Ltd, Abans Resort (Pvt) Limited, Abstract Lanka (Pvt) Ltd.	  

34.5	 Transactions with Key Management Personnel of the Company
The key management personnel of the Company are the members of its Board of Directors.

Transaction, arrangements and agreements involving Key Management Personnel (KMPs) and their Close Family Members (CFMs), and Entities which are 
controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by the KMP's and their CFMs or shareholders who have either control, jointly control or significant 
influence over the entity.

Key Management Personnel Compensation	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Short-term employee benefits	 31,254,750	 35,929,965	 16,800,000	 22,485,615
	 31,254,750	 35,929,965	 16,800,000	 22,485,615
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Other Transactions with Key Management Personnel
	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Fixed Deposits/Promissory Notes Accepted during the Year	 15,000,000	 2,265,195	 -	 -
Fixed Deposits/Promissory Notes held at the Beginning of the Year	 13,772,515	 11,500,000	 -	 -
	 28,772,515	 13,765,195	 -	 -

35.	EVEN TS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Subsequent to the reporting date, no circumstances have arisen which would require adjustment to or disclose in the Financial Statements.

36.	REC LASSIFICATION OF COMPARATIVES
The following amounts have been reclassified in order to comply with the current year presentation.

Impact on the Statement of Profit or Loss for the Year		  Previously	 Impact of	 Reclassified
Ended 31 March 2015		R  eported	A djustment	A mount
		  LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Group
Sales		  30,380,461,177	 (298,243,420)	 30,082,217,757
Cost of Sales		  (21,863,678,525)	 298,243,420	 (21,565,435,105)
Selling and Distribution Expenses		  (3,197,248,808)	 (28,364,185)	 (3,225,612,993)
Administrative Expenses		  (3,963,370,213)	 28,364,185	 (3,935,006,028)
		  1,356,163,631	 -	 1,356,163,631

Company
Sales		  25,087,372,913	 (57,027,333)	 25,030,345,580
Cost of Sales		  (18,520,754,147)	 57,027,333	 (18,463,726,814)
		  6,566,618,766	 -	 6,566,618,766

Statement of Financial Position
Group
Property Plant & Equipment		  1,281,708,483	 (260,000,000)	 1,021,708,483
Prepaid Lease Rent				    -	 260,000,000	 260,000,000
				    1,281,708,483	 -	 1,281,708,483

Company
Property Plant & Equipment		  1,179,043,603	 (260,000,000)	 919,043,603
Prepaid Lease Rent				    -	 260,000,000	 260,000,000
				    1,179,043,603	 -	 1,179,043,603

The above reclassification did not have any impact on other comprehensive income, statement of financial position, earnings per share, operating, investing 
and financing cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2015.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



137 Abans PLC | Annual Report 2015/16

OVERVIEW  |  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  |  GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE  |  FINANCIAL REPORTS  | SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SUPPLEMENTARY 
INFORMATION



138 Abans PLC | Annual Report 2015/16

OVERVIEW  |  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  |  GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE  |  FINANCIAL REPORTS  | SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Statement of Value Added

	G roup	C ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 LKR ’000	 LKR ’000	 LKR ’000	 LKR ’000

Gross Turnover	 34,933,245	 30,082,218	 27,501,593	 25,030,346
Other Operating Income	 247,615	 292,360	 235,538	 311,322
Interest Income	 65,769	 191,419	 62,704	 189,361
Share of Associate' Profit	 60,280	 42,950	 -	 -
Share of Joint Venture Loss	 (75,456)	 (45,274)	 -	 -
Value Added	 35,231,453	 30,563,673	 27,799,834	 25,531,028

Distribution Of Value Added

Group	 2016	 2015
	 LKR ’000	 %	 LKR ’000	 %

To Employees as Remuneration	 1,684,062	 4.8%	 1,551,361	 5.1%
Operating Expenses	 30,323,558	 86.1%	 26,687,751	 87.3%
Revenue To Government
- NBT	 314,327	 0.9%	 275,581	 0.9%
- Income Tax	 544,640	 1.5%	 230,525	 0.8%
To Providers of Debt Capital	 1,050,908	 3.0%	 1,045,892	 3.4%
Retained with the Business as
- Depreciation	 211,446	 0.6%	 195,611	 0.6%
- Retained Profit	 1,102,512	 3.1%	 576,952	 1.9%
	 35,231,453	 100%	 30,563,673	 100%

Company	 2016	 2015
	 LKR ’000	 %	 LKR ’000	 %

To Employees as Remuneration	 1,058,329	 3.8%	 968,038	 3.8%
Operating Expenses	 24,206,255	 87.1%	 22,002,450	 86.2%
Revenue To Government
- NBT	 269,482	 1.0%	 234,528	 0.9%
- Income Tax	 325,201	 1.2%	 217,886	 0.9%
To Providers of Debt Capital	 1,028,823	 3.7%	 1,492,677	 5.8%
Retained with the Business as
- Depreciation	 183,590	 0.7%	 180,076	 0.7%
- Retained Profit	 728,154	 2.6%	 435,372	 1.7%
	 27,799,834	 100%	 25,531,028	 100%
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INVESTOR INFORMATION

1.	 Stated Capital
	 31st March 2016	 31st March 2015
Class of Share	N o. of Shares	 LKR	N o. of Shares	 LKR

Ordinary Voting Shares	 2,160,000	 216,000,000	 2,160,000	 216,000,000
Class B Ordinary Management Non- Voting	 25,000	 2,500,000	 25,000	 2,500,000
Total Ordinary Shares (Voting & Non-Voting)	 2,185,000	 218,500,000	 2,185,000	 218,500,000

2.	 Stock Exchange Listing Issued shares of the Company are not listed with the Colombo Stock Exchange of Sri Lanka. Only the Debentures (LKR 4 Billion) 
of the Company are listed with Colombo stock exchange with effect from 27th December 2013.

3.	 Distribution of Shareholding

Total Ordinary Shares (Voting & Non-Voting)	 31st March 2016	 31st March 2015
	N o. of Share	N o. of Shares	P er Centum	N o of Shares	N o. of Shares	P er Centum
	H olders			H   olders

1-1,000	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -
1,001-10,000	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -
Over 1,000,000	 5	 2,185,000	 100	 5	 2,185,000	 100
1,001-1,000,000	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -
Total	 5	 2,185,000	 100	 5	 2,185,000	 100

All shareholders are Individual Shareholders (No institutional Shareholders)
All shareholders are Resident Shareholders (No Non-Resident Shareholders)

4.	 Twenty Largest Shareholders
	V oting as at 31.03.2016	V oting as at 31.03.2015
No.	N ame	N o of Shares	 %	N o of Shares	 %

1	 Mrs Aban Pestonjee	 432,000	 20	 756,000	 35
2	 Mr P N Pestonjee	 432,000	 20	 108,000	 5
3	 Mrs Saroshi Dubash	 432,000	 20	 432,000	 20
4	 Mr Behman Pestonjee	 432,000	 20	 432,000	 20
5	 Mr Rusi Pestonjee	 432,000	 20	 432,000	 20
		  2,160,000	 100	 2,160,000	 100
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INVESTOR INFORMATION

	N on Voting as at 31.03.2016	N on Voting as at 31.03.2015
No.	N ame	N o of Shares	 %	N o of Shares	 %

1	 Mrs Aban Pestonjee	 5,000	 20	 5,000	 20
2	 Mr P N Pestonjee	 5,000	 20	 5,000	 20
3	 Mrs Saroshi Dubash	 5,000	 20	 5,000	 20
4	 Mr Behman Pestonjee	 5,000	 20	 5,000	 20
5	 Mr Rusi Pestonjee	 5,000	 20	 5,000	 20
		  25,000	 100	 25,000	 100

5.	 Public Holding

As at 31st March			   2016	 2015

Total number of shares issued			   2,185,000	 2,185,000
No of shares held by the Public			   Nil	 Nil
Percentage of shares held by the Public			   Nil	 Nil

6.	 Market Value Per Share
Market Value is not available since the shares of the company is not publicly traded.

7.	N et Asset Per Share
					     2016	 2015
As at 31st March					     LKR	 LKR

Group					     3,222	 2,741
Company					     2,375	 2,061

8.	 Debt Securities Related Details
					G     roup	C ompany
					     2016	 2016
					     LKR	 LKR

Debt to Equity Ratio					     1.85	 2.41
Quick Asset Ratio					     0.76	 0.71
Interest Coverage Ratio					     2.52	 1.96
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9.	I nterest Rate of Comparable Government Security

Debenture Issue 2013	C ategory
Interest Rate		  3 Years	 4 Years	 5 Years

Abans PLC		  14.00%	 14.25%	 14.50%
Government Bond Rate		  8.70%	 -	 9.13%

Debenture Issue 2014	C ategory
Interest Rate		  3 Years	 4 Years	 5 Years

Abans PLC		  8.25%	 8.50%	 9.00%
Government Bond Rate		  8.70%	 -	 9.13%

10.	 Market Value per Debenture

	C ategory
Debenture Issue 2013		  3 Years	 4 Years	 5 Years
		  LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Highest Price		  N/T	 N/T	 117.58
Lowest Price		  N/T	 N/T	 117.58
Last Traded Price		  N/T	 N/T	 117.58

	C ategory
Debenture Issue 2014		  3 Years	 4 Years	 5 Years
		  LKR	 LKR	 LKR

Highest Price		  99.35	 N/T	 N/T
Lowest Price		  99.09	 N/T	 N/T
Last Traded Price		  99.35	 N/T	 N/T

* N/T - Not Traded

INVESTOR INFORMATION
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Group Company
SLFRS/LKAS SLFRS/LKAS

 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
 LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment  1,216,234,279 1,021,708,483  958,769,030  981,566,620  928,778,814 1,041,696,453 919,043,603  940,805,256  964,929,322  909,480,762 
Prepaid Lease Rent 257,373,737 260,000,000 - - - 257,373,737 260,000,000 - - -
Investment Property  23,854,597  25,252,210  26,649,822  28,194,890  29,739,958  23,854,597  25,252,210  26,649,822  28,194,890  29,739,958 
Lease Rentals Receivable and stock Out on Hire  1,872,280,011  1,643,410,169  1,250,847,064  995,788,313  801,434,579  -  -  -  -  - 
Intangible Assets  56,671,257  134,128,101  199,671,632  284,768,902  252,932,059  37,498,683  123,809,786  190,330,911  272,500,000  242,521,842 
Investments in Subsidiaries  -  -  -  -  -  466,173,511  466,173,511  466,172,761  417,953,870  417,953,870 
Investments in an Associate  342,739,493  307,043,712  273,509,727  240,877,459  201,498,432  30,752,197  30,752,197  30,752,197  46,502,197  46,502,197 
Investments in a Joint Venture  2,055,169,194  1,736,208,070  1,320,482,294  -  -  2,198,216,870  1,803,799,950  1,342,799,950  -  - 
Other Financial Assets  33,026,949  150,676,484  45,493,016  52,487,014  48,178,608  16,578,568  16,789,700  16,690,020  21,196,002  21,204,040 
Deferred Tax Assets  374,251,906  287,889,493  221,504,303  157,739,290  105,369,230  275,368,855  204,587,498  221,058,425  160,328,816  105,287,547 
Trade and Other Receivables  677,210,253  339,895,595  367,113,462  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 6,908,811,676  5,906,212,317  4,664,040,350  2,741,422,488  2,367,931,680  4,347,513,471  3,850,208,455  3,235,259,342  1,911,605,097  1,772,690,216 

Current Assets
Inventories  10,365,724,961  8,688,659,973  8,442,631,209  7,256,417,401  6,326,676,352  8,716,690,228  7,033,963,561  7,119,656,554  7,122,552,565  6,166,944,704 
Trade and Other Receivables  11,542,692,280  10,688,028,573  10,555,193,978  11,328,744,632  9,464,523,502  9,776,239,487  9,974,478,184  10,101,493,780  10,330,529,864  8,302,987,513 
Lease Rentals Receivable and Stock Out on Hire  1,723,971,768  1,259,875,081  822,741,354  553,658,978  434,758,651  -  -  -  -  - 
Income Tax Receivables  4,584,793  4,641,546  107,462,120  20,504,417  11,569,730  -  -  102,776,732  -  - 
Other Financial Assets  257,008,792  362,179,092  241,613,048  299,662,732  222,776,491  11,240,814  8,105,005  7,564,691  6,000,000  4,000,000 
Securities Purchased under Repurchase 
Agreement

 630,158,530  426,888,521  268,997,323  -  15,362,989  -  -  -  -  - 

Cash and Short Term Deposits  806,268,158  758,088,398  902,262,690  558,998,256  954,897,075  663,688,713  614,002,427  775,038,937  517,260,696  911,667,171 
 25,330,409,282  22,188,361,184  21,340,901,722  20,017,986,417  17,430,564,790  19,167,859,242  17,630,549,177  18,106,530,694  17,976,343,125  15,385,599,388 

Total Assets  32,239,220,958  28,094,573,501  26,004,942,072  22,759,408,904  19,798,496,470  23,515,372,713  21,480,757,632  21,341,790,036  19,887,948,222  17,158,289,604 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Stated Capital  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000 
Other Component of Equity  457,158,336  352,706,442  356,483,418  323,115,557  318,463,817  399,048,767  314,800,292  314,800,292  286,903,081  286,903,081 
Retained Earnings  6,363,505,389  5,417,740,673  4,850,148,446  5,090,527,192  5,010,102,093  4,571,761,088  3,971,992,342  3,534,189,609  3,694,118,159  3,574,510,036 

 7,039,163,725  5,988,947,115  5,425,131,864  5,632,142,749  5,547,065,910  5,189,309,855  4,505,292,634  4,067,489,901  4,199,521,240  4,079,913,117 

Minority Interest  133,916,025  119,056,474  105,142,727  126,768,833  117,659,984  -  -  -  -  - 
Total Equity  7,173,079,750  6,108,003,589  5,530,274,591  5,758,911,582  5,664,725,894  5,189,309,855  4,505,292,634  4,067,489,901  4,199,521,240  4,079,913,117 

Non Current Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings  3,167,783,211  4,148,613,753  2,514,842,913  786,763,921  1,142,770,188  3,154,402,157  4,125,083,728  2,397,038,786  612,438,862  987,405,219 
Warranty Provision  313,863,057  277,776,277  238,271,055  214,507,908  216,896,224  269,748,307  237,248,368  237,233,734  214,507,908  216,896,224 
Employee Benefits Liabilities  236,796,414  217,662,634  183,238,184  124,517,565  130,480,672  149,772,204  141,801,533  175,826,368  104,660,020  116,098,344 
Trade and Other Payables  1,697,858,803  1,106,703,668  813,965,436  -  -  -  -  - 

 5,416,301,485  5,750,756,332  3,750,317,588  1,125,789,394  1,490,147,084  3,573,922,668  4,504,133,629  2,810,098,888  931,606,790  1,320,399,787 

Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables  9,390,126,784  8,811,276,713  7,936,599,655  6,618,338,380  4,958,566,200  5,136,817,454  5,409,861,280  5,950,074,635  5,949,235,385  4,663,514,442 
Income Tax Liabilities  403,429,392  93,248,304  5,895,367  114,481,023  309,796,657  265,419,967  44,718,023  -  25,132,078  53,656,942 
Dividend Payable  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Interest Bearing Borrowings  9,856,283,547  7,331,288,563  8,781,854,871  9,141,888,525  7,375,260,635  9,349,902,769  7,016,752,066  8,514,126,612  8,782,452,729  7,040,805,316 

 19,649,839,723  16,235,813,580  16,724,349,893  15,874,707,928  12,643,623,492  14,752,140,190  12,471,331,369  14,464,201,247  14,756,820,192  11,757,976,700 
Total Equity and Liabilities  32,239,220,958  28,094,573,501  26,004,942,072  22,759,408,904  19,798,496,470  23,515,372,713  21,480,757,632  21,341,790,036  19,887,948,222  17,158,289,604 

Five Year Summary - 
Statement of Financial Position
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Five Year Summary -  
Statement of Financial Position

Group Company
SLFRS/LKAS SLFRS/LKAS

 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
 LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

ASSETS
Non Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment  1,216,234,279 1,021,708,483  958,769,030  981,566,620  928,778,814 1,041,696,453 919,043,603  940,805,256  964,929,322  909,480,762 
Prepaid Lease Rent 257,373,737 260,000,000 - - - 257,373,737 260,000,000 - - -
Investment Property  23,854,597  25,252,210  26,649,822  28,194,890  29,739,958  23,854,597  25,252,210  26,649,822  28,194,890  29,739,958 
Lease Rentals Receivable and stock Out on Hire  1,872,280,011  1,643,410,169  1,250,847,064  995,788,313  801,434,579  -  -  -  -  - 
Intangible Assets  56,671,257  134,128,101  199,671,632  284,768,902  252,932,059  37,498,683  123,809,786  190,330,911  272,500,000  242,521,842 
Investments in Subsidiaries  -  -  -  -  -  466,173,511  466,173,511  466,172,761  417,953,870  417,953,870 
Investments in an Associate  342,739,493  307,043,712  273,509,727  240,877,459  201,498,432  30,752,197  30,752,197  30,752,197  46,502,197  46,502,197 
Investments in a Joint Venture  2,055,169,194  1,736,208,070  1,320,482,294  -  -  2,198,216,870  1,803,799,950  1,342,799,950  -  - 
Other Financial Assets  33,026,949  150,676,484  45,493,016  52,487,014  48,178,608  16,578,568  16,789,700  16,690,020  21,196,002  21,204,040 
Deferred Tax Assets  374,251,906  287,889,493  221,504,303  157,739,290  105,369,230  275,368,855  204,587,498  221,058,425  160,328,816  105,287,547 
Trade and Other Receivables  677,210,253  339,895,595  367,113,462  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

 6,908,811,676  5,906,212,317  4,664,040,350  2,741,422,488  2,367,931,680  4,347,513,471  3,850,208,455  3,235,259,342  1,911,605,097  1,772,690,216 

Current Assets
Inventories  10,365,724,961  8,688,659,973  8,442,631,209  7,256,417,401  6,326,676,352  8,716,690,228  7,033,963,561  7,119,656,554  7,122,552,565  6,166,944,704 
Trade and Other Receivables  11,542,692,280  10,688,028,573  10,555,193,978  11,328,744,632  9,464,523,502  9,776,239,487  9,974,478,184  10,101,493,780  10,330,529,864  8,302,987,513 
Lease Rentals Receivable and Stock Out on Hire  1,723,971,768  1,259,875,081  822,741,354  553,658,978  434,758,651  -  -  -  -  - 
Income Tax Receivables  4,584,793  4,641,546  107,462,120  20,504,417  11,569,730  -  -  102,776,732  -  - 
Other Financial Assets  257,008,792  362,179,092  241,613,048  299,662,732  222,776,491  11,240,814  8,105,005  7,564,691  6,000,000  4,000,000 
Securities Purchased under Repurchase 
Agreement

 630,158,530  426,888,521  268,997,323  -  15,362,989  -  -  -  -  - 

Cash and Short Term Deposits  806,268,158  758,088,398  902,262,690  558,998,256  954,897,075  663,688,713  614,002,427  775,038,937  517,260,696  911,667,171 
 25,330,409,282  22,188,361,184  21,340,901,722  20,017,986,417  17,430,564,790  19,167,859,242  17,630,549,177  18,106,530,694  17,976,343,125  15,385,599,388 

Total Assets  32,239,220,958  28,094,573,501  26,004,942,072  22,759,408,904  19,798,496,470  23,515,372,713  21,480,757,632  21,341,790,036  19,887,948,222  17,158,289,604 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and Reserves
Stated Capital  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000  218,500,000 
Other Component of Equity  457,158,336  352,706,442  356,483,418  323,115,557  318,463,817  399,048,767  314,800,292  314,800,292  286,903,081  286,903,081 
Retained Earnings  6,363,505,389  5,417,740,673  4,850,148,446  5,090,527,192  5,010,102,093  4,571,761,088  3,971,992,342  3,534,189,609  3,694,118,159  3,574,510,036 

 7,039,163,725  5,988,947,115  5,425,131,864  5,632,142,749  5,547,065,910  5,189,309,855  4,505,292,634  4,067,489,901  4,199,521,240  4,079,913,117 

Minority Interest  133,916,025  119,056,474  105,142,727  126,768,833  117,659,984  -  -  -  -  - 
Total Equity  7,173,079,750  6,108,003,589  5,530,274,591  5,758,911,582  5,664,725,894  5,189,309,855  4,505,292,634  4,067,489,901  4,199,521,240  4,079,913,117 

Non Current Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings  3,167,783,211  4,148,613,753  2,514,842,913  786,763,921  1,142,770,188  3,154,402,157  4,125,083,728  2,397,038,786  612,438,862  987,405,219 
Warranty Provision  313,863,057  277,776,277  238,271,055  214,507,908  216,896,224  269,748,307  237,248,368  237,233,734  214,507,908  216,896,224 
Employee Benefits Liabilities  236,796,414  217,662,634  183,238,184  124,517,565  130,480,672  149,772,204  141,801,533  175,826,368  104,660,020  116,098,344 
Trade and Other Payables  1,697,858,803  1,106,703,668  813,965,436  -  -  -  -  - 

 5,416,301,485  5,750,756,332  3,750,317,588  1,125,789,394  1,490,147,084  3,573,922,668  4,504,133,629  2,810,098,888  931,606,790  1,320,399,787 

Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables  9,390,126,784  8,811,276,713  7,936,599,655  6,618,338,380  4,958,566,200  5,136,817,454  5,409,861,280  5,950,074,635  5,949,235,385  4,663,514,442 
Income Tax Liabilities  403,429,392  93,248,304  5,895,367  114,481,023  309,796,657  265,419,967  44,718,023  -  25,132,078  53,656,942 
Dividend Payable  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Interest Bearing Borrowings  9,856,283,547  7,331,288,563  8,781,854,871  9,141,888,525  7,375,260,635  9,349,902,769  7,016,752,066  8,514,126,612  8,782,452,729  7,040,805,316 

 19,649,839,723  16,235,813,580  16,724,349,893  15,874,707,928  12,643,623,492  14,752,140,190  12,471,331,369  14,464,201,247  14,756,820,192  11,757,976,700 
Total Equity and Liabilities  32,239,220,958  28,094,573,501  26,004,942,072  22,759,408,904  19,798,496,470  23,515,372,713  21,480,757,632  21,341,790,036  19,887,948,222  17,158,289,604 
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Group Company
SLFRS/LKAS SLFRS/LKAS

 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
 LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Revenue  34,933,245,274  30,082,217,757  25,516,809,656  24,294,938,354  22,469,267,842  27,501,593,009  25,030,345,580  24,225,118,800  23,704,374,843  21,963,298,347 
Cost of Sales  (24,173,581,123)  (21,565,435,105)  (18,224,377,305)  (16,836,362,976)  (15,960,319,901) (19,340,460,685)  (18,463,726,814)  (17,675,145,521) (16,495,455,485)  (15,875,565,357)
Gross Profit  10,759,664,151  8,516,782,652  7,292,432,351  7,458,575,378  6,508,947,941  8,161,132,324  6,566,618,766  6,549,973,279  7,208,919,358  6,087,732,990 
Other Operating Income  247,614,896  292,360,320  600,207,307  396,406,756  712,708,142  235,537,658  311,321,674  568,866,969  447,927,973  380,818,533 
Selling & Distribution Expenses  (4,233,641,878)  (3,197,248,808)  (3,019,913,621)  (3,084,488,731)  (2,257,891,577)  (3,522,305,279)  (2,603,833,657)  (2,909,456,320)  (3,084,418,112)  (2,245,841,499)
Administrative Expenses  (4,129,045,695)  (3,963,370,213)  (3,755,631,304)  (3,070,288,816)  (2,074,511,318)  (2,857,515,893)  (2,787,213,669)  (3,187,327,743)  (2,866,949,744)  (2,439,902,933)
Operating Profit  2,644,591,474  1,648,523,951  1,117,094,733  1,700,204,586  2,889,253,188  2,016,848,810  1,486,893,114  1,022,056,184  1,705,479,475  1,782,807,091 
Finance Cost  (1,050,908,089)  (1,045,891,861)  (1,541,676,504)  (1,196,387,314)  (679,149,083)  (1,028,823,131)  (1,022,995,330)  (1,492,677,321)  (1,196,169,486)  (666,105,144)
Finance income  65,768,752  191,418,624  191,449,371  106,088,868  61,421,011  62,703,720  189,360,610  191,378,789  101,995,719  61,421,011 
Share of Associate Company Profits/(Losses)  60,279,671  42,950,354  45,921,599  64,898,376  40,952,475  -  -  -  -  - 
Share of Joint Venture's Loss  (75,455,796)  (45,274,224)  (22,317,656)  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Profit/(Loss) Before Income Tax and Value 
Added Tax on Financial Services  1,644,276,012  791,726,844  (209,528,456)  674,804,516  2,312,477,591  1,050,729,399  653,258,394  (279,242,348)  611,305,708  1,178,122,958 
Value Added Tax on Financial Services  (33,742,312)  (25,468,054)  (6,080,910)  (13,211,341)  (20,368,795)  (2,884,772)  (2,722,882)  (1,534,631)  (2,472,411)  (1,525,494)
Income Tax Expense  (510,898,173)  (205,056,915)  33,434,388  (267,296,896)  (371,500,901)  (322,316,714)  (215,163,027)  63,285,822  (212,621,520)  (235,177,452)
Profit / (Loss) for the year from continuing 
operations  1,099,635,527  561,201,875  (182,174,978)  394,296,279  1,920,607,895  725,527,913  435,372,485  (217,491,157)  396,211,777  941,420,012 

Discontinued Operations :
Profit for the year from discontinued 
operations  -  15,750,000  (4,199,371)  -  (814,862,007)  -  -  76,877,952  -  - 
Profit for the year net of Tax  1,099,635,527  576,951,875  (186,374,350)  394,296,279  1,105,745,888  725,527,913  435,372,485  (140,613,205)  396,211,777  941,420,012 

Attributable to;
Equity holders of the parent  1,087,444,834  564,835,785  (187,062,026)  385,187,430  1,011,696,483  -  -  -  -  - 
Non Controlling Interest  12,190,693  12,116,090  687,676  9,108,849  94,049,406  -  -  -  -  - 
 Earnings Per Share  497.69  258.51  (86.60)  178.33  468.38  332.05  199.26  (65.10)  183.43  435.84 

Five Year Summary -  
Statement Of Comprehensive Income
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Group Company
SLFRS/LKAS SLFRS/LKAS

 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
 LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR LKR

Revenue  34,933,245,274  30,082,217,757  25,516,809,656  24,294,938,354  22,469,267,842  27,501,593,009  25,030,345,580  24,225,118,800  23,704,374,843  21,963,298,347 
Cost of Sales  (24,173,581,123)  (21,565,435,105)  (18,224,377,305)  (16,836,362,976)  (15,960,319,901) (19,340,460,685)  (18,463,726,814)  (17,675,145,521) (16,495,455,485)  (15,875,565,357)
Gross Profit  10,759,664,151  8,516,782,652  7,292,432,351  7,458,575,378  6,508,947,941  8,161,132,324  6,566,618,766  6,549,973,279  7,208,919,358  6,087,732,990 
Other Operating Income  247,614,896  292,360,320  600,207,307  396,406,756  712,708,142  235,537,658  311,321,674  568,866,969  447,927,973  380,818,533 
Selling & Distribution Expenses  (4,233,641,878)  (3,197,248,808)  (3,019,913,621)  (3,084,488,731)  (2,257,891,577)  (3,522,305,279)  (2,603,833,657)  (2,909,456,320)  (3,084,418,112)  (2,245,841,499)
Administrative Expenses  (4,129,045,695)  (3,963,370,213)  (3,755,631,304)  (3,070,288,816)  (2,074,511,318)  (2,857,515,893)  (2,787,213,669)  (3,187,327,743)  (2,866,949,744)  (2,439,902,933)
Operating Profit  2,644,591,474  1,648,523,951  1,117,094,733  1,700,204,586  2,889,253,188  2,016,848,810  1,486,893,114  1,022,056,184  1,705,479,475  1,782,807,091 
Finance Cost  (1,050,908,089)  (1,045,891,861)  (1,541,676,504)  (1,196,387,314)  (679,149,083)  (1,028,823,131)  (1,022,995,330)  (1,492,677,321)  (1,196,169,486)  (666,105,144)
Finance income  65,768,752  191,418,624  191,449,371  106,088,868  61,421,011  62,703,720  189,360,610  191,378,789  101,995,719  61,421,011 
Share of Associate Company Profits/(Losses)  60,279,671  42,950,354  45,921,599  64,898,376  40,952,475  -  -  -  -  - 
Share of Joint Venture's Loss  (75,455,796)  (45,274,224)  (22,317,656)  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Profit/(Loss) Before Income Tax and Value 
Added Tax on Financial Services  1,644,276,012  791,726,844  (209,528,456)  674,804,516  2,312,477,591  1,050,729,399  653,258,394  (279,242,348)  611,305,708  1,178,122,958 
Value Added Tax on Financial Services  (33,742,312)  (25,468,054)  (6,080,910)  (13,211,341)  (20,368,795)  (2,884,772)  (2,722,882)  (1,534,631)  (2,472,411)  (1,525,494)
Income Tax Expense  (510,898,173)  (205,056,915)  33,434,388  (267,296,896)  (371,500,901)  (322,316,714)  (215,163,027)  63,285,822  (212,621,520)  (235,177,452)
Profit / (Loss) for the year from continuing 
operations  1,099,635,527  561,201,875  (182,174,978)  394,296,279  1,920,607,895  725,527,913  435,372,485  (217,491,157)  396,211,777  941,420,012 

Discontinued Operations :
Profit for the year from discontinued 
operations  -  15,750,000  (4,199,371)  -  (814,862,007)  -  -  76,877,952  -  - 
Profit for the year net of Tax  1,099,635,527  576,951,875  (186,374,350)  394,296,279  1,105,745,888  725,527,913  435,372,485  (140,613,205)  396,211,777  941,420,012 

Attributable to;
Equity holders of the parent  1,087,444,834  564,835,785  (187,062,026)  385,187,430  1,011,696,483  -  -  -  -  - 
Non Controlling Interest  12,190,693  12,116,090  687,676  9,108,849  94,049,406  -  -  -  -  - 
 Earnings Per Share  497.69  258.51  (86.60)  178.33  468.38  332.05  199.26  (65.10)  183.43  435.84 

Five Year Summary -  
Statement Of Comprehensive Income
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Real Estate Portfolio	

Location Extent Valuation Date of the 
Valuation

Freehold Land and Buildings
Freehold Property at Ratmalana
Land 14.9 P 9,700,000 

15 March 2016
Building 5,162 sq.ft 7,800,000 

Freehold Property at Liberty Plaza
Shopping Block at Liberty Plaza Colombo 435 sq.ft 15,700,000 15 March 2016

Freehold Property at Kandy
Land 11.094 P 122,000,000 

10 March 2016
Building 4415 sq.ft 8,000,000 

Freehold Property at Kalutara
Land 24.46 P 19,700,000 

15 March 2016
Building 9403 sq.ft 33,000,000 

Freehold Property at Nugegoda
Land 17.45 P 70,470,000 

25 April 2016
Building 8,020,500 

Freehold Property at Gampaha
Land 17.52 P 52,600,000 

16 March 2016
Building 1,000,000 

Freehold Property at Kurunegala
Land 50 P 87,500,000 

10 March 2016
Building 2,500,000 

Freehold Property at Rajagiriya
Land 22 P 55,000,000 

15 March 2016
Building 3687 sq.ft 2,200,000 
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Real Estate Portfolio	

Location Extent Valuation Date of the 
Valuation

Freehold Property at Wellawatta
Land 25.65 P 90,000,000 15 March 2016

Freehold Property at Ratmalana
Land 15.00 P 11,250,000 

17 March 2016
Building 3,157 sq.ft 7,892,500 

Freehold Property at Ratmalana
Land 17 P 12,825,000 

17 March 2016Building 3,690 sq.ft 9,503,800 
Building 17,456,055 

Freehold Property at Galnewa
Building 35,000,000 31 March 2016

Investment Properties
Investment Property at Kirula
Land 31 P 148,250,000 

15 March 2016
Building 15164 sq.ft 59,750,000 
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Hambantota

Ampara

Galle

Matara

Badulla

Matale

Kandy

Nuwara Eliya

Ratnapura

Batticoloa

Monaragala

Anuradhapura

Puttalam

Mullaitivu

Kilinochchi

Mannar

Kegalle

Gampaha

Kurunegala

Polonnaruwa

Jaffna

Kalutara

Trincomalee

Vavunia

Colombo

Branch Network

Provinces Retail 
Showrooms

Apple 
Showrooms

Elite 
Showrooms

Western 110 7 20
Northern 31 - -

Eastern 41 - -
Southern 61 - -
UVA 45 - -
Sabaragamuwa 31 - 1
Central 40 - 1
North Central 33 - 1
North Western 49 - -
Total 441 7 23

Retail Showrooms/Apple Showrooms/Elite Showrooms
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Glossary of Financial Terms

A
`` 	Accounts payable - a record of all short-term (less than 12 months) 

invoices, bills and other liabilities yet to be paid. Examples of 
accounts payable include invoices for goods or services, bills for 
utilities and tax payments due.

`` 	Accounts receivable - a record of all short-term (less than 12 
months) expected payments, from customers that have already 
received the goods/services but are yet to pay. These types of 
customers are called debtors and are generally invoiced by a 
business.

`` 	Accrual accounting - an accounting system that records transactions 
at the time they occur, whether the payment is made now or in the 
future.

`` 	Amortisation - the process of expensing for intangible assets such 
as goodwill and intellectual property over a period of time. See also 
Depreciation.

`` 	Audit - a physical check performed by an auditor or tax official on a 
business' financial records to check that everything is accounted for 
correctly.

`` Available-for-sale – all assets not in any of the 3 categories namely 
held to maturity, fair value through profit/loss and receivables. It is 
a residual category and does not mean that the entity stands ready 
sell these all the time.

`` 	AWPLR- Average Weighted Prime Lending Rate

B
`` 	Bad debts - money owed to you that is unlikely to be paid to you in 

the foreseeable future.
`` Balance sheet - a snapshot of a business as of a particular date. It 

lists all of a business' assets and liabilities and works out the net 
assets.

`` 	Benchmark - a set of conditions against which a product or business 
is measured.

`` 	BOI-Board of Investment
`` 	Bootstrapping - where a business funds growth purely through 

personal finances and revenue from the business.
`` 	Bottom line - see Net profit.
`` Brainstorming- group creativity technique by which efforts are made 

to find a conclusion for a specific problem by gathering a list of ideas 
spontaneously contributed by its members.

`` 	Break-even point - the exact point when a business' income equals 
a business' expenses.

`` Budget - a listing of planned revenue and expenditure for a given 
period.

C
`` 	Capital - wealth in the form of money or property owned by a 

business.
`` Cash flow - the measure of actual cash flowing in and out of a 

business.
`` 	Collateral - see Security.
`` Colombo Consumer Price Index (CCPI)- An inflationary indicator that 

measures the change in the cost of a fixed basket of products and 
services, including housing, electricity, food, and transportation

`` Contingent liability - a liability that only needs to be paid if a 
particular event or circumstance occurs.

`` Cost of goods sold - the total direct costs of producing a good or 
delivering a service.

`` Credit rating - a ranking applied to a person or business based on 
their credit history that represents their ability to repay a debt

`` Current asset - an asset in cash or that can be converted into cash 
within the next 12 months.

`` 	Current liability - a liability that is due for payment in the next 12 
months.

`` Current ratio – current asset divided by Current Liability, also known 
as Acid ratio, measures the amount of liquidity.

D
`` 	Deferred Tax - a liability that results from income that has already 

been earned for accounting purposes but not for tax purposes.
`` 	Depreciation - the process of expensing an asset over a period of 

time. An asset is depreciated to spread the cost of the asset over its 
useful life.

`` 	Disbursements - money that is paid out by a business.
`` Discount - a reduction applied to a full priced good or service.
`` 	Disposable income - also known as disposable personal income 

(DPI), is the amount of money that households have available for 
spending and saving after income taxes have been accounted for.

`` Drawings - personal expenses paid for from a business account.
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E
`` 	Earnings Per Share – profits distributable to Ordinary shareholders 

divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue.
`` 	Ecofriendly -not harmful to the environment.
`` 	Effective tax rate- average rate at which an individual or corporation 

is taxed.
`` 	Equity - the value of ownership interest in the business, calculated 

by deducting liabilities from assets.
`` 	ERP system-Enterprise Resource Planning is business process 

management software that allows an organisation to use a system 
of integrated applications to manage the business and automate 
many back office functions related to technology, services and 
human resources.

F
`` 	Factoring - (also known as debtors finance and accounts receivable 

finance) — is when a factor company buys a business' outstanding 
invoices at a discount. The factor company then chases up the 
debtors. Factoring is a way to get quick access to cash, but can be 
quite expensive compared to traditional financing options.

`` 	Fair Value – fair value is the amount for which an asset could be 
exchanged between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s 
length transaction.

`` 	Fixed asset - a physical asset used in the running of a business.
`` Fixed cost - a cost that cannot be directly attributed to the 

production of a good or service.
`` 	Fringe benefits - non-monetary benefits such as company cars and 

mobile phones, included as part of a salary package.
`` Financial year - a twelve month period typically from 1 April to 31st March

G
`` 	GDP- Gross Domestic Product -the monetary value of all the finished 

goods and services produced within a country's borders in a specific 
time period.

`` 	Gearing ratio – borrowings divided by equity
`` 	Goodwill - an intangible asset that represents the value of a 

business' reputation.
`` Gross income - the total money earned by a business before 

expenses are deducted.
`` 	Gross profit - the difference between sales and the direct cost of 

making the sales.
`` 	Guarantor- a person who promises to pay a loan in the event the 

borrower cannot meet the repayments. The guarantor is legally 
responsible for the debt.

H
`` 	Held-to-maturity – assets acquired by the entity with the intention of 

holding till maturity.
`` 	Hire-purchase - a type of finance contract where a good is 

purchased through an initial deposit and then rented while the good 
is paid off in installments plus interest charges. Once the good is 
fully paid the ownership of the good transfers to the purchaser. 

I
`` 	Impairment - this occurs when the recoverable amount of an asset 

is less than its carrying value
`` 	Initial public offering (IPO) - when a company first offers shares on 

the stock market to sell them to the general public. Also known as 
floating on the stock market.

`` 	Intangible assets - non-physical assets with no fixed value, such as 
goodwill and intellectual property rights.

`` 	Inventory - an itemized list of goods or materials a business is 
holding for sale.

`` 	Investment - an asset purchased for the purpose of earning money 
such as shares or property.

M
`` Mark up - the amount added to the cost price of goods, to help 

determine a selling price. Essentially it is the difference between the 
cost of the good/service and the selling price, but it does not take 
into account what proportion of the amount is profit.

`` Maturity date - when a loan's term ends and all outstanding 
principal and interest payments are due.

`` Multiplier effect - increase in final income arising from any new 
injection of spending.

N
`` 	NASDAQ - an American stock exchange
`` Net assets - (also known as net worth, owner's equity or 

shareholder's equity) is the total assets minus total liabilities.
`` 	Net income - the total money earned by a business after tax and 

other deductions are taken out.
`` Net Profit - (also known as bottom line) is the total gross profit minus 

all business expenses.
`` 	Non-Controlling Interest – Equity in a subsidiary not attributable, 

directly or indirectly, to parent.

Glossary of Financial Terms



151 Abans PLC | Annual Report 2015/16

OVERVIEW  |  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS  |  GOVERNANCE AND COMPLIANCE  |  FINANCIAL REPORTS  | SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

O
`` 	Overdraft facility - a finance arrangement where a lender allows a 

business to withdraw more than the balance of an account.
`` 	Overheads - the fixed costs associated with operating a business 

such as rent, marketing, utilities and administrative costs. See also 
Fixed costs.

P
`` 	P/E ratio – price of a share divided by earnings of a share.
`` 	Petty cash - cash for the purposes of small miscellaneous 

purchases such as postage.
`` 	Plant and equipment - a group of fixed assets used in the operation 

of a business such as furniture, machinery, fit-out, vehicles, 
computers and tools.

`` 	Principal - the original amount borrowed on a loan or the remainder 
of the original borrowed amount that is still owing (excluding the 
interest portion of the amount).

`` 	Profit - the total revenue a business earns minus the total expenses.
`` 	Profit and loss statement - (also known as an income statement) is 

a financial statement listing sales and expenses and is used to work 
out the gross and net profit of a business.

`` Purchasing Power- value of a currency expressed in terms of the 
amount of goods or services that one unit of money can buy

R
`` 	R&D-stands for 'Research and Development'. Businesses conduct 

research and development to innovate, create new products and 
find better ways of doing things.

`` 	Related Parties - parties who can control or significantly influence 
the financial and operating politics of the entity.

`` Return on investment (ROI) - a calculation that works out how 
efficient a business is at generating profit from the original equity 
provided by the owners/shareholders. It's a way of thinking about 
the benefit (return) of the money you've invested into the business. 
To calculate ROI, divide the gain (net profit) of the investment by the 
cost of the investment - the ROI is expressed as a percentage or a 
ratio.

`` 	Roanu - relatively weak tropical cyclone that caused severe flooding 
in Sri Lanka during May 2016.

S
`` 	Security - (also known as Collateral) is property or assets that a 

lender can take possession of, in the event that a loan cannot be 
repaid.

`` 	Shareholder's equity - see Net assets.
`` 	Stock - the actual goods or materials a business currently has on 

hand.
`` 	Stocktaking - a regular process involving a physical count of 

merchandise and supplies actually held by a business, completed to 
verify stock records and accounts.

T
`` Turnover - the amount of money taken by a business in a particular 

period.

V
`` 	Variable cost - a cost that changes depending on the number of 

goods produced or the demand for the products/service.
`` 	Variable interest rate - when the interest rate of a loan changes with 

market conditions for the duration of the loan.

W
`` Working capital - the cash available to a business for day to day 

expenses.

Glossary of Financial Terms
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Notes
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Notes
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NOTICE OF MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company will be held at the Head Office of Abans PLC on 27th September 2016, at 
2.00 p.m. for the following purposes.

1.	 To receive and adopt the Report of the Directors, the Audited Statement of Accounts of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2016 and 
Report of the Auditors thereon.

2.	 To elect Mr. Sriyan de S. Wijeyeratne, a Director of the Company who retires by rotation in terms of Section A.8 of the Code of Best Practice on 
Corporate Governance 2013. Directors recommend the re-election of Mr. Sriyan Wijeyeratne as a Director of the Company.

3.	 To re-elect Mrs. Aban Pestonjee, Director of the Company who being over seventy years of age retires in accordance with Section 210 of the 
Companies Act No.07 of 2007. The Directors recommend the re-election of Mrs. Aban Pestonjee as a Director of the Company.

4.	 To re-appoint M/s. Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountants, as the Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and to authorise the Directors to 
determine their remuneration.

By order of the Board,

Varners International (Private) Limited
Secretaries
Colombo.
8th August 2016
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Form Of Proxy

I/We * ……………………………………………………………………………………......................................................................................................................................………

……………………………………………………….........................................................…………… being a member/members of Abans PLC, hereby appoint;

Ms. Aban Pestonjee ............................................of Colombo or failing her
Ms. Saroshi Dubash.............................................of Colombo or failing her
Mr. Behman Pestonjee........................................of Colombo or failing him
Mr. Rusi Pestonjee...............................................of Colombo or failing him
Mr. Hiran Embuldeniya........................................of Colombo or failing him
Mr. S. J. De S. Wijeyeratne...................................of Colombo or failing him

…………………………………………………..…….....................................................……of……………………………………………………………….........................……………........….

(National Identity Card Number…………….....................................................………) as my/our* proxy to represent me/us* and to vote as indicated 

hereunder for me/us* and on my/our* behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 27th September 2016 and at every poll 

which may be taken in consequence of the aforesaid meeting and at any adjournment thereof.

	 FOR	 AGAINST

To receive and adopt the Report of the Directors and the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st 
March 2016 and the Report of the Auditors thereon.

To elect Mr. Sriyan Joseph De Silva Wijeyeratne, a Director of the Company who retires by rotation in terms of 
Section A.8 of the Code of Best Practice on Corporate Governance 2013. Directors recommend the re-election 
of Mr. Sriyan Joseph De Silva Wijeyeratne as a Director of the Company.

To re-elect Mrs. Aban Pestonjee, as a Director of the Company in terms 4.1 of Part II of the Articles of 
Association and Section 210 of the Companies Act No.07 of 2007.

To re-appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young, Chartered Accountant, as the Auditors for the ensuing year and to 
authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration.

Signature ……………………………………

Signed this ………………......…………… day of ………………..……. 2016

Witness ……………………………………..

(*Please delete the inappropriate words)
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Form Of Proxy

INSTRUCTIONS ON COMPLETING THE FORM OF PROXY

1.	 Please perfect the Form of Proxy after filing in legibly your name and address and by signing in 
the space provided and inserting the date of signatures.

2.	 Please return the completed Form of Proxy to the registered office of the Company at No.498, 
Galle Road, Colombo 03 or at the office of the Secretaries, Varners International (Private) 
Limited at Level 14, West Tower, World Trade Center, Echelon Square, Colombo 01 after 
crossing out one or the other of the alternate words indicated by the asterisks on the body 
of the Form. The Form of Proxy shall be lodged with the Company or the Secretaries not less 
than forty-eight hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.

3.	 If the Form of Proxy is signed by an Attorney, the relevant Power of Attorney should accompany 
the completed Form of Proxy for registration, if a Power of Attorney has not been already 
registered with the Company.

4.	 If the shareholder is a Company or a body corporate, the Form of Proxy should be under its 
Common Seal in accordance with its Articles of Association or Constitution.

5.	 If there is any doubt as to the manner in which the proxy should vote by reason of the manner 
in which instructions in 2 above have been carried out, the proxy holder will vote as she/he 
thinks fit.
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Abans PLC

Legal Form
The Company was incorporated in Sri Lanka 
on 17th December 1981 as a Private Limited 
Liability Company under the provisions of 
the Companies ordinance of 1938 and re-
registered under the Companies Act No. 07 
of 2007, as Abans (Pvt) Ltd. The Company 
changed its name in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 8 of the Companies Act 
No. 07 0f 2007 to Abans Limited on 17th 
December 2012. Consequent to being listed 
on the Colombo Stock Exchange pursuant to 
its debenture issue, the Company name was 
changed to Abans PLC on 16th January 2014.

Registration Number
Old – PVS 8006
New – PV 5301 PB/PQ

Stock Exchange Listing
Debentures of the Company were listed on the 
Colombo Stock Exchange on 27th December 
2013.

Registered Office
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Web Site
www.abansgroup.com

Auditors
Ernst & Young
Chartered Accountants,
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P.O. Box 101,
Colombo 10.

Internal Auditors
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Abans Group of Companies,
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Secretaries
Varners International (Pvt) Ltd,
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The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking
     Corporation Ltd (HSBC)
Union Bank of Colombo PLC

VAT Registered No.
104080065 - 7000

Tax Payer Identification Number
104080065

Board of Directors
Mrs. Aban Pestonjee 
  - Chairperson / Executive Director
Mr. Behman Pestonjee 
  - Managing Director / Executive Director
Mrs. Saroshi Dubash 
  - Executive Director
Mr. Rusi Pestonjee 
  - Executive Director
Mr. Hiran Chaminda Embuldeniya 
  - Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr. Sriyan De Silva Wijeyeratne 
  - Independent Non-Executive Director
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